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OUR MISSION

To contribute the nation for the economic
development, serve the customers by
providing financial access and quality
banking products and services, maximize
the value of the shareholders’ wealth,
provide excellent growth opportunities to
the employees and meet the expectations
of other stakeholders.

OUR VISION

To be the leading development bank of
Nepal by providing banking “Access to All".

OUR CORE VALUES

m Integrity

m Teamwork

m Customer Oriented
m Professionalism

m Community Focused
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MILESTONES

JESTHA 16
Purchase of Corporate Building

BHADRA 13

Awarded as the Best Bank, Best Bank in
AlI/ML Implementation and Runner-up
in MSME Acceleration in Banking by the
Indian Chamber of Commerce.

ASADH 04

Acquiring subsidiary company
Garima Capital Limited
KARTIK 28

Joint Operation with Sahara
Bikas Bank Limited

ASADH 29

Joint operation with Nilgiri Vikas
Bank Limited & upgraded to
National Level Development Bank

SHRAWAN 22
The Bank was incorporated
under Company Act

ASHWIN 24
License from NRB to
perform its financial transaction

2082

2080

—o0

2078

—o0

2073

—o0

2072

—0

2068

—0

2064

ASHWIN 19

EMI Facility Introduced in
Credit Card (First Time in
Development Bank)

ASHWIN 4
Joint Operation with
Subechha Bikas Bank Limited

CHAITRA 27
Head Office shifted to
Lazimpat, Kathmandu

CHAITRA 20
Upgraded 10 District Level
Development Bank

KARTIK 18
Formal Operation

MANGSHIR 7
Formal Inauguration
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OUR PRESENCE

1 2 5 Extension
Branches S
Mobile

70'000 o anking Users
180,000+ 930,000+

Debit Card Users Valuable Customers

1034 51 gLiP=

Offices
Employees ATM Booths

495,000+
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FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

163.07

NET-WORTH
PER SHARE

3.61

NET INTEREST
INCOME

1.25 (IN ARAB) 5.68

PAID -UP
NET PROFIT CAPITAL

(IN ARAB) 19.5 (IN ARAB) 3.58

RESERVE &
P/E RATIO SURPLUS

21.96 76.71 (IN ARAB)

LOAN &
ANNUALIZED ADVANCES

EPS 59.92 (IN ARAB)

DISTRIBUTABLE
PROFIT

1.81 (IN CRORE)

OPERATING
PROFIT
(IN ARAB)
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PAID-UP CAPITAL (Rs.inBillion) RESERVE (Rs. in Billion)
5.68 5.68
A 5.19
3.67 58 3.58
2.62 258
2.02
1.67 I
207778 | 2078/79 | 2079/80 | 2080/81 | 208182 207778 | 2078/79 | 2079/80 ' 2080/81 ' 208182
TOTAL ASSETS (Rs.in Billion) DEPOSIT (Rs. in Billion)
104.46 92.68
86.03
89.16 96.3 79.07
J7296 8i3 I I l ’J%z] 70I44 I I l
207778 | 2078/79 | 2079/80 ' 2080/81 | 2081/82 2077/78 | 2078/79 | 2079/80 ' 2080/81 ' 208182
LOAN & ADVANCES (Rs.inBillion) OPERATING PROFIT (Rs. in Billion)
N AT A 176 1.81
5432  OM8 . 1.49
: 119
I I 0.64
2077778 | 2078/79 | 2079/80 ' 2080/81 | 2081/82 2077/78 | 2078/79 | 2079/80 ' 2080/81 ' 208182
NET PROFIT (Rs.inBillion) NON PERFORMING LOANS (In %)
1.26 1.25 T
1.03
0.84
I s
2077778 | 2078/79 | 2079/80 ' 2080/81 | 2081/82 " o078 | 207879 | 2079/80 | 2080/81 | 208182 !
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EARNING PER SHARE (InRs.) CAPITAL ADEQUACY (In %)
13.69
2275 9949 2238 )95 13.48 13.29
nas oo 10.54 11.16 . 22
10.18
7 64 J

2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81 2081/82 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81 2081/82
MARKET PRICE PER SHARE (InRs.) NET WORTH PER SHARE (InRs.)

B4t 163.07

145.48 14403
! 2077/78 ! 2078/79 ! 2079/80 ! 2080/81 ! 2081/82 I ! 2077/78 ! 2078/79 ! 2079/80 ! 2080/81 ! 2081/82 I
TOTAL STAFFS (InNumber) NET PROFIT PER STAFF (Rs. in Million)
1038 - 1034
1027 o

2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81 2081/82 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81 2081/82

NUMBER OF BRANCHES (InNumber) RETURN ON TOTAL ASSETS (In %)
125
123 123 1.36 =8
121
18
I 2077/78 ! 2078/79 ! 2079/80 ! 2080/81 ! 2081/82 | I 2077/78 I 2078/79 ! 2079/80 ! 2080/81 I 2081/82 I
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DIVIDEND PAID (n%) RETURN ON EQUITY (In %)
16
14.5 17.25 17.25 17.57
e - 14.24
10 10.53
5.4
5
U o077 ' 207879 ' 207980 | 2080/81 | 208182 U oo7m7s ' 207879 1 207980 | 2080/81 | 208182
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Shareholders of
Garima Bikas Bank Ltd.
Lazimpat, Kathmandu

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

WI:; have audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of Garima Bikas Bank Ltd.
(hereinafter referred to as “the Bank”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”), which comprise Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 32,
2082 (July 16, 2025), Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity,
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Consoclidated Financial Statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the Consolidated Financial Position of the Group as at Ashad 32,
2082 (July 16, 2025), its Consolidated Financial Performance and its Consolidated Cash
Flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards. are further. described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Handbook of the Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Nepal (ICAN), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the ICAN’s Handbook of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in cur professional judgment, were of most
significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period,
which were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consoclidated Financial
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, We do not provide separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Opinion
section, we have determined the matters described below as the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report,

The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Our assessed key audit matters and how we addressed them are outlined below:

S.N.

Key Audit Matters

Auditor’s Response

1.

Interest Income

Ref. Note no. 4.29 and accounting policies to the financial statements.

The Bank has total interest income
of Rs, 8,391,249,954 including Rs.
7.,002,935,287 on loans and
advances to customers.

Interest income of the Bank is
recognized in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Interest Income
Recognition, 2025, issued by

Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB). As per
the guideline, the interest
recognition is based on the stage
(Stage 1, 2, or 3} of each financial
asset as determined at the previous
quarter's end. As per the guideline,
for stage 3 financial assets, interest
income recognized on an accrual

| basis (coupon rate or effective rate)

shall be adjusted against the
movement in accrued interest
receivable during the current
quarter, and interest suspense at
the beginning of the quarter, and
only cash-based interest income
during the current quarter shall be
recognized. Similarly, for Stage 1
and 2 fnancial assets, interest
income is recognized on accrual
basis (coupon rate or effective rate)
and any interest suspense at the
beginning of quarter is also
recognized as interest income.

The manual intervention is required
for the interest recognition process.
Hence, it creates risk of improper
application of guidelines, in staging
financial assets and determination
of interest income. So, this may
have an effect on recognition of
interest income of the Bank.
Therefore, we have considered it as
Key Audit Matter.

We applied following procedures in
respect of verification of interest income:

# Understanding of the core banking
software of the Bank how interest rate
on loans and advances Has been
implemented in system.

¥» Whether interest income on advances
is automatically generated in the CBS
system.

» We obtained an understanding of the
Bank’s process for classifying loans
into stages 1-3 as per NRB ECL
guidelines.

> Review of accrual and recognition
interest income whether relevant
NFRS and the NRB norms have been
followed by the Bank for the same.

» Review and verify the transactions
relating to manual debit or credit of
interest in the system.

» Understanding as to how the Bank's
management monitors their business,
analyze its credit portfolioc and the
interest income thereon.

» Review whether the legal remedies
against defaulting borrowers are not
adversely affected.

Accounting policies and recognition of
interest income has been considered
acceptable.
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Investment Securities Valuation

2 Ref. Note no. 4.8 and accounting policies to the financial statements.
The Bank has total investment | We applied following procedures in
securities of Rs. 20,195,712,972 as | respect of investment verification:
at Ashad 32, 2082 classified into |» Review of accounting policies adopted
two  different categories  as by the Bank based on Nepal Financial
investment securities measured at Reporting  Standards and  the
amortized cost and investment in Directives issued by NRB and
equity measured at fair value compliance of the same.
through  other comprehensive | » Evaluation of management’s
income, which in  aggregate assessment to categorize investments
represent 19.33 % of the total classified into different categories as
assets of the Bank. investment securities measured at
Classification of investment into amortized cost and investment in
different categories as investment equity measured at fair value through
securities measured at amortized other comprehensive income.
cost and investment in equity | » Verification of valuation of investment
measured at fair wvalue through on sampling basis in reference to its
other comprehensive  income cost and quoted market price as the
warrant management judgement case may be.
and it impacts on valuation of |» Verification of impairment allowance
investment securities and provided for different investments in
impairment allowance. commensurate with NFRSs and NRB
Due to the percentage of volume Directives.
over total assets and the
requirement of management | Accounting  policies, classification,
judgment for measurement of | valuation, and impairment allowances
impairment allowance, hence this | for the investments are considered
has been considered as key audit | acceptable.
matter.

3. | Impairment of Loans and Advances

As per NFRS 9, the Bank shall
measure impairment loss on loans

and advances, which is the higher
of:

a) Amount derived as per norms
prescribed by NRB for loan loss
provisioning or

b) Amount determined as per para
5.5 of NFRS adopting the expected
credit loss model.

As per the norms prescribed by
NRB, provision at the prescribed
rate shall be created on the loans

Our audit approach included:

a. Reviewing the overdue status of loans
and advances by obtaining data from the
system and matching the same with NRB
2.2 report.

b. Sample credit files were reviewed for
the purpose of assuring the utilization of
loan & advances for the intended
purpose, account movement and
account turnover.

c. Assessed the alignment of the Bank's
Impairment for expected credit losses
computations and underlying
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and advances based on overdue
status of loans and advances as well
as utilization status of the facility,
status of security etc. Hence.
assessment of availability and
accuracy of data for impairment
under NRB provisioning norms is
regarded as key audit matters.

Loan loss provision on loans and
advances measured at amortized
cost is Rs. 4,001,495,152 which is
higher of ECL Model and NRB
regulatory provisions and the same
has been disclosed in other
disclosures. "ECL model has been
validated as per the NRB guidelines
and ECL policy of the Bank.

This is a key audit matter due to
The invelvement of significant

management judgements,
assumptions and level of
uncertainty  associated  with

estimating future cash flows to
recover such loans and advances:
and

The materiality of the reported
amount of expected credit losses.

Key areas of significant judgements,
assumptions and estimates made
by management in the assessment
of expected credit losses for loans
and advances include forward-
looking macroeconomic scenarios,
associated weightages and
considerations that indicate
significant increase in credit risk,
These are subject to inherently
heightened levels of estimation
uncertainty.

methodology including responses to
current economic conditions with its
accounting policies, based on the best
available information up to the date of
our report

d. Evaluated the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of controls
over estimation of expected credit losses,
which included assessing the level of
oversight review and approval of
impairment for expected credil losses,
policies and procedures by the board and
management.

e. Tested the completeness, accuracy
and reasonableness of the underlying
data used in the expected credit loss
computations by agreeing details to
relevant source  documents and
accounting records.

f. Evaluated the reasonableness of credit
quality assessments and related stage
classifications.

In addition to the above, the following
procedures were performed:

g. For loans and advances assessed on
an
individual basis for impairment:

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the
underlying individual impairment
calculations.

Evaluated the reasonableness of key
inputs used in the impairment for
expected credit losses made with
economic conditions. Such evaluations
were carried out considering the value
and timing of cash flow forecasts
particularly relating to elevated risk
industries and status of recovery
actions of the collaterals.
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h. For loans and advances assessed on a
collective basis for impairment:

» Tested the Lkey inputs and the
calculations used in the impairment for
expected credit losses.

* Assessed the reasonableness of
judgements, estimates used by the
Management in the underlying
methodology and the management
overlays. Our testing . included
reasonableness of forward-looking
information used, economic scenarios
considered, and probability weighting
assigned to each scenario.

We applied following procedures in
respect of verification of loan loss
provision:

¥ Review of borrower’s files, which
includes evaluation of borrowers’
repayment behavior, assessment of
financial strength based on the
available financial statements,
adequacy of  security/collateral,
obtainment  of required legal
documents, CIC reports, and
compliance with prudential
regulations.

» Business sites visit of the borrowers
on sampling basis.

| » Review of IT system to provide loan
loss provision based on overdue
payments,

¥ On sampling hasis, wverification of
accuracy of provision against non-
performing loan calculated by the IT
system and manual calculation
sampling basis.

» Evaluation of appropriateness of
subjective judgement made by the
management for performing loans’
borrowers.

» Review of Management and Board’s
evaluation and decisions on loans.
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» Reviewed the ECL validation report
and assessed key assumptions,
model methodology, and
recommendations provided.

Loan loss provision made by the Bank is

considered acceptable.

4. | Information Technology

Considering the nature, complexity | We applied following procedures in
and wvolume of business and |respect of information technology:
transactions, the Bank has used
different system including core |» Review of control relating to the
banking system and management information system of the Bank
information system (MIS) based on whether it is as required by the
information technology. relevant NRB guidelines.
Transaction$ of the Bank have been | » Understanding controls over input,
electronically carried out and its processing and output of the existing
data and information of the Bank IT system.
has been digitally stored. It has to | » Review of accuracy and correctness of
ensure strong internal control information/ reports generated by the
relating to IT and MIS. Various relevant system on sampling basis.
reports including the financial | » Review of report of Information
statements are highly dependent on System Audit and implementation
such digitally stored data and other status of recommendations thereon.
related system.
We have considered this as a key | Based on the above audit procedures
audit matter as any lapses in the | performed, control over the information
control system including input, | technology prevailing in the Bank has
processing and output or any wrong | been considered adequate.
extractions of data may result in the
wrong reporting of the data to the
management, shareholders, and
regulators.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of subsidiary,
Financial statements of Garima Capital Ltd. (subsidiary) and other financial information
has been audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the financial statements in so far as it relates to the
accounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary are based solely on the
report of the other auditor.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statement and Auditors’
Report Thereon
The Bank’s Management is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Management Report, the Board of Directors,
and Chairman’s Statement but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
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does not cover other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
1s to read the other information and in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge
obtained during our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. As the other
information documents are in the process of completion, the management has provided
written representation that the final version of the documents will be provided when
available thus we have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting standards (NFRSs)
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if individually
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in
accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are g_gEropriate in the circumstances, but not for
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the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements répresent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have determined to communicate following matters in accordance with the
requirements of NRB Directives, Companies Act, 2063, BAFIA,2073 and other regulatory
requirements:

L. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of audit.
I Accounts and records of the Bank have been maintained as required by law.

I11. Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of accounts maintained by the Bank.

V. Capital fund, risk bearing fund and the provision for possible impairment of
assets of the Bank are adequate as per the Directives issued by Nepal Rastra
Bank.

V. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Board of Directors, the representative or any
employee of the Bank has not acted contrary to the provision of law relating
to accounts nor caused direct loss or damage to the Bank deliberately or acted
in a manner that would jeopardize the interest and security of the Bank.

VL Operations of the Bank are within its jurisdiction.

VI. The Bank has not acted in a manner to jeopardize the interest and security of
the depositors and investors:
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VIII. The Bank has a centralized core accounting system and details received from
branches of the Bank though the statements are independently not audited,
were adequate for our audit, and

IX. We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, so far as it
appeared from our examination of the books of account.

Prakash Lamsal, FCA
Senior Partner

P.L.R.G. Associates
Chartered Accountants

UDIN: 251014CA00154PrUwW9

Date: 2082/06/28
Place: Kathmandu
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GARIMA BIKAS BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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As on 32 Ashad 2082 Amount in NPR

GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS NOTES 32 ASHAD 2082 31ASHAD 2081 32 ASHAD 2082 31ASHAD 2081
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 3,166,029,248 4,716,277,304 3,165,470,476 4,714,599,338
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 3,778,5637,693 3,749,617,466 3,778,537,693 3,749,617,466
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 = - = -
Derivative financial instruments 4.4 = - = -
Other trading assets 4.5 = - = -
Loan and Advances to B/Fls 4.6 4,574,216,271 4,333,135,372 4,574,216,271 4,333,135,372
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 69,130,694,763 64,590,517,896 69,130,694,763 64,590,517,896
Investment securities 4.8 20,527,268,246 16,851,652,128 20,195,712,972 16,632,572,284
Current Tax Assets 4.9 100,761,449 422,563,326 83,859,471 411,612,266
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10 = - 123,900,000 123,900,000
Investment in Associates 4.1 - - - -
Investment property 4.2 675,496,243 214,252,077 675,496,243 214,252,077
Property and equipment 413 1,933,138,287 581,167,089 1,908,698,292 551,389,695
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.4 105,417,013 99,083,022 103,540,968 98,045,207
Deferred tax assets 4,15 35,302,344 38,397,060 38,835,344 24,888,152
Other assets 4.16 723,999,363 901,649,505 685,096,745 861,071,912
Total Assets 104,750,860,918 96,498,312,246 104,464,059,239 96,305,601,665
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.17 2,565,987,630 1,783,291,131 2,565,987,630 1,783,291,131
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 = - = -
Derivative Financial instruments 4.19 = - = -
Deposit from customers 4.20 90,112,803,410 84,251,150,462 90,115,629,859 84,252,756,130
Borrowings 4.21 98,687,819 55,201,283 = 6,250,000
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - - - -
Provisions 4.22 = - = -
Deferred tax liabilities 4.15 = - = -
Other liabilities 4.23 1,689,846,482 1,071,741,757 1,622,124,839 1,009,206,396
Debt securities issued 4.24 997,062,992 996,034,134 997,062,992 996,034,134
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 = - = -
Total liabilities 95,364,288,332 88,157,418,767 95,200,805,319 88,047,537,791
Equity
Share Capital 4.26 5,680,517,328 5,680,517,328 5,680,517,328 5,680,517,328
Share Premium = - = -
Retained Earnings 595,617,329 264,268,427 599,214,090 286,403,057
Reserves 4.27 2,996,938, 444 2,304,190,783 2,983,522,502 2,291,143,490
Total equity attributable to equity holders 9,273,073,101 8,248,976,537 9,263,253,919 8,258,063,874
Non-controlling interest 113,499,485 91,916,942 - -
Total equity 9,386,572,586 8,340,893,479 9,263,253,919 8,258,063,874
Total liabilities and equity 104,750,860,918 96,498,312,246 104,464,059,239 96,305,601,665
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 4,199,916,128 1,481,257,430 4,199,916,128 1,481,257,430
Net assets value per share 163.24 145.22 163.07 145.38
KESHAB TIMALSINA ANIL REGMI MADHAV PRASAD UPADHAYA DILIP PRATAP KHAND As per our report of even date
HEAD- FINANCE, ACCOUNTS DEPUTY CHIEF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIRMAN CA. PRAKASH LAMSAL
& TREASURY DEPARTMENT EXECUTIVE OFFICER PARTNER,

PLRG ASSOCIATES

SHYAM PRASAD BASYAL DEEPENDRA SHRESTHA MUKUNDA RAJ ACHARYA BIMAL PANDEY CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
SHOVAKANTA DHAKAL IUSHMA KOIRALA
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DATE : 2082/06/27
PLACE : KATHMANDU
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GARIMA BIKAS BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 32 Ashad 2082

Amount in NPR

GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS NOTES 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Interest Income 4.29 8,395,995,496 10,114,827,571 8,391,249,954 10,10,220,567
Interest Expense 4.30 4,789,877,717 6,801,178,275 4,779,182,798 6,795,449,181
Net interest income 3,606,117,778 3,313,649,296 3,612,067,156 3,314,771,386
Fees and Commission Income 4.31 571,434,860 498,364,921 516,374,447 476,890,013
Fees and Commission Expense 4.32 10,999,709 25,062,223 5,480,318 20,520,241
Net fee and Commission income 560,435,151 473,302,698 510,894,129 456,369,772
Net interest fee and commission income 4,166,552,929 3,786,951,994 4,122,961,285 3,771,141,158
Net Trading Income 4.33 61,105,210 35,374,312 16,409,319 13,350,969
Other Operating Income 4.34 120,884,695 31,094,070 118,695,614 31,094,070
Total operating income 4,348,542,835 3,853,420,375 4,258,066,217 3,815,586,196
Impairment charge/(reversal) for 4.35 647,055,737 1,71,042,283 647,055,737 1,711,042,283
loans and other losses
Net Operating income 3,701,487,097 2,142,378,092 3,611,010,480 2,104,543,913
Operating expenses
Personnel Expense 4.36 1,135,508,554 842,122,649 1,110,598,014 823,259,474
Other Operating Expenses 4.37 471,161,568 488,690,859 463,841,760 481,627,145
Depreciation and amortisation 4.38 233,508,417 163,233,481 227,880,797 157,625,525
Operating Profit 1,861,308,559 648,331,103 1,808,689,908 642,131,769
Non operating income 4.39 540,000 1,290,509 540,000 1,265,000
Non operating expense 4.40 2,926,571 - 2,765,132 -
Profit before share of results of Associates 1,858,921,988 649,621,612 1,806,464,776 643,396,769
& Joint Ventures
Share of Results of Associates & Joint Venture = - = -
Profit before income tax 1,858,921,988 649,621,612 1,806,464,776 643,396,769
Income tax expense 4.41 574,296,624 210,682,241 558,772,635 209,444,909
Current tax Expenses 589,749,505 215,890,301 589,742,344 215,890,301
Deferred tax Expense/(Income) (15,452,881) (5,208,060) (30,969,709) (6,445,392)
Profit for the period 1,284,625,365 438,939,371 1,247,692,141 433,951,860
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the bank 1,266,601,341 436,505,383 1,247,692,141 433,951,860
Non-controlling interest 18,024,024 2,433,988 = -
Profit for the period 1,284,625,365 438,939,371 1,247,692,141 433,951,860
Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share 22.61 7.73 21.96 7.64
Diluted earnings per Share 7.73 7.64
KESHAB TIMALSINA ANIL REGMI MADHAV PRASAD UPADHAYA DILIP PRATAP KHAND As per our report of even date
HEAD- FINANCE, ACCOUNTS DEPUTY CHIEF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIRMAN CA. PRAKASH LAMSAL
& TREASURY DEPARTMENT EXECUTIVE OFFICER PARTNER,

PLRG ASSOCIATES

SHYAM PRASAD BASYAL DEEPENDRA SHRESTHA MUKUNDA RAJ ACHARYA BIMAL PANDEY CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
SHOVAKANTA DHAKAL IUSHMA KOIRALA
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DATE : 2082/06/27
PLACE : KATHMANDU
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GARIMA BIKAS BANK LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 32 Ashad 2082 Amount in NPR

GROUP BANK

PARTICULARS NOTES 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81

Profit for the period 1,284,625,365 438,939,371 1,247,692,141 433,951,860
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

a) Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments 102,897,858 49,837,361 97,814,258 46,637,761
measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revaluation - - -
Acturial gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans (41,072,534) 60,463 (41,072,534) 60,463

Income tax relating to above items (18,547,597) (14,969,347) (17,022,517) (14,009,467)
Net other comprehensive income that will not 43,277,727 34,928,477 39,719,207 32,688,757

be reclassified to profit or loss

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains/(losses)on cash flow hedge - - = -
Exchange gains/(losses)arising from translating = - - -
financial assets of foreign operation)

Income tax relating to above items - - - -
Reclassify to profit or loss - - = -
Net other comprehensive income that are or - - = -
may be reclassified to profit or loss

c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate
accounted as per equited method

Other comprehensive income for the period, 43,271,727 34,928,477 39,719,207 32,688,757
net of Income Tax
Total comprehensive income for the period 1,327,903,092 473,867,848 1,287,411,348 466,640,617
Total comprehensive income attributable to: - - - -
Equity holders of the Bank 1,308,142,451 470,340,840 1,287,411,348 466,640,617
Non-controlling interest 19,760,640 3,527,008 = -
Total Comprehensive income for the period 1,327,903,092 473,867,848 1,287,411,348 466,640,617
KESHAB TIMALSINA ANIL REGMI MADHAV PRASAD UPADHAYA DILIP PRATAP KHAND As per our report of even date
HEAD- FINANCE, ACCOUNTS DEPUTY CHIEF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIRMAN CA. PRAKASH LAMSAL
& TREASURY DEPARTMENT EXECUTIVE OFFICER PARTNER,

PLRG ASSOCIATES
SHYAM PRASAD BASYAL DEEPENDRA SHRESTHA MUKUNDA RAJ ACHARYA BIMAL PANDEY CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
SHOVAKANTA DHAKAL IUSHMA KOIRALA
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DATE : 2082/06/27
PLACE : KATHMANDU
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GARIMA BIKAS BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 32 Ashad 2082

Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS

GROUP

BANK

2081-82

2080-81

2081-82

2080-81

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received

Fee and other income received

Dividend Received

Receipts from other operating activities
Interest paid

Commission and fee paid

Cash payments to employee

Other expense paid

Operating cash flows before change in
operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions
Other Trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loan and advances to customer

Other Assets

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers

8,568,248,708
573,759,193
21,960,766
(4,847,627,922
(10,999,709
(895,744,992
(198,416,022
3,211,180,022

)
)
)
)

(5,451,839,483)
(28,920,226)

(241,080,899)
(5,359,485,817)
177,647,459

6,708,727,948
782,696,499

5,861,652,948

10,118,569,152
499,655,430
21,771,487
(6,864,903,237
(25,062,223
(925,132,864
(527,110,471
2,297,717,274

)
)
)
)

(6,765,918,898)
(787,821,414)
15,000,000
(73,332,955)
(1,359,336,172)
(4,340,514,031)
(219,914,327)

7.014,143,873
(321,229,163)

7,504,460,732

8,663,503,166
516,914,447
21,556,019
(4,836,933,002
(5,480,318
(877,000,220
(168,963,326
3,213,596,766

)
)
)
)

(5,453,511,776)
(28,920,226)

(241,080,899)
(5,359,485,817)
175,975,166

6,639,320,227
782,696,499

5,862,873,728

10,113,952,148
478,155,013
21,711,487
(6,859,174,143
(20,520,241
(906,549,315
(556,269,829
2,271,305,121

)
)
)
)

(6,686,521,270)
(787,821,414)

(1,359,336,172)
(4,341,451,610)
(197,912,074)

6,959,035,403
(321,229,163)

7,288,597,900

Borrowings 43,386,536 40,617,949 (6,250,000) (8,333,333)
Other Liabilities 20,991,966 (9,705,645) - -
Net Cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 4,468,068,488 2,545,942,248 4,399,405,217 2,543,819,254
Income taxes paid (267,788,311) (675,678,460) (261,830,234) (670,482,455)
Net Cash flow from operating activities 4,200,280,177 1,870,263,788 4,137,574,984 1,873,336,799

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of plant and equipment

(3.572,718,259)
38,380,764
(1,585,479,614)

(1,669,981,185)
2,170,751
(68,356,869)

(3,465,326,430)
38,380,764
(1,685,189,395)

(1,667,386,020)
2,170,761
(67,931,198)

Contd...
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Contd...

Amount in NPR

GROUP BANK

PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Receipt from sale of property and equipment 59,395,826 4,254,024 59,395,826 4,254,024
Purchase of intangible assets (6,333,991) - (5,495,761) -
Receipt from sale of intangible assets = 2,340,713 = 2,949,4M
Purchase of investment properties (461,244,166) (26,983,293) (461,244,166) (26,983,293)
Receipt from the sale of investment properties (1,279,970.50) (1,279,971)
Interest received = - = -
Dividend received = - = -
Net cash used in investing activities (5.529,279,411) (1,756,555,859)  (5,420,759,132) (1,752,926,325)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities 1,028,858 944,876 1,028,858 944,876
Repayment of debt securities = - = -
Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities = - = -
Repayment of subordinated liabilities = - = -
Receipt from issue of shares = 488,414,941 = 488,414,941
Dividend paid (284,025,866) (514,353,376) (284,025,866) (514,353,376)
Interest paid = - = -
Other receipt/payment = - = -
Net cash from financing activities (282,997,009) (24,993,559) (282,997,009) (24,993,559)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,611,996,243) 88,714,371 (1,566,181,157) 95,416,914
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Shrawan 01, 2081 4,716,277,304 4,589,230,815 4,714,599,338 4,602,873,647
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash
and cash equivalents held 61,748,186 38,332,119 17,052,296 16,308,776
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents at Ashad End, 2082 3,166,029,248 4,716,277,304 3,165,470,476 4,714,599,338
KESHAB TIMALSINA ANIL REGMI MADHAV PRASAD UPADHAYA DILIP PRATAP KHAND As per our report of even date

HEAD- FINANCE, ACCOUNTS DEPUTY CHIEF

& TREASURY DEPARTMENT EXECUTIVE OFFICER
SHYAM PRASAD BASYAL DEEPENDRA SHRESTHA
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
SHOVAKANTA DHAKAL IUSHMA KOIRALA
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DATE : 2082/06/27
PLACE : KATHMANDU

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

MUKUNDA RAJ ACHARYA

DIRECTOR

CHAIRMAN

BIMAL PANDEY

DIRECTOR

CA. PRAKASH LAMSAL
PARTNER,

PLRG ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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GARIMA BIKAS BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 32 Ashad 2082
(As per NRB Regulation)

Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 1,247,692,141 433,951,860
Appropriations:
a. General reserve (249,506,565) (86,790,372)
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund (160,744) (739,452)
c. Capital redemption reserve (166,666,667) (166,666,667)
d. Corporate social responsibility fund (12,476,921) (4,339,519)
e. Employees'training fund (18,922,445) (18,282,693)
f. Other = -
Investment Adjustment Reserve = -
Corporate social responsibility fund utilization 10,979,918 10,243,732
Employees' training fund utilization 9,648,0M 11,645,226
Unrealised Gain on Investment in Associates = -
Other Adjustment/restatement 159,316 14,214,494
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 820,746,043 193,236,611
Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) 85,730,424 73,447,344
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts(-)/reversal (+) = -
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) = -
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+) (229,561,221) 7,097,287
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) (53,918,056) 7,564,075
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) = -
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) = -
h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) (28,750,774) 42,324
i. Other (+/-) 2,590,485 1,710,012
Net profit for the year ended availaible for distribution 596,836,899 283,097,652
Opening Retained Earning as on Shrawan 1 286,403,056 517,658,780
Adjustment(+/-) = -
Distribution:
Bonus Share Issued = (488,414,941)
Cash Dividend Paid (284,025,866) (25,938,435)
Total Distributable Profit or (Loss) as on year end 599,214,090 286,403,057
Annualised Distributable Profit/Loss per Share 10.55 5.04
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GARIMA BIKAS BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNT

Year ended 32nd Ashad 2082

1. Reporting Entity 2. Basis of Preparation

1.1 General

Garima Bikas Bank Limited (hereinafter referred to
as “the Bank’) is National Level Development Bank
domiciled in Nepal, registered as a Public Limited
Company under Companies Act, 2063 and Banking and
Financial Institution Act, 2073.The Bank has been formed
after the successful merger of erstwhile Garima Bikas
Bank Limited, Nilgiri Bikas Bank limited, Subhechha
Bikas Bank limited and acquisition of Sahara Bikas Bank
Limited after the approval from Nepal Rastra Bank. The
Bank is a limited liability company having its shares listed
on Nepal Stock Exchange. The registered office of the
bank is situated at Kathmandu-02, Das Tower, Lazimpat.

1.2 Financial Statements

The Financial Statements of the Bank for the year ended
on July 16, 2025 comprises Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss, Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, Consolidated Statement of Change in Equity,
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements comprising summary
of Significant Accounting Policies and explanatory notes.

1.3 Principal activities and operations

of the Bank

The Bank is providing comprehensive range of financial
services including acceptance of deposits, corporate
and retail credit, hire purchase financing, micro credit,
trade financing, personal and corporate banking, foreign
currency transactions, issuing of debit/credit cards,
internet banking, mobile banking, remittance facilities,
dealing in government securities and treasury related
products, agency service and other ancillary services
permitted by Banking and Financial Institution Act 2073.

1.4 Subsidiary/Group

Garima Capital Limited is subsidiary company of the
bank and the bank holds 51.20% (i.e. NPR. 123,900,000/-
only) paid up capital. Garima Capital Limited is engaged
in Merchant Banking business and provides the service
of Depository Participants and Portfolio Management
Service.

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared on going
concern basis and under historical cost conventions
except where the standards require otherwise. The
financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) developed by the Accounting Standards Board,
Nepal (ASB, Nepal) and pronounced for application by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).
The financial statements comprise of Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash flows
and Notes to the Accounts on the format prescribed by
NRB Directive No. 4 of Unified Directives, 2081.

These Policies have been consistently applying to all the
years presented except otherwise stated.

2.2 Reporting Period and Approval of
Financial Statements

The Group follows the Nepalese financial year based
on Nepali calendar starting from 1st Shrawan 2081 and
ending on 32nd Ashad 2082 (16th July 2024 to 16th July
2025).

Approval of Financial Statements:

The accompanied financial statements have been
approved and authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors in its meeting held on Ashoj 27, 2082 and have
been recommended for approval by shareholders in the
Annual General Meeting.

2.3 Functional and Presentation
Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese
Rupees (NPR) which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Bank. The financial information
presented has been rounded off to nearest rupee except
where otherwise stated.



¥

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions

and Judgments

The management of the Bank, makes accounting
judgments, estimates and assumptions which have an
impact on the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses on the financial statements.
NFRS requires the Bank to exercise judgment in making
accounting estimates. The management believes that
these estimates and assumptions are reasonable and
prudent. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. The significant accounting policies
that relate to the financial statements along with the
judgments made are described herein. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Where an accounting policy is generally applicable to a
specific item, the policy is described within that relevant
note. Description of such estimates has been givenin the
relevant sections wherever they have been applied.

2.5 Changes in Accounting Policies
The Bank is required to adopt and apply the accounting
policies in conformity with NFRS, the accounting policies
are applied consistently; changes, if any, are disclosed
with the financial impact to the extent possible.

The Bank under NFRS, is required to apply accounting
policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances and
operating environment. Further, the Bank is required to
make judgments in respect of items where the choice of
specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be
followed could materially affect the financial statements.
This may later be determined that a different choice
could have been more appropriate. The accounting
policies have beenincluded in the relevant notes for each
item of the financial statements and the effect and the
nature of changes, if any, have been disclosed.

2.6 New Standards in issue that has
become effective from this year

NFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces NAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

NFRS 9 also replaces the existing incurred loss
impairment approach with an expected credit loss
approach, resulting in earlier recognition of credit
losses. The NFRS 9 impairment model has three stages.
Entities are required to recognize a 12-month expected
loss allowance on initial recognition based on the basis
of probability of default (PD) of the remaining maturity
period of the instrument (Stage 1)and a lifetime expected

loss allowance when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk (Stage 2). The assessment of
whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred
is a key aspect of the NFRS 9 methodology and involves
quantitative measures, such as forward-looking
probabilities of default, and qualitative factors and
therefore requires considerable management judgment.
Stage 3requires objective evidence of impairment, which
is similar to the guidance onincurred losses in previously
existing NAS 39. NFRS 9 requires the use of more
forward-looking information including reasonable and
supportable forecasts of future economic conditions.
The need to consider multiple economic scenarios
and how they could impact the loss allowance is a very
subjective feature of the NFRS 8 impairment model. Loan
commitments and financial guarantees not measured at
fair value through profit or loss are also in scope.

The Bank preparesits financial statementsinaccordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting with effect from FY
2074/75, impairment of financial assets is assessed using
the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model under NFRS 9, in
line with guidelines issued by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB).
This replaces the earlier incurred loss model under NAS
39.

Scope

ECL provisions are recognized on the following financial

instruments:

m Financial assets measured at amortized cost

m Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI)

m | ease receivables

m Contract assets

m L oan commitments (except those measured at FVTPL)

m Financial guarantee contracts

ECL Measurement
ECL represents a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses (present value of expected cash shortfalls) and is
determined using the following three key parameters:
m Probability of Default (PD): likelihood of default over a
specified horizon; minimum prudential floor of 2.5%
is applied.
m Loss Given Default (LGD) : proportion of
exposure not expected to be recovered in case of
default; minimum of 45% is applied where models
are not available. Collateral valuations are adjusted for
prescribed haircuts.
m Exposure at Default (EAD): expected exposure at the
time of default, including on-balance and off-balance
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sheet exposures, with Credit Conversion Factors (CCFs)
applied.

ECL=PDxLGD x EAD
Staging of Financial Assets
Financial assets are categorized into three stages based on
changes in credit risk since initial recognition:
m Stage 1: 12-month ECL is recognized.
m Stage 2 (Significant Increase in Credit Risk - SICR):
Lifetime ECL is recognized.
m Stage 3(Credit-impaired): Lifetime ECL isrecognized;
interest income is recognized on a cash basis.

Significant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) Indicators
The Bank determines SICR based on both quantitative and
qualitative factors, including but not limited to:
m More than 1months past due
m Absolute Lifetime PDis 5% or more
m Relative Lifetime PD is increased by 100% or more
m Risk rating (internal or external) downgraded by 2
notches since initial recognition
m Risk rating downgraded to non-investment grade by
external credit rating agency (BB+ or below) or by
bank's internal credit rating system
m Deterioration of relevant determinants of credit risk
(e.g future cash flows) for an individual obligor (or pool
of obligors)
m Expectation of forbearance or restructuring due to
financial difficulties
m Deterioration of prospects for sector or industries
within which a borrower operates
m Borrowers affected by macroeconomic conditions
based on reasonable and supportable forecasts.
Modification of terms resulting in restructuring/
rescheduling
m Credit Quality Indicators determined as per internal
credit assessment of performing loans which are
subject toindividual monitoring and review, are weaker
than that in the initial recognition
m Management decision to strengthen collateral and/or
covenant requirements for credit exposures because
of changes in the credit risk of those exposures since
initial recognition

Intial recognition is done as stage 1unless it is purchased or
credit impaired financial assets. Assets with no SICR and with
low credit risk at reporting date are also stage 1. Financial
assets with overdue upto 1months are also stage 1assets.

Financial instruments are classified under Stage 2 when there
is a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

This includes exposures with contractual payments overdue
for more than 1months but not exceeding 3 months, and loans
categorized as ‘Watchlist’ as per NRB prudential directives.
Loans without approved credit lines or those with credit lines
revoked by the bank are also included. Further, loans that have
been restructured or rescheduled but are not yet classified
as non-performing fall under this stage, except in cases
where changes arise from prepayments or adjustments in
instalments due to floating interest rate changes. Additionally,
exposures to non-investment grade financial instruments, i.e.
those rated BB+ or below, are also categorized under Stage 2.

Financial instruments are classified under Stage 3 when
contractual payments are overdue for more than 3 months or
when the Bank and Financial Institution (BFI) assesses that
the borrower is unlikely to meet its credit obligations in full
without realization of security. Indicators of unlikeliness to
pay include loans placed on non-accrual status, distressed
restructurings involving material concessions, bankruptcy
filings by either the borrower or the bank, sale of exposures at
a significant credit-related loss, or evidence that repayment
is dependent on collateral realization. Additionally, loans
classified as non-performing under NRB prudential directives
and other credit-impaired instruments showing objective
evidence of impairment are included. Such evidence may
consist of significant financial difficulty of the borrower,
breaches of contract such as default, concessions granted
due to financial distress, high probability of bankruptcy or
financial reorganization, disappearance of an active market
due to credit concerns, or origination/purchase of assets at a
deep discount reflecting incurred credit losses.

For the purpose of ECL calculation, portfolio has been
classified as in addition to staff loans, investment and off
balance sheet items:

a. Business Loans

b. Retail Loans

c. Microfinance Loans

d. Government Receivable

e. Micro Loans

2.7 Discounting

The Bank determines amortized cost of a financial asset
orafinancialliability using the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout
the expected life of a financial asset or a financial liability
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
liability. If expected life cannot be determined reliably,
then the contractual life is used.



%

3.

In case where the Group assesses that the transaction
amount of a financial asset or a financial liability does not
represent its fair value, the related future cash flows are
discounted at prevailing interest rate to determine the
initial fair value.

2.8 Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis, as the bank has the resources to continue
in business for the foreseeable future. In making this
assessment, the Board of Directors have considered a
wide range of information relating to present and future
conditions, including future projections of profitability,
cash flows and capital resources.

2.9 Limitation of NFRS Implementation

If the information is not available and the cost to develop
would exceed the benefit derived, such exception to
NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in
respective section.

Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these Financial
Statements, unless otherwise indicated.

3.1 Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements of the Bank have been prepared
under historical cost convention modified to include the
fair valuation to the extent required or permitted under
NFRS as set out in the relevant accounting policies,
financial information recorded and reported to comply
with the Directive of Nepal Rastra Bank and relevant
business practices followed by the Bank are disclosed
separately, where there have been deviations with
recognition and presentation criteria of NFRS.

3.2 Basis of Consolidation

The group consists of two Companies Namely, Garima
Bikas Bank Limited being its parent company and Garima
Capital Limited as its subsidiary.

A. BUSINESS COMBINATION

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method in line with the NFRS 03 "Business
Combination". The consideration transferred in the
acquisition and identifiable net assets acquired are
measured at fair value. Any goodwill that arises is tested
annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase

is recognized in profit or loss immediately. Transaction
costs are expensed asincurred, except if they are related
to the issue of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amount
related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships.
Such amount is generally recognized in profit or loss.
Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at
the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent
consideration that meets the definition of a financial
instrument is classified as equity, then it is not re-
measured and settlement is accounted for within equity.
Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss.

B. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

For each business combination, the Bank elects to

measure any non-controlling interests in the transferee

either:

m At fair value; or

m At their proportionate share of the transferee
identifiable net assets, which are generally at fair
value.

Changes in the Bank's interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners.
Adjustments to non-controlling interests are based on a
proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary.
No adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognized in profit or loss.

C. SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are all entities, including structured entities,
controlled by the Bank. The Bank controls an entity when
itis exposed to, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee. The
assessment of power is based on the Bank's practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of the entity
unilaterally for the Banks's own benefit and is subject
to reassessment if and when one or more elements of
control change. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which the Bank effectively obtains control.
Upon loss of control, the Bank stops consolidation and
where any interest in the subsidiary remains, then such
interest is measured to its fair value at the date control is
lost and the change in carrying amount is recognized in
the income statement.
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D. LOSS OF CONTROL

Upon the loss of control, the Bank derecognizes
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, carrying
amount of non-controlling interests and the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity related to
the subsidiary. Further parent's share of components
previously recognized in Other Comprehensive income
(OCl) is reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings
as appropriate. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss
of control is recognized in the profit or loss. If the bank
retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such
interest is measured at fair value at the date that control
is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-
accounted investee or in accordance with the Bank's
accounting policy for financial instruments depending on
the level of influence retained.

E. SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITY (SPE)

A Special Purpose Entity is an entity that has been
designed so that voting or similar rights are not the
dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity.
Contractual arrangements determine the rights and
therefore relevant activities of the special purpose
entity. Special Purpose Entities are generally created
to achieve a narrow and well-defined objective with
restrictions around their activities. Special purpose
entities are consolidated when the substance of the
relationship between the Bank and the special purpose
entity indicates the Bank has power over the contractual
relevant activities of the special purpose entity, is
exposed to variable returns, and can use that power to
affect the variable return exposure.

The bank does not have any interest on special purpose
entities during the reporting period.

F. TRANSACTION ELIMINATION ON CONSOLIDATION
Intra-group balances, transactions, and any unrealized
income and expenses (except for foreign currency
transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-group
transactionsare eliminatedin preparingthe Consolidated
Financial Statements as per the provision of NFRS
10 - Consolidated Financial Statement. Unrealized
gains arising from transactions with equity accounted
investees are eliminated against the investment to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealized
losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

3.3 Cash & Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent comprise short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value and carried at amortized cost. The
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow
statement include cash in hand, balances with banks,
money at call and money market funds and financial
assets with original maturity less than 3 months from the
date of acquisition.

3.4 Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

A. RECOGNITION

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of
loans and advances to customers and balances due
to customers, are initially recognized on the trade
date i.e. the date that the Bank becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Investments
in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government
securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos,
outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which
the Bank commits to purchase/acquire the financial
assets. Reqular way purchase and sale of financial assets
are recognized on trade date at which the Bank commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

B.CLASSIFICATION

The financial assets and liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost or fair value based on
business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets.

I. Financial Assets
TheBankclassifiesthefinancialassetsassubsequently
measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis
of the Bank's business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial assets.

Financial assets are classified under three categories
as required by NFRS 9, namely:

+« Financial Assets measured at amortized cost:
Financial assets that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest, are
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subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method less
impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and
loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Bank classifies a financial asset measured at
amortized cost if both of the following conditions
are met:

m The asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

m The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding

+ Financial Assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income:
Financial assets that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both,
selling financial assets and collecting contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest, are subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income.
Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCl).

+ Financial Assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss:
The Group classifies the financials assets as fair
value through profit or loss if they are held for
trading or designated at fair value through profit
or loss. Any other financial asset not classified as
either amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified as
FVTPL.

Il. Financial Liabilities:

Financial liabilities are classified under two
categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:

« Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair
value though profit or loss are classified as
subsequently measured at amortized cost using
effective interest method.

+ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction cost directly attributable to the
acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit
or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair
value is recognized at profit or loss.

C.MEASUREMENT

Initial Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is measured
initially at fair value plus or minus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. Transaction cost in relation to financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

i. Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried
at fair value, with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value taken directly to the statement
of profit or loss. Interest and dividend income or
expense is recorded in revenue according to the
terms of the contract, or when the right to payment
has been established.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
carried at fair value, with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value taken to Other
Comprehensive Income. The Bank makes
irrevocable election to route fair value changes
through Other Comprehensive Income. Gain/Loss
on equity instruments classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income is charged
directly to equity and impact of re-measurement is
shown in OCI.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost. Within this category loans and
advances to the customers have been recognized
at amortized cost using the method that very
closely approximates effective interest rate
method. The losses arising from impairment of such
investments are recognized in the income
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statement within credit loss expense. If the Bank
weretosellorreclassifymorethananinsignificant
amount of held-to-maturity investments before
maturity (other than in certain specific
circumstances), the entire category would be
tainted and would have to be reclassified as
available-for-sale.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost, with any difference between
proceeds net of directly attributable transaction
costs and the redemption value recognized in
the statement of profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

D.DE-RECOGNITION

De-recognition of Financial Assets

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or
where the Bank has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. If substantially all the risks
and rewards have been neitherretained nor transferred
and the Bank has retained control, the assets continue
to be recognized to the extent of the Bank’s continuing
involvement.

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the
obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the carrying value of the
original financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognized in profit or loss.

E.DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE

'Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Bank has access
at that date. The fair value of liability reflects its non-
performance risk.

Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which
fair values are disclosed have been classified into three

levels according to the observability of the significant
inputs used to determine the fair values. Changes in
the observability of significant valuation inputs during
the reporting period may result in a transfer of assets
and liabilities within the fair value hierarchy. The Bank
recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy when there is a significant change in either its
principal market or the level of observability of the inputs
to the valuation techniques as at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 1: Fair value measurements are those derived from
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuations are those with quoted prices for
similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices
for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets
and financial instruments valued using models where all
significant inputs are observable

Level 3: Portfolios are those where at least one input,
which could have a significant effect on the instrument’s
valuation, is not based on observable market data.

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an
instrument using quoted prices in an active market for
that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available and represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis.

If a market for a financial instrument is not active, the
Bank establishes fair value using a valuation technique.
Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length
transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties
(if available), reference to the current fair value of other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis. The best evidence of the fair value
of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the
transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration
given or received. However, in some cases, the fair value
of a financial instrument on initial recognition may be
different to its transaction price. If such fair value is
evidenced by comparison with other observable current
market transactions in the same instrument (without
modification) or based on a valuation technique whose
variables include only data from observable markets,
then the difference is recognized in profit or loss on
initial recognition of the instrument. In other cases, the
difference is not recognized in profit or loss immediately
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but is recognized over the life of the instrument on an
appropriate basis or when the instrument is redeemed,
transferred or sold, or the fair value becomes observable.
All unquoted equity investments are recorded at cost.
Promoter shares are valued at the last traded price of
reporting date of such shares and if information is not
available then promoter shares are valued at 50% of
market price of public shares as on reporting date.

F. IMPAIRMENT OF LOANS & ADVANCES
+« Impairment of loans and advances is done as per
ECL provision of NRFS 8 and NFRS 9- Expected
Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024 issued by
NRB. The details related to the same is outlined in
2.6.

« As per Loan Loss Provision of Nepal Rastra Bank
Loan loss provisions in respect of non-performing
loans and advances are based on management's
assessment of the degree of impairment of the loans
and advances, subject to the minimum provisioning
level prescribed in relevant NRB guideline, Provision
is made for possible losses on loans and advances
including bills purchased at 1.00% to 100% on the
basis of classification of loans and advances,
overdraft and bills purchased in accordance with
NRB directives.

Policy Adopted

As per the Carve out notice issued by ICAN, the Bank
has measuredimpairmentlossonloanandadvances
as the higher of amount derived as per norms
prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss
provision and amount determined as per ECL
provision of NFRS 9 and NFRS 9- Expected Credit
Loss Related Guidelines, 2024 issued by NRB.

G. IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS-

AVAILABLE FOR SALE

The Bank also records impairment charges on
available-for-sale equity investments when there
has been a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value below their cost along with the historical
share price movements, duration and extent up to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its
cost.

3.5 Trading Assets

Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held
for trading) if they have been acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the near term, or form part of

a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of
a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are
recognized on trade date, when the bank enters into
contractual arrangements with counterparties, and
are normally derecognized when sold. They are initially
measured at fair value, with transaction costs taken to
profit or loss. Subsequent changes in their fair values are
recognized in profit or loss.

3.6 Derivative Assets and Derivative
Liabilities

A derivative is a financial instrument whose value
changes in response to the change in an underlying
variable such as an interest rate, commodities, bond,
stocks, currencies, and index; that requires no initial
investment, or one that is smaller than would be required
for a contract with similar response to changes in market
factors; and that is settled at a future date.

Derivative instruments include transactions like interest
rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange
contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management
purposes. Derivative financial instruments are initially
measured at fair value on the contract date and are
subsequently re-measured to fair value at each reporting
date. The Group does not have any derivative instrument
during the reporting period.

3.7 Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition:

Property, Plant and Equipment are tangible items that
are held for use in the production or supply of services,
forrental to others or foradministrative purposes and are
expected to be used during more than one period. The
Bank applies the requirements of the Nepal Accounting
Standard - NAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) in
accounting for these assets. Property and Equipment are
recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the
cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Measurement:

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies
for recognition as an asset is initially measured at
its cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset and cost
incurred subsequently toadd to, replace part of anitem of
property, plant & equipment. The cost of self-constructed
assetsincludes the cost of materials and direct labor, any
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other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to
a working condition for its intended use and the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the
site on which they are located. Purchased software that
isintegral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalized as part of computer equipment. When parts
of anitem of property or equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major
components)of property, plant and equipment.

Cost Model:

Property and equipment is stated at cost excluding
the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Such
cost includes the cost of replacing part of the equipment
when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are
met.

Revaluation Model:
The Bank has not measured the any property and plant at
revaluation model and at fair value.

Subsequent Cost:

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable
that the future economic benefits from the expenditure
will flow to the Bank. Ongoing repairs and maintenance
to keep the assets in working condition are expensed
as incurred. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property and equipment (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying
amount of the item)is recognized within other income in
profit or loss.

Depreciation:

The Bank depreciates Property and equipment over the
estimated usefullife on a straight-line basis from the date
the assets are ready for intended use. Assets acquired
under finance lease and leasehold improvements are
amortized over the lower of estimated useful life and
lease term. The estimated useful lives of assets for the
current and comparative period of significant items of
Property and equipment are as follows:

ASSET GROUP USEFUL LIFE
Computer & Accessories 4 Years
Furniture & Fixtures 7 Years
Furniture (Metal) 10 Years
Machineries 9 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Other Assets 5 Years
Vehicles 5 Years
Leasehold Properties Lease Term

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of
financial position date. The value of the assets fully
depreciated but continued to be in use is considered not
material. Assets having acquisition cost less than 5,000
have been written off as an expense in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.

3.8 Goodwill/Intangible Assets

A. ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value,
which reflects market expectations of the probability
that the future economic benefits embodied in the
asset will flow to the Bank and are amortized on the
basis of their expected useful lives.

B. GOODWILL

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business
Combination is recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. The Group follows the partial goodwill method for
the computation of goodwill in business combinations.
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more
frequently, if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

C.INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

Intangible assets are recognized when the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably, there is control over
the asset as a result of past events, future economic
benefits are expected from the asset. These intangible
assets are recognized at historical cost less impairment
less amortization over their estimated useful life.
Amortization of the intangible assets is calculated using
the straight-line method over the useful life of 5 years.

D. COMPUTER SOFTWARE

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. Costs associated with the
development of software are capitalized where it is
probable that it will generate future economic benefits
in excess of its cost. Software is amortized on a straight-
line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful life,
from the date that it is available for use. The estimated
useful life of software for the current and comparative
periods is five years. Software assets with costs less
than NPR 5,000 are charged off on purchases as revenue
expenditure. Costs associated with maintaining software
are recognized as an expense as incurred.
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At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for
indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset's
carrying amount is determined to be greater than
its recoverable amount, the asset is written down
immediately. Amortization methods, useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Subsequent Expenditure

Expenditure incurred on software is capitalized only
when it is probable that this expenditure will enable the
asset to generate future economic benefits in excess
of its originally assessed standard of performance and
this expenditure can be measured and attributed to
the asset reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as
incurred. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets, except for goodwill, are amortized on
a straight-line basis in the Statement of Profit or Loss
from the date when the asset is available for use, over
the best of its useful economic life based on a patternin
which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the
bank. Amortization methods, useful lives, residual values
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if
appropriate. The Bank assumes that there is no residual
value for its intangible assets.

De-recognition of Intangible Assets

The carrying amount of an item of intangible asset is
derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss
arising on derecognition of an item of intangible assets
is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the
item is derecognized.

3.9 Investment Property and Non-
Current Assets held for Sale

A.INVESTMENT PROPERTY

As per the provisions of NAS-40, Investment properties
are land or building or both other than those classified as
property and equipment under NAS 16 - "Property, Plant
and Equipment”; and assets classified as non-current
assets held for sale under NFRS 5 - “Non-Current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”. Land and
Building acquired by the Bank as non-banking assets but
not sold as on the reporting date

The Bank holds investment property that has been
acquired though enforcement of security over the loans
and advances. Accordingly, Investment properties
include the assets obtained as security for loans &
advances and subsequently taken over by the Bank in the
course of loan recovery.

Measurement

Investment property is accounted for under Cost Modelin
the Financial Statements. Accordingly, after recognition
as an asset, the property is carried at its cost, less
impairment losses. If any property is reclassified to
investment property due to changes in its use, fair value
of such property at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for subsequent accounting.

De-recognition

Investment properties are derecognized when they are
disposed off or permanently withdrawn from use since
no future economic benefits are expected. Transfers are
made to and from investment property only when there is
achangeinuse. When the use of aproperty changes such
that it is reclassified as Property, Plant and Equipment,
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
cost for subsequent accounting.

B. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

AND DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Land or Land and Building other than those classified as
property and equipment and investment property under
relevant accounting standard are presented under this
account head. The Non-Banking Assets acquired by the
Bank is classified as assets held for sale only if there
is intention to sale with identification of prospective
buyer has been identified. The bank doesn't have any
Land or building classified under Asset held for sale and
Discontinued operation.

3.10 Income Tax

The accounting for taxes on income is as per NAS 12,
Provision for current income tax is made in accordance
with the provisions of the prevailing Income Tax Act, 2058
and Rules including amendments thereon. Tax expense
is the aggregate amount included in determination of
profit or loss for the period in respect of current and
deferred taxation. Income Tax expense is recognized in
the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it
relates to items recognized directly in equity or other
comprehensive income in which case it is recognized
in equity or in other comprehensive income. The
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Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to tax authorities.

Tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

A.CURRENT TAX

Current tax is the income tax expense recognized in
the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it
relates to items recognized directly in equity or other
comprehensive income in which case it is recognized
in equity or in other comprehensive income. Current
tax is the amounts expected or paid to Inland Revenue
Department in respect of the current year, using the tax
rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on
the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of prior years.

B.DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the balance sheet and the amounts attributed to
such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to
apply in the periods in which the assets will be realized
or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates and laws
enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
they arise in the same tax reporting group and relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and
when the group has a legal right to offset.

3.11 Deposit, debt securities issued and
subordinated liabilities

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated
liabilities are the Bank's sources of funding.

A.DEPOSIT

Deposits include non-interest bearing deposits, saving
deposits, term deposits, call deposits and margin
deposits. Deposits by banks & customers are financial
liabilities of the bank as there is an obligation to deliver
cash or financial assets back to the depositing bank or

customer and are initially recognized at fair value, plus
for those financial liabilities not at fair value through
profit and loss. The transaction price is considered as
the fair value for measuring the deposits.

B.DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

Debt Securities areinitially measured at the fair value less
incremental direct transaction cost and subsequently
measured at theiramortized cost using effective interest
method except where the bank designates liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss.

C.SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES

Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the
event of winding up are subordinate to the claims of
depositors, debt securities issued and other creditors.
The bank does not have any of such subordinated
liabilities.

3.12 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Commitments

A.PROVISIONS

As per the provisions of NAS 37, “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” A provision is
recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has
a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
The amount recognized is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the reporting date, taking in to account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date.

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is determined based on the present value of
those cash flows. A provision for onerous contracts is
recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by
the Bank from a contract are lower than the unavoidable
cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision is measured as the present value of the lower
of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.
Provision is not recognized for future operating losses.

Before a provision is established, the Bank recognizes
any impairment loss on the assets associated with
that contract. The expense relating to any provision is
presented in the Statement of Profit or Loss net of any
reimbursement.
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B.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingent Liabilities:

Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on
behalf of its customers for guarantees issued, such as
for performance bonds or as irrevocable letters of credit
as part of the Bank's transaction banking business for
which an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at
the reporting date, those are included in these financial
statements as contingent liabilities.

Other contingent liabilities primarily include revocable
letters of credit and bonds issued on behalf of customers
to customs, for bids or offers.

Commitments:

Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide
funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the
form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether
cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Bank
has not made payments at the reporting date, those
instruments are included in this financial statement as
commitments.

Litigation:

Litigations are anticipated in the context of business
operations due to the nature of the transactionsinvolved.
The Bank is involved in various such legal actions in the
normal course of business and the controls have been
established to deal with such legal claims. There are
pending litigations existing as at the end of the reporting
period against the Bank, resulting through normal
business operations.

3.13 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during
the period arising from the course of the ordinary
activities of an entity when those inflows result in
increases in equity, other than increases relating to
contributions from equity participants. Revenue is
recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized during
the period in which its recoverability of income is not
probable. The Bank's revenue comprises of -

m Interest Income

m Fees and Commission

m Dividend Income

m Net Trading Income

m Net income from other financial instrument at fair
value through Profit or Loss

A.INTEREST INCOME

Considering the technical challenges related to
implementation of expected credit loss in initial years
including that of effective interest rate, guidance note
on Interest Income Recognition, 2025 has beenissued by
NRB in order to streamline interest income recognition
practices across the banking industry.

Paragraph 5.4.1of NFRS 9 requires an entity to apply the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of a credit-
impaired financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.
Paragraph BC5.74 of IFRS 9- 'Basis for Conclusions'
explains that if a financial asset is credit-impaired at
the reporting date, an entity should change the interest
revenue calculation at the beginning of the following
reporting period.

Similarly, Paragraph 5.4.2 of NFRS 9 requires an entity
to calculate interest revenue, in subsequent reporting
periods, by applying effective interest method to gross
carrying amount if the credit risk on the financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Interest income recognition for each quarter shall be
based on stage of financial assets as on previous quarter
end. (not on current quarter end).

Financial assets are classified into Stage 1, Stage 2, or
Stage 3based ontheircredit riskand expected creditloss
assessment. For assets existing at the previous quarter-
end, the stage is determined as per their classification
at that date. For new financial assets recognized during
the quarter, the stage is determined at initial recognition.
Interest income for each financial asset for the quarteris
computed based on the identified stage, in accordance
with the transitional arrangement plan prescribed.

Under transitional arrangement plan for FY 81/82 and
82/83, interest income on financial assets is recognized
based on their stage classification. For Stage 1and Stage
2 financial assets, interest income is recognized on an
accrual basis using the coupon rate or effective interest
rate, and any interest suspense at the beginning of the
quarterisalsoincluded ininterest income for the current
quarter. For Stage 3 financial assets, interest income
is adjusted against the movement in accrued interest
receivable during the current quarter and the interest
suspense at the beginning of the quarter, and only cash-
based interest received during the quarter is recognized
asincome.
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B.FEES AND COMMISSION

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period
of time are accrued over that period. These fees include
Service fees, Loan administrative fees and Commission
income. Fees and Commission Income being the
transaction costs is integral to the effective interest rate
on financial asset. However, as per the Carve out issued
by ICAN regarding the treatment of fee and commission
in EIR rate, fees to be considered for EIR computation
unless it is impracticable to determine reliably. Since,
such transaction costs are not identifiable for separate
customer and therefore being impracticable, they have
not been considered when computing EIR. They have
been booked on accrual basis except commission on
guarantees issued by the bank which is recognized as
income over the period of the guarantee. Other fee and
commission income are recognized on accrual basis.

C.DIVIDEND INCOME

Dividend incomes are recognized on actual receive basis.
Usually this is the ex-dividend date for equity securities.
Dividends are presented in net trading income, net
income from other financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss or other revenue based on the
underlying classification of the equity investment.

D.NET TRADING INCOME

Net trading income comprises gains less losses relating
to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realized
interest, dividend and foreign exchange differences as
well as unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets
and liabilities.

E.NET INCOME FROM OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
of financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss are included in the statement of profit or
lossinthe period in which they arise. Contractual interest
income and expense on financial instruments held at
fair value through profit or loss is recognized within net
interest income.

3.14 Interest Expenses:

For financial liabilities measured at amortized cost using
the rate that closely approximates effective interest
rate, interest expense is recorded using such rate.
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability.

3.15 Employee Benefit:

Employee benefits include:

A.SHORT TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

These are employee benefits which fall due wholly within
twelve months in which the employees render the related
service. Such as the following:

i. Wages, salaries and social security contributions,
ii. Festival Allowances, rewards and other incentives,
iii. Paid annual leave and paid sick leave
iv.Profit-sharing and bonuses and

v. Non-monetary benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
service is provided. A liability is recognized for the
amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonus
or profit sharing plans if the Bank has present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

b. Long Term Employee Benefits:
m Defined Contribution Plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment
benefit plan under which a Bank pays fixed
contribution into a separate Bank (a fund) and will
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits
relating to employee services in the current and
prior periods, as defined in Nepal Accounting
Standards - NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

The contribution payable by the employer to a
defined contribution plan in proportion to the
services rendered to Bank by the employees and is
recorded as an expense under ‘Personnel expense’
as and when they become due. Unpaid contribution
isrecorded as a liability under ‘Other Liabilities'.

Bank contributed 10% on the salary of each
employee to the Employees’” Provident Fund.
The above expenses are identified as contributions
to ‘Defined Contribution Plans’ as defined in Nepal
Accounting Standards - NAS 19(Employee Benefits).

m Defined Benefit Plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit
plan other than a defined contribution plan.
Accordingly, leave encashment and gratuity has
been considered as defined benefit plans as per
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NAS 19 (Employee Benefits). Net Obligation in DBP
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods and discounting that benefit to
determine its present value and then deducting
the fair value of any plan assets. Bank recognizes all
actuarial gains and losses arising from DBP in the
Other Comprehensive Income and expenses related
to DBP under personnel expense in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

Under NFRS, the actuarial gains and losses form
part of remeasurement of the net defined
benefit liability / asset which is recognized in Other
Comprehensive income (OCI). Also, the tax
effect of the same has also been recognized in
Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) under NFRS.
Some assumptions used by actuarial valuator for
valuation are as under:

- Discount Rate: Management estimation of 9%
has been considered as discounting rate for
defined benefit calculation.

- Expected Return on Plan Asset: Management
estimation of 10% has been considered as
discounting rate for defined benefit calculation.

- Salary Escalation Rate: Management estimation
of 4% after considering the expected earnings
inflation as well as performance and seniority
related increase.

- Withdrawal rate: Management estimation on the
basis of 6% on the basis of expected long term
future employee turnover within the organization.

- Expected average remaining working lives of
the employees: 18.84 Years

Gratuity
An actuarial valuation is carried out every year to
ascertain the full liability under gratuity.

Bank's obligation in respect of defined benefit
obligation is calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned
for their service in the current and prior periods
and discounting that benefit to determine its
present value, then deducting the fair value of any
plan assets to determine the net amount to be
shown in the Statement of Financial Position.
The value of a defined benefit asset is restricted
to the present value of any economic benefits

available in the form of refunds from the plan

or reduction on the future contributions to the
plan. In order to calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any
minimum funding requirement that apply to any
plan in Bank. An economic benefit is available to
Bank if it is realizable during the life of the plan, or
on settlement of the plan liabilities.

Bank determines the interest expense on the
defined benefit liability by applying the discount
rate used to measure the defined benefit liability at
the beginning of the annual period to the defined
benefit liability at the beginning of the annual
period. The discount rate istheyield at the reporting
date on government bonds that have maturity dates
approximating to the terms of Bank's obligations.

The increase in gratuity liabilities attributable to
the services provided by employees during the year
ended 16th July, 2025 (current service cost) has
been recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss
under ‘Personnel Expenses’ together with the net
interest expense. Bank recognizes the total
actuarial gain and loss that arises in calculating
Bank's obligation in respect of gratuity in other
comprehensive income during the period in which it
occurs.

The demographic assumptions underlying the
valuation are retirement age (58 vyears) early
withdrawal from service and retirement on medical
grounds.

m Other long term employee benefits

Other long term employee benefits are all employee
benefits other than short term employee benefits,
post-employment benefits and terminal benefits.
Accordingly, leave encashment plan of the Bank has
been considered as Other Long Term Employee
Benefits as per Nepal Accounting Standards - NAS
19 (Employee Benefits).

m Employee Bonus
Employee bonus shall be calculated at the rate of
10% of Profit before bonus and tax.

3.16 Finance and Operating Leases:

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease,
or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the
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fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys
a right to use the asset. NFRS 16 ‘Leases’ is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st Shrawan 2078.
A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset
(ROU) representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. The main reason for this change
is that this approach will result in a more comparable
representation of a lessee’s assets and liabilities in
relation to other companies and, together with enhanced
disclosures, will provide greater transparency of alessee’s
financial leverage and capital employed. The standard
permits a lessee to choose either a full retrospective or
a modified retrospective transition approach. The Bank
recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at
the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove any improvements made
to branches or office premises. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method
from the commencement date to the end of the lease
term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for
certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, and Bank's incremental borrowing rate.
Generally, the Bank uses its incremental borrowing rate
as the discount rate.

Average base rate of commercial banks published by
Nepal Rastra Bank for the relevant financial year has
been considered as its incremental borrowing rate i.e.
10%.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following:

m Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed
payments, less any lease incentives receivable

m Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

m Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee and

m The exercise price under a purchase option that the
Bank is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
in an optional renewal period if the Bank is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties
for early termination of a lease unless the Bank is
reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. It is re-measured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from
a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
Bank's estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, if the Bank changes
its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option or if thereisarevised in-
substance fixed lease payment. When the lease liability
is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment
is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. The
Bank presents right-of-use assets under property and
equipment (Note 4.13) and lease liabilities under other
liabilities (Note 4.23) in the Statement of Financial
Position. The interest expenses on lease liability,
depreciation charges on right of use assets and short
term lease payment has been presented under interest
expenses (4.29) and depreciation and amortization (4.38)
respectively in the statement of profit or loss.

Simplified approach permitted by Standard for Low-
Value Leases:

The Bank has elected to recognize right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for all the leases including low value
leases.

3.17 Foreign Currency Translation

All foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency, which is Nepalese Rupees, using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates when the
transactions were affected.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are translated to
Nepalese Rupees using the spot foreign exchange rate
ruling at that date and all differences arising on non-
trading activities are taken to ‘Other Operating Income’
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in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The foreign currency
gains or loss on monetary items is the difference
between amortized cost in the functional currency at the
beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest
and payments during the period, and the amortized cost
in foreign currency translated at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period.

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured in terms of historical cost are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items in foreign currency
measured at fair value are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement
or reporting of monetary items at rates different from
those which were initially recorded are dealt with in
the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, foreign
currency differences arising on available-for sale equity
instruments are recognized in other comprehensive
income. Forward exchange contracts are valued at the
forward market rates ruling on the reporting date.

3.18 Financial Guarantee and Loan
Commitments

Financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due. Financial guarantee
contracts may have various legal forms, such as a
guarantee, some types of letter of credit, etc.

Where the bank has confirmed its intention to provide
funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the
form of loans, overdrafts, etc. whether cancellable or not
and the bank had not made payments at the reporting
date, those instruments are included in these financial
statements as commitments.

3.19 Share Capital & Reserves

A.SHARE CAPITAL

Financial instruments issues are classified as equity
when there is no contractual obligation to transfer
cash, other financial assets or issue available number
of own equity instruments. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are
recognized in equity in the period in which they are
declared.

The share issue expenses which can be avoided for the
issue was charged in the year of issue directly through
equity and disclosed in statement of changes in equity.
Tax impact is also disclosed.

B.RESERVES
The reserves include regulatory and free reserves.

< Retained Earnings
The bank has to appropriate different reserves from
retained earnings. Retained earnings comprises of
current Fiscal Year profit and any non-distributed
profit of preceding Fiscal Years.

< General Reserve

The Bank is required to appropriate a minimum 20%
of current year’s net profit into this heading each year
until it becomes double of paid up capital and then
after a minimum 10% of profit each year. This reserve
is not available for distribution to shareholders in any
form and requires specific approval of the central bank
for any transfers from this heading.

X3

’0

Exchange Equalization Reserve

The Bank is required to appropriate 25% of current
year's total revaluation gain (except gain from
revaluation of Indian Currency)into this heading.

3

Assets Revaluation Reserve

Any Reserve created from revaluation of assets
(such as Property & Equipment, Intangible Assets,
Investment Property) shall be presented under this
heading. Revaluationreserves often serve as a cushion
againstunexpectedlossesbut maynotbe fullyavailable
to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent
deterioration in market value and tax consequences of
revaluation. The Bank has followed cost model
therefore no assets revaluation reserve is created.

X3

Capital Reserve

The capital reserve represents the amount of those
reserves which are in nature of capital and which shall
not be available for distribution of cash dividend. The
amount from share forfeiture due to non-payment of
remaining amount for the unpaid shares, capital grants
received in cash or kind, capital reserve arising out

>
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X3

’0

X3

X3

’0
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of merger and acquisition etc. are presented under
this heading.

Special Reserve

Any special reserve that is created as per the specific
requirement of NRB directive or special instruction
of NRB are represented as special reserve. The amount
allocated to this reserve by debiting retained earning
account are presented under this heading.

Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

The Bank is required to appropriate an amount
equivalent to 1% of net profit into this fund annually.
The fund is created towards funding the Bank's
corporate social responsibility expenditure during
the subsequent year. Balance in this fund is directly
reclassified to retained earnings in the subsequent
year to the extent of payments made under corporate
social responsibility activities.

Debenture Redemption Reserve

The Bank is required to maintain a redemption reserve
in respect of borrowing raised through debenture
issuance. As per the terms of NRB approval relating
to the Bank's debenture issuance, the Bank is annually
required to transfer 16.67% of the debenture’s face
value to redemption reserve. such provision shall not
be applicable in the year of issue.

Employee Training Fund

The Bank is required to incur expenses towards
employee training and development for an amount
that is equivalent to at least 3% of the preceding year’s
salary and allowance. Any shortfall amount in meeting
this mandatory expense requirement in the current
year will have to be transferred to this reserve fund
throughappropriation of net profitand the amount shall
accumulate in the fund available for related expenses
in the subsequent year. Balance in this fund is directly
reclassified to retained earnings in the subsequent
year to the extent of expenses made for employees
training related activities.

Investment Adjustment Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve Directive No 8. Of
Nepal Rastra Bank's Unified Directives requires, the
bank has to create the investment reserve of an
amount equivalent to the investment in equity shares
if the shares remained unquoted for 3 years from the
date of investment.

< Regulatory Reserve

Thisisanon-freestatutoryreserveandisarequirement
asprescribedinNRBdirective. Inthetransitionto NFRS
from previous GAAP the Bank is required to reclassify
all amounts that are resultant of re-measurement
adjustments and that are recognized in retained
earnings into this reserve heading. The amount
reclassified to this reserve includes:

m Re-measurement adjustments such as interest
income recognized against interest receivables i.e.
Accrued Interest Receivable after considering
effect of bonus and income tax

m Amount equals to deferred tax assets,

m Actuarial loss recognized in other comprehensive
income,

m Amount of goodwill recognized under NFRS.

m Non-Banking assets after taking effect of bonus
and income tax

e

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) Reserve

Actuarial Gain/ loss Reserve has been created to
record the Actuarial gain or loss occurring due to
change in actuarial assumption under NAS 19. The
gainorloss has been disclosed under this reserve after
presentation through Other Comprehensive Income.

’0

X3

’0

Fair Value Reserve
AssetsthatarenotclassifiedasFairValuethroughProfit
and Loss, held to maturity and Loans and Receivables
are categorized as Available for Sale (AFS) financial
instruments. The Bank has under requlatory provisions
a requirement to appropriate the upward movements
in fair value under AFS reserve. The accounting of gain
or loss in the fair value movement of AFS Financial
Assets is done though other comprehensive income.

< Other reserve
Any reserve created with specific or non-specific
purpose (except stated in above) are presented under
this by disclosing accounting heads.

3.20 Earnings per Share

Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS)
data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders of Bank by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit and
loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders and the
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weightedaverage number of ordinary sharesoutstanding,
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if
any.

Earnings per share is calculated and presented in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.21 Segment Reporting

The Bank's segmental reporting is in accordance with
NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating segments
are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the bank's management, which
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments. Income and

expenses directly associated with each segment are
included in determining business segment performance.
The bank has identified geographical segments as well
on the basis of branches and clusters located all over
the country. Segment report include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on areasonable basis.

3.22 Dividend on Ordinary Shares

Dividend on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability
and deducted from equity when they are approved by
the Bank's shareholders. Interim Dividend is deducted
from equity when they are declared and no longer at
the discretion of the Bank. Dividend for the year that
is approved after the reporting date is disclosed as an
event after the reporting date.

3.23 Cash Flow Statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared whereby
gross cash receipts and gross cash payments of
operating activities, finance activities and investing
activities have been recognized.

3.24 Comparative Figure

The comparative figures and phrases have been
rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the
current year's presentation.
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iR gfdera R0e/ ¢ @ 222

4.1
Amount in NPR

GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Cash in Hand 842,800,993 640,950,543 842,670,643 640,815,628
Balances with B/Fis 2,323,228,255 4,075,326,762 2,322,799,833 4,073,783,710
Money at call and short notice = - = -
Other = - = -
Total 3,166,029,248 4,716,277,304 3,165,470,476 4,714,599,338

"The fair value of cash and cash equivalent is its carrying value. Cash at vault is adequately insured for physical and financial risks.
The amount of cash at vault is maintained on the basis of the liquidity and business requirements. Balance with BFls includes

balance maintained at various banks and financial institutions.

DUE FROM NEPAL RASTRA BANK

4.2
Amount in NPR

GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Statutory balances with NRB 3,753,067,566 3,743,827,484 3,753,067,566 3,743,827,484
Securities purchased under resale agreement = - = -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB 25,470,126 5,789,983 25,470,126 5,789,983
Total 3,778,537,693 3,749,617,466 3,778,537,693 3,749,617,466

The fair value of balance with the Nepal Rastra Bank(NRB)is its carryingamount itself. Balance with the NRB s principally maintained

as a part of the regulatory cash reserve ratio required by NRB.

PLACEMENTS WITH BANK AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

4.3
Amount in NPR

GROUP

BANK

PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81

2081-82 2080-81

Placement with domestic B/Fls = -
Placement with Foreign B/Fls = -
Less: Allowances for impairement = -

Total - -
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

4.4
Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS

GROUP

BANK

2081-82 2080-81

2081-82

2080-81

Held for trading

Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Total

OTHER TRADING ASSETS

45
Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS

GROUP

BANK

2081-82 2080-81

2081-82

2080-81

Treasury Bills

Government bond

NRB bonds

Domestic Corporate bonds
Equities

Other

Total

Pledged
Non- Pledged

LOAN AND ADVANCES TO B/Fls

4.6
Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS

GROUP

BANK

2081-82 2080-81

2081-82

2080-81

Loan to Microfinance Institutions
Other
Less: Allowances for Impairment

4,620,395,248 4,387,960,748

(46,178,977) (54,825,376)

4,620,395,248

(46,178,977)

4,387,960,748

(54,825,376)

Total

4,574,216,271 4,333,135,372

4,574,216,271

4,333,135,372

The loans have been provided to Microfinance Institutions in the normal course of business including the accured interest amounting

NPR 2,487,505
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ALLOWANCES FOR IMPAIRMENT 46.1
Amountin NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Balance as at Shrawan 1 54,825,376 39,143,870 54,825,376 39,143,870
Impairment loss for the year: = - = -
Charge for the year (8,646,399) 15,681,506 (8,646,399) 15,681,506
Recoveries/Reversal = - = -
Amount written off - - - -
Balance as at Ashad end 46,178,977 54,825,376 46,178,977 54,825,376
LOAN AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 417
Amountin NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81

Loans and advances measured at amortized Cost
Less: Impairment allowances
Individual Impairment
Collective Impairment
Net amount
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL

73.086,010,938
(3.042,892,433)
(912,423,741)
69,130,694,763

67,890,131,35
(2,622,904,296)
(676,709,743)
64,530,517,896

73,086,010,938
(3.042,892,433)
(912,423,741)
69,130,694,763

67,890,131,835
(2,622,904,296)
(676,709,743)
64,530,517,896

Total 69,130,694,763 64,590,517,896 69,130,694,763 64,590,517,896
Above impairment is as per NRB directive no. 2 which is higher than total impairment as per NFRS 9.
ANALYSIS OF LOAN AND ADVANCES -BY PRODUCT 471
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Product
Long Term loans = - = -
Personal 14,942,115,252 14,105,497,630 14,942,115,252 14,105,497,630
Business 14,969,748,250 12,781,518,035 14,969,748,250 12,781,518,035

Working Capital
Overdraft (Personal)
Cash Credit Loan
Trust Receipt/Import Loans
Short Term WC/Demand Loan
Personal Residential Loans
Real Estate Loans
Margin Lending Loans
Hire Purchase Loans
Deprived Sector Loans
Bills Purchased

892,205,257
2,488,142,157
5,783,508,956
175,682,889
16,258,213,974
3,247,439,821
3,061,403,660
2,189,100,644
1,267,372,847

620,446,642

462,148,807
2,996,779,716
5,756,061,020

168,449,888
14,611,483,218
2,674,101,440
1,770,833,610
2,473,738,419
1,9983,460,850

543,824,352

892,205,257
2,488,142,157
5,783,508,956
175,682,889
16,258,213,974
3,247,439,821
3,051,403,660
2,189,100,644
1,267,372,847

620,446,642

462,148,807
2,996,779,716
5,756,061,020

168,449,888
14,611,483,218
2,674,101,440
1,770,833,610
2,473,738,419
1,993,460,850

543,824,362

Staffs Loans

Other 6,828,331,924 6,989,505,919 6,828,331,924 6,989,505,919
Sub Total 72,713,712,27 67,327,392,905 72,713,712,27 67,327,392,905
Interest Receivable 372,298,667 562,739,029 372,298,667 562,739,029
Grand Total 73,086,010,938 67,890,131,935 73,086,010,938 67,890,131,935
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ANALYSIS OF LOAN AND ADVANCES - BY CURRENCY

4.7.2

Amountin NPR

PARTICULARS

GROUP

2081-82

2080-81

2081-82

2080-81

Nepalese Rupee
Indian Rupee
United States Dollar
Great Britain Pound
Euro

Japanese Yen
Chinese Yuan

Other

73,086,010,938

67,890,131,835

73.086,010,938

67,890,131,935

Grand Total

73,086,010,938

67,890,131,935

73,086,010,938

67,890,131,935

ANALYSIS OF LOAN AND ADVANCES - BY COLLATERAL

4.7.3

Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS

GROUP

2081-82

2080-81

2081-82

2080-81

Secured
Moveable/Immoveable Assets
Gold and Silver
Guarantee of Domestic BFls
Government Guarantee
Guarantee of International Rated Bank
Collateral of Export Document
Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt
Collatereal of Government Securities
Counter Guarantee
Personal Guarantee
Other Collateral

67,623,189,545
1,110,532,245

565,431,968

2,976,307,713

63,213,900,648
1,021,529,487

877,947,788

1,773,885,687

67,623,189,545
1,110,632,245

565,431,968

2,976,307, 713

63,213,900,648
1,021,529,487

877,947,788

1,773,885,687

Sub Total 72,265,461,472 66,887,263,609 72,265,461,472 66,887,263,609
Unsecured 820,549,466 1,002,868,325 820,549,466 1,002,868,325
Grand Total 73,086,010,938 67,890,131,935 73,086,010,938 67,890,131,935




ALLOWANCES FOR IMPAIRMENT

aTfifer ufdaeT R0/ R

Y

4.7.4

Amount in NPR

BANK

PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 2,622,904,296 926,956,811 2,622,904,296 926,956,811
Impairment loss for the year: 419,988,138 1,695,947,485 419,988,138 1,695,947,485

Charge for the year 419,988,138 1,695,947,485 419,988,138 1,695,947,485

Recoveries/reversal during the year = - = -
Write- offs = - = -
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment = - = -
Other movement = - = -
Balance at Ashad end 3,042,892,433 2,622,904,296 3,042,892,433 2,622,904,296
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 676,709,743 677,296,450 676,709,743 677,296,450
Impairment loss for the year: 235,713,998 (586,708) 235,713,998 (586,708)
Charge/(reversal)for the year 235,713,998 (586,708) 235,713,998 (586,708)
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment = - = -
Other movement = - = -
Balance at Ashad end 912,423,741 676,709,743 912,423,741 676,709,743
Total allowances for impairment 3,955,316,174 3,299,614,038 3,955,316,174 3,299,614,038

INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES 4.8

Amount in NPR
BANK

PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81

Investment securities designated at FVTPL 305,116,073 200,680,244 = -

Investment securities measured at amortized cost 18,964,239,596 15,859,318,176 18,964,239,596 15,959,318,176

Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 1,257,912,577 691,653,709 1,231,473,377 673,254,109

Total 20,527,268,246 16,851,652,128 20,195,712,972 16,632,572,284

Investment made by the development bank has been presented under this account head in two categoriesi.e. investment securities
measured at amortized cost and investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Investment
other than those measured at amortized cost is measured at fair value and changes in fair value has been recognized in other
comprehensive income. Where income from the investment is received in the form of bonus shares, the valuation of investment is
made by increasing the number of shares without changing in the cost of investment.

INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES MEASURED AT AMORTIZED COST

4.8.1
Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS

BANK

2081-82

2080-81

2081-82

2080-81

Debt Securities

Government Bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposit instruments
Other

Less: Specific allowances for impairment

13,145,089,596

5,819,150,000

13,447,638,938
2,611,679,238

13,145,089,596

5,819,150,000

13,447,638,938
2,611,679,238

Total

18,964,239,596

15,959,318,176

18,964,239,596

15,959,318,176

Government Bonds Balance is inclusive of Accrued Interest Receivable amounting Rs 202,864,595.60
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INVESTMENT IN EQUITY MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

4.8.2
Amount in NPR

GROUP BANK

PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Equity Instrument - - - -

Quoted equity securities 1,096,634,995 644,022,555 1,096,634,995 644,022,555

Unquoted equity securities 161,277,582 47,631,154 134,838,382 29,231,554
Total 1,257,912,577 691,653,709 1,231,473,377 673,254,109
INFORMATION RELATING TO INVESTMENT IN EQUITIES 4.8.3

Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIR VALUE

Investment in quoted equity
1 Chilime Hydropower Company Limited

23,033 Shares of Rs. 100 Each 8,386,161 12,286,954 8,386,161 9,736,635 8,386,161 12,286,954 8,386,161 9,736,635
2 Laxmi Equity Fund

.......... Unit of Rs. 10 Each = - 17,548,750 16,618,666 = - 17,548,750 16,618,666
3 Siddhartha Equity Fund

1,721,461 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 17,787,432 17,713,834 17,787,432 14,443,058 17,787,432 17,713,834 17,787,432 14,443,058
4 Sanima Equity Fund

......... Unit of Rs. 10 Each = - 24,000,000 26,184,000 = - 24,000,000 26,184,000
5 Citizens Mutual Fund-1

......... Unit of Rs. 10 Each = - 10,000,000 9,640,000 = - 10,000,000 9,640,000
6 N.I.C. Asia Growth Fund

500,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each = - 5,000,000 4,950,000 = - 5,000,000 4,950,000
7 Sagarmatha LumbiniInsurance

Co. Limited

152 Shares of Rs. 100 Each 87,351 110,366 87,351 110,504 87,351 110,366 87,351 110,504
8 Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited

758 Shares of Rs. 100 Each 303,087 467,201 303,087 479,056 303,087 467,201 303,087 479,056
9 Api Power Co. Limited

310,933 Shares of Rs 100 Each 89,128,918 92,011,293 1,796,733 1,995,759 89,128,918 92,011,293 1,796,733 1,995,759
10 Butwal Power Co. Limited

.......... Shares of Rs. 100 Each = - 19,013,660 18,329,060 = - 19,013,660 18,329,060

11 Samata Gharelu Laghubitta Bittiya
Sanstha Limited (ordinary)
673 shares of Rs. 100 Each 67,300 636,510 - - 67,300

636,510 - -

12 Samata Gharelu Laghubitta Bittiya
Sanstha Limited (Promoter)
4,009 shares of Rs. 100 Each 475,660 1,775,987 542,960 2,187,140 475,660

1,775,987 542,960 2,187,140

13 Suryodaya Womi Laghubitta Bittiya
Sanstha Limited (Promoter)

59,622 shares of Rs. 100 Each 6,250,000 23,789,178 6,250,000 23,311,733 6,250,000 23,789,178 6,250,000 23,311,733
14 Nabil Balance Fund -2

500,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 5,000,000 5,055,000 5,000,000 4,500,000 5,000,000 5,055,000 5,000,000 4,500,000
15 NIC Asia Balance Fund

1,000,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 10,000,000 9,770,000 10,000,000 9,600,000 10,000,000 9,770,000 10,000,000 9,600,000

Contd...
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Contd...
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIR VALUE

16 Sanima GIC Insurance Limited

(Promoter)

15,663 Shares of Rs. 100 Each 1,457,100 5,059,149 1,457,100 4,203,734 1,457,100 5,059,149 1,457,100 4,203,734
17 Sanima GIC Insurance Limited

461Shares of Rs. 100 Each 42,900 281,205 42,900 247,533 42,900 281,205 42,900 247,533
18 National Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha

Limited (Promoter)

169,658 shares of Rs. 100 Each 13,300,000 114,519,150 13,300,000 104,615,432 13,300,000 114,519,150 13,300,000 104,615,432
19 Citizen Mutual Fund 2

500,000 Unit of Rs.10 Each 5,000,000 5,340,000 5,000,000 5,160,000 5,000,000 5,340,000 5,000,000 5,160,000
20 Siddhartha Investment Growth

Scheme-2

2,500,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 25,000,000 26,250,000 25,000,000 23,725,000 25,000,000 26,250,000 25,000,000 23,725,000
21NMB 50

2,000,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 20,000,000 21,380,000 20,000,000 20,080,000 20,000,000 21,380,000 20,000,000 20,080,000
22 Sunrise First Mutual Fund

1,489,339 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 15,499,414 15,906,141 15,499,414 15,414,659 15,499,414 15,906,141 15,499,414 15,414,659
23 Sanima Large Capital Fund

2,000,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 20,000,000 20,460,000 20,000,000 18,580,000 20,000,000 20,460,000 20,000,000 18,580,000
24 Sunrise Bluechip Fund

2,500,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000 20,675,000 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000 20,675,000
25 NIBL Samriddhi Fund -2

2,000,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 20,000,000 17,660,000 20,000,000 16,500,000 20,000,000 17,660,000 20,000,000 16,500,000
26 Prabhu Select Fund

1,468,090 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 14,680,900 16,574,736 14,680,900 14,372,601 14,680,900 16,574,736 14,680,900 14,372,601
27 Bishal Bazar Company Limited

2,010 shares of Rs. 100 Each 13,358,424 10,821,820 13,358,424 8,214,870 13,358,424 10,821,820 13,358,424 8,214,870
28 Citizen Investment Trust

1,348 shares of Rs. 100 Each 1,979,118 2,663,271 1,979,118 19,955,700 1,979.118 2,663,271 1,979,118 19,955,700
29 Nepal Reinsurance Company Limited

380 shares of Rs. 100 Each = 478,842 - 253,374 = 478,842 - 253,374
30 Himalayan Life Insurance Limited

5,196 shares of Rs. 100 Each 2,046,062 2,115,344 2,046,062 1,781,787 2,046,062 2,115,344 2,046,062 1,781,787
31Rastriya Beema Company Limited

660 shares of Rs. 100 Each 9,487,308 9,972,600 9,487,308 8,903,400 9,487,308 9,972,600 9,487,308 8,903,400
32 Arun Valley Hydropower

Development Co. Ltd.

105,437 shares of Rs. 100 Each 30,276,827 30,754,919 15,759,389 9,606,778 30,276,827 30,754,919 15,759,389 9,606,778
33 Asian Life Insurance Co. Limited

8,521 shares of Rs. 100 Each 3,822,093 4,246,526 3,570,093 3,738,000 3,822,093 4,246,526 3,570,093 3,738,000
34 CEDB Hydropower Development

Company Limited

26,688 shares of Rs. 100 Each 41,034,468 70,509,429 3,252,198 4,686,996 41,034,468 70,509,429 3,252,198 4,686,996
35 Life Insurance Corporation

(Nepal) Limited

5,654 shares of Rs. 100 Each 4,867,326 5,027,706 4,601,926 4,314,000 4,867,326 5,027,706 4,601,926 4,314,000
36 Neco Insurance Limited

17,534 shares of Rs. 100 Each 14,568,215 12,455,452 13,732,483 13,822,424 14,568,215 12,455,452 13,732,483 13,822,424
37 NRN Infrastructure and

Development Limited

720 shares of Rs. 100 Each 478,568 1,641,017 478,568 513,128 478,568 1,641,017 478,568 513,128

Contd...



SO o fow 3 Tz

Contd...
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIR VALUE

38 Sahas Urja Limited

167,569 shares of Rs. 100 Each 95,664,213 107,250,863 16,004,083 13,224,120 95,664,213 107,250,863 16,004,083 13,224,120
39 Shivam Cements Ltd

9,921 shares of Rs. 100 Each 6,025,517 5,308,132 6,025,517 4,591,022 6,025,517 5,308,132 6,025,517 4,591,022
40 United Ajod Insurance Limited

8,000 shares of Rs. 100 Each 3,498,703 3,429,360 3,498,703 3,591,000 3,498,703 3,429,360 3,498,703 3,591,000
41 RBB Mutual Fund 1

250,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 2,500,000 2,490,000 2,500,000 2,040,000 2,500,000 2,490,000 2,500,000 2,040,000
42 Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya

Sanstha Limited

34,689 shares of Rs.100 Each 2,400,000 15,263,160 2,400,000 13,321,440 2,400,000 15,263,160 2,400,000 13,321,440
43 NIC Asia Flexi Cap Fund

500,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 5,000,000 5,075,000 5,000,000 4,625,000 5,000,000 5,075,000 5,000,000 4,625,000
44 Kumari Dhanabriddhi Yojana

2,000,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 20,000,000 20,100,000 20,000,000 19,340,000 20,000,000 20,100,000 20,000,000 19,340,000
45 Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited

7,953 shares of Rs. 100 Each 7,203,592 6,976,928 7,203,592 6,720,285 7,203,592 6,976,928 7,203,592 6,720,285
46 Bottlers Nepal(Terai) Limited

500 shares of Rs. 100 Each 6,945,151 6,400,000 6,945,151 6,500,000 6,945,151 6,400,000 8,945,151 6,500,000
47 NIBL Growth Fund

500,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 5,000,000 4,930,000 5,000,000 5,320,000 5,000,000 4,930,000 5,000,000 5,320,000
48 NMB Sulav Investment Fund 2

2,000,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 20,000,000 22,580,000 20,000,000 20,120,000 20,000,000 22,580,000 20,000,000 20,120,000
49 Prabhu Smart Fund

500,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 5,000,000 5,735,000 5,000,000 4,805,000 5,000,000 5,735000 5,000,000 4,805,000
50 RBB Mutual Fund 2

500,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 5,000,000 5,040,000 5,000,000 4,750,000 5,000,000 5,040,000 5,000,000 4,750,000
51Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited

11,001 shares of Rs. 100 Each 3,257,070 6,896,637 3257070 3,395340  3,257070 6,896,637  3,257070 3,395,340
52 Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

1shares of Rs. 100 Each = 773 - 619 = 773 - 619
53 Nepal Insurance Co. Ltd.

1shares of Rs. 100 Each = 845 - 880 = 645 - 880
54 Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta

Bittiya Sanstha Limited

1shares of Rs. 100 Each = 884 - - = 884 - -
55 Himalayan Reinsurance Limited

2,069 shares of Rs. 100 Each 1,266,678 1,909,232 1,266,678 1,200,020 1,266,678 1,909,232 1,266,678 1,200,020
56 Kumari Sabal Yojana

1,000,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
57 NIBL Stable Fund

2,000,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 20,000,000 19,780,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 19,780,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
58 Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

8,747 shares of Rs. 100 Each 2,797,281 3,199,697 2,797,281 2,894,004 2,797,281 3,199,697 2,797,281 2,894,004
59 Himalayan 80.20 Mutual Fund

1,600,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 15,000,000 17,400,000 15,000,000 14,985,000 15,000,000 17,400,000 15,000,000 14,985,000
60 Mountain Energy Nepal Limited

22,770 shares of Rs. 100 Each 11,584,922 14,654,356 11,684,922 11,820,600 11,584,922 14,554,356 11,584,922 11,820,600
61NIC Asia Growth Fund-II

1,000,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 10,000,000 9,520,000 10,000,000 8,200,000 10,000,000 9,520,000 10,000,000 8,200,000

Contd...
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Contd...
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIR VALUE

62 Prabhu Mahalaxmi Life

Insurance Limited

2,376 shares of Rs. 100 Each 1,079,849 1,242,006 1,079,849 1,128,200 1,079,849 1,242,006 1,079,849 1,128,200
83 Muktinath Mutual Fund |

2,000,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 20,000,000 19,800,000 - - 20,000,000 19,800,000 - -
64 Himalayan Distillery Limited

12,100 shares of Rs. 100 Each 15,322,085 14,962,134 - - 15,322,065 14,962,134 - -
65 NLG Insurance Company Ltd.

2 shares of Rs. 100 Each 200 1,659 - - 200 1,659 - -
66 Garima Samriddhi Yojana

17,500,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 175,000,000 174,125,000 - - 175,000,000 174,125,000 - -
67 MBL Equity Fund

1,000,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 10,000,000 9,930,000 - - 10,000,000 9,930,000 - -

Sub-total

898,929,871 1,096,634,995 533,524,862 644,022,555 898,929,871 1,096,634,995 533,524,862 644,022,555

Investment in Unquoted equity

Nepal Clearing House Ltd (Promoter)

49,406 shares of Rs. 100 Each 618,700 10,691,401 618,700 618,700 618,700 10,691,401 618,700 618,700
2 NIC Asia Dynamic Debt Fund

664,820 Unit of Rs.10 Each 6,648,200 7,086,981 6,648,200 7,372,854 6,648,200 7,086,981 6,648,200 7,372,854
3 Smart Choice Technologies Ltd.

100,000 shares of Rs.100 Each 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
4 Nabil Flexi CAP Fund

500,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 5,000,000 5,835,000 5,000,000 5,320,000 5,000,000 5,835000 5,000,000 5,320,000
5 Kumari Sunaulo Lagani Yojana

500,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 5,000,000 6,155,000 5,000,000 5,920,000 5,000,000 6,155,000 5,000,000 5,920,000
6 Nepal Opportunity Fund

50,000 shares of Rs.100 Each 50,000,000 50,000,000 - - 50,000,000 50,000,000 - -
7 National Banking Institute Ltd

30,000 shares of Rs.100 Each 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 3,000,000 - -
8 Sanima Flexi Fund

500,000 Unit of Rs. 10 Each 5,000,000 5,070,000 - - 5,000,000 5,070,000 - -
9 Prabhu Systematic Investment Scheme

200,000 Unit of Rs.10 Each 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 - -
10 NIBL Equity Partners

35,000 shares of Rs.1000 Each 35,000,000 35,000,000 - - 35,000,000 35,000,000 - -
11 Budanilakantha Heritage Hotel Limited

100,000 shares of Rs.100 Each 12,956,000 20,729,600 10,000,000 12,690,000 = = - -
12 Navya Advisors Ltd.

52,000 shares of Rs.100 Each 5,200,000 5,709,600 5,200,000 5,709,600 = = - -

Sub-total 140,422,900 161,277,582 42,466,900 47,631,154 122,266,900 134,838,382 27,266,900 29,231,554

Grand Total 1,039,352,771 1,257,912,577 575,991,762 691,653,709 1,021,196,771 1,231,473,377 560,791,762 673,254,109
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CURRENT TAX ASSETS/LIABILITY

4.9
Amount in NPR

BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Current tax assets 690,510,954 638,453,627 673,601,815 627,502,567
Current year Income Tax Assets 654,852,089 638,453,627 637,942,951 627,502,567
Tax Assets of Prior Periods 35,658,865 - 35,658,865 -
Current tax liabilities 589,749,505 215,890,301 589,742,344 215,890,301
Current year Income Tax Liabilities 554,090,640 215,890,301 554,083,479 215,890,301
Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods 35,658,865 - 35,658,865 -
Total of income tax assets/(liabilities) 100,761,449 422,563,326 83,859,471 411,612,266

Current Tax Assets includes advance income tax paid by the Bank under self assessment tax returns filed as per the Income Tax Act
2058 and tax deducted at source (TDS) on behalf of the Bank. Simiarly, the current income tax liabilities includes the tax payable to

the Government computed as per the provision of the Income Tax Act 2058.

4.10
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES A .
mount in NPR
BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries - -
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries 123,900,000 123,900,000
Total Investment 123,900,000 123,900,000
Less: Impairment Allowances - -
Net Carrying Amount 123,900,000 123,900,000
4.10.1
INVESTMENT IN QUOTED SUBSIDIARIES Amount PR
BANK
PARTICULARS 2080-81
COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIR VALUE
.................... Ltd
........ shares of Rs.... Each = = - -
.................... Ltd
........ shares of Rs.... Each = = - -
Total - - - -
4.10.2
INVESTMENT IN UNQUOTED SUBSIDIARIES Amount in NPR
BANK
PARTICULARS 2080-81
COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIR VALUE
Garima Capital Limited
1,239,000 shares of Rs 100 Each 123,900,000 123,900,000 123,900,000 123,900,000
Total 123,900,000 123,900,000 123,900,000 123,900,000
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INFORMATION RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES OF THE BANK 4103
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP HELD BY THE BANK
2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Garima Capital Limited = - 51.20% 51.20%
Total - - 51.20% 51.20%
NON CONTROLLING INTEREST OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 4104
Amount in NPR
GROUP
PARTICULARS GARIMA CAPITAL LIMITED
2081-82 2080-81
Equity Interest held by NCI (%) 48.80% 48.80%
Profit (Loss)allocated during the year 18,024,024 2,433,988
Accumulated Balances of NCl as on Ashad End 113,499,485 91,916,942
Dividend Paid to NCI - _
INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES sl
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81

COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIRVALUE COST FAIRVALUE COST FAIR VALUE

Investment in Quoted associates - - - - o - - _
Investment in Unquoted associates = - - - = = - -
Total Investment - - - - = = - -
Less: Impairment Allowances = - - - = - - -

Net Carrying Amount - - - - = = - -

INVESTMENT IN QUOTED ASSOCIATES 411

Amount in NPR

GROUP BANK

PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81

COoST FAIR VALUE COST FAIRVALUE COST FAIRVALUE COST FAIRVALUE

........ shares of Rs.... Each - - - - - - - _

........ shares of Rs.... Each - - - - - - - _
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INVESTMENT IN UNQUOTED ASSOCIATES 4mz2

Amount in NPR

GROUP BANK

PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81

COST FAIR VALUE COST FAIRVALUE COST FAIRVALUE COST FAIRVALUE

Total - - - - - - - -
INFORMATION RELATING TO ASSOCIATES OF THE BANK 413
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS PERCENTAGE OF OWNESHIP HELD BY THE BANK PERCENTAGE OF OWNESHIP HELD BY THE BANK
2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Total = = - - = = - -
EQUITY VALUE OF ASSOCIATES 44
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Total = = - - = = - -
412
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES A ,
mount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Investment Properties measured at Fair Value
Balance as on Shrawan 1 = - = -
Addition/(Disposal) during the year = - = -
Net Changes in fair value during the year = - = -
Adjustment/Transfer = - = -
Net Amount - - - -
Investment Properties measured at Cost
Balance as on Shrawan 1 214,252,077 187,268,784 214,252,077 187,268,784
Addition/(Disposal) during the year 461,244,166 26,983,293 461,244,166 26,983,293
Adjustment/Transfer = - = -
Accumulated depreciation = - = -
Accumulated impairment loss = - = -
Net Amount 675,496,243 214,252,077 675,496,243 214,252,077
Total 675,496,243 214,252,077 675,496,243 214,252,077

Investment property includes the land purchased by Erstwhile Subhechha Bikas Bank Limited on 2070-06-24 for the purpose of
construction of office building has been shown at historical cost of Rs. 32,114,800 has been shown as investment property. Further,
net of non banking asset is recognised in Investment Properties.
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GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 414
Amountin NPR
GROUP
PARTICULARS GOODWILL SOFTWARE OTHER TOTAL ASAHD TOTAL ASAHD
PURCHASED DEVELOPED END 2082 END 2081
Cost
As on Shrawan 12080 92,311,741 34,148,214 - 463,300 126,923,256
Addition during the year - 766,675 - 54,240 820,915
Acquisition - 766,675 - 54,240 820,915
Capitalization - - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - - -
Balance as on Ashad end 2081 92,311,741 34,914,889 - 517,540 127,744,171
Addition during the Year - 9,007,998 - - 9,007,998
Acquisition - 9,007,998 - - 9,007,998
Capitalization - - - - =
Disposal during the year - - - - =
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - - =
Balance as on Ashad end 2082 92,311,741 43,922,887 - 517,540 136,752,169 127,744,171
Amortisation and Impairment
As on Shrawan 1. 2080 - 25,363,667 - 135,854 25,499,521
Impairment for the year - - - - -
Amortisation charge for the year - 3,059,072 - 102,556 3,161,628
Disposals - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - -
As on Ashad end 2081 - 28,422,738 - 238,410 28,661,149
Impairment for the year - - - - =
Amortisation charge for the year - 2,570,500 - 103,507 2,674,007
Disposals - - - - =
Adjustment - - - - =
As on Ashad end 2082 - 30,993,239 - 341,917 31,335,156 28,661,149
Capital Work in Progress 2079-80 - - - -
Capital Work in Progress 2080-81 - - - - -
Capital Work in Progress 2081-82 - - - - -
Net Book Value - - - -
As on Ashad end 2080 92,311,741 59,511,881 - 599,154
As on Ashad end 2081 92,311,741 6,492,151 - 279,130 99,083,022
As on Ashad end 2082 92,311,741 12,929,648 - 175,623 105,417,013

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. Costsassociated with the development of software are capitalized where itis probable that it willgenerate future economic
benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are amortized on the basis of expected useful life. Costs associated with
maintaining software are recognized as an expense as incurred. Software is amortised on a straight-line basis in profit or loss
over its estimated useful life, from the date that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and
comparative periods is five years.
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GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 414
Amount in NPR
BANK
PARTICULARS GOODWILL SOFTWARE OTHER TOTAL ASAHD TOTAL ASAHD
PURCHASED DEVELOPED END 2082 END 2081
Cost
As on Shrawan 12080 92,311,741 33,129,986 - 463,300 125,905,028
Addition during the year - 84,750 - 54,240 138,990
Acquisition - 84,750 - 54,240 138,990
Capitalization - - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - - -
Balance as on Ashad end 2081 92,311,741 33,214,736 - 517,540 126,044,018
Addition during the Year - 8,086,498 - - 8,086,498
Acquisition - 8,086,498 - - 8,086,498
Capitalization - - - - =
Disposal during the year - - - - =
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - - =
Balance as on Ashad end 2082 92,311,741 41,301,234 - 517,540 134,130,516 126,044,018
Amortisation and Impairment
As on Shrawan 1. 2080 - 24,774,555 - 135,854 24,910,410
Amortisation charge for the year - - - - -
Impairment for the year - 2,985,845 - 102,556 3,088,401
Disposals - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - -
As on Ashad end 2081 - 27,760,400 - 238,410 27,998,810
Impairment for the year - - - - =
Amortisation charge for the year - 2,487,230 - 103,507 2,590,737
Disposals - - - - =
Adjustment - - - - =
As on Ashad end 2082 - 30,247,631 - 341,917 30,589,548 27,998,810
Capital Work in Progress 2079-80 - - - -
Capital Work in Progress 2080-81 - - - -
Capital Work in Progress 2081-82 - - - -
Net Book Value - - - -
As on Ashad end 2080 92,311,741 8,355,431 - 327,446
As on Ashad end 2081 92,311,741 5,454,336 - 279,130 98,045,207
As on Ashad end 2082 92,311,741 11,053,604 - 175,623 103,540,968

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. Costsassociated with the development of software are capitalized where itis probable that it willgenerate future economic
benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are amortized on the basis of expected useful life. Costs associated with
maintaining software are recognized as an expense as incurred. Software is amortised on a straight-line basis in profit or loss
over its estimated useful life, from the date that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and
comparative periods is five years.
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4.15
Amount in NPR

2081-82
PARTICULARS GROUP BANK
DEFERRED TAX DEFERRED TAX NET DEFERRED TAX DEFERRED TAX DEFERREDTAX  NET DEFERRED TAX
ASSETS LIABILITIES ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) ASSETS LIABILITIES ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
Deferred tax on temporary
differences on following items
Loans and Advances to BFls - - - - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers - - - - - -
Investment Properties - - - - - -
Investment Securities - (73,461,514) (73,4861,514) - (63,082,982) (63,082,982)
Property and Equipment - (172,946,287) (172,9486,287) - (167,502,920) (167,502,920)
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 48,793,210 - 48,793,210 48,793,210 48,793,210
Employees' Leave Liability 37,963,263 - 37,963,263 37,604,200 - 37,604,200
FCY Revaluation 192,893 - 192,893 192,893 - 192,893
Lease Liabilities 187,845,949 - 187,845,949 181,328,674 - 181,328,674
Debenture Issue Expenses 1,502,369 - 1,602,369 1,502,369 - 1,502,369
Provisions LLP - - - - - -
Other Temporary Differences - - - - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 276,297,683 (246,407,801) 29,889,882 269,421,245 (230,585,902) 38,835,344
Deferred tax on carry forward of 5,412,462 - 5,412,462 - - -
unused tax losses - - - - - -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - - - - -
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as 281,710,145 (246,407,801) 35,302,344 269,421,245 (230,585,902) 38,835,344
on year end of 2081/82
Recognized in profit or loss 85,661,741 78,806,209
Recognized in Other Comprehensive (50,349,397) (39,970,865)
Income
Recognized directly in equity - -
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities 38,397,060 24,888,152
as on Shrawan 1, 2081
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (3,094,716) 13,947,191
Deferred Tax (expense)/income 15,452,881 30,969,709
recognized in profit or loss
Deferred Tax (expense)/income (18,547,597) (17,022,517)

recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Deferred Tax (expense)/income
recognized directly in equity
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DEFERRED TAXES ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

4.15
Amount in NPR

2080-81
PARTICULARS GROUP BANK
DEFERRED TAX DEFERRED TAX NET DEFERRED TAX DEFERRED TAX DEFERREDTAX  NET DEFERRED TAX
ASSETS LIABILITIES ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) ASSETS LIABILITIES ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
Deferred tax on temporary
differences on following items
Loans and Advances to BFls - - - - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers - - - - - -
Investment Properties - - - - - -
Investment Securities - (36,367,087) (36,367,087) - (33,738,704) (33,738,704)
Property and Equipment - (83,957,329) (83,957,329) - (78,048,782) (78,048,782)
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 25,227174 - 25,227,174 25,227174 25,227174
Employees' Leave Liability 30,137,538 - 30,137,538 29,859,831 - 29,859,831
FCY Revaluation 887,342 - 887,342 887,342 - 887,342
Lease Liabilities 84,766,253 - 84,766,253 77,694,104 - 77,694,104
Debenture Issue Expenses 2,383,472 - 2,383,472 2,383,472 - 2,383,472
Provisions LLP - - - - - -
Other Temporary Differences 623,716 - 623,716 623,716 - 623,716
Deferred tax on temporary differences 144,025,495 (120,324,416) 23,701,079 136,675,639 (11,787,486) 24,888,152
Deferred tax on carry forward of 14,695,981 - 14,695,981 - - -
unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - - - - -
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as 158,721,476 (120,324,416) 38,397,060 136,675,639 (1M,787,486) 24,888,152
on year end of 2080/81
Recognized in profit or loss 51,652,030 35,514,740
Recognized in Other Comprehensive (13,254,970) (10,626,587)
Income
Recognized directly in equity
Deferred Tax(Asset)/ Liabilities as 48,158,347 32,452,227
on Shrawan 1, 2080
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (9,761,287) (7,564,075)
Deferred Tax (expense)/income 5,208,060 6,445,392
recognized in profit or loss
Deferred Tax (expense)/income (14,969,347) (14,009,467)

recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Deferred Tax (expense)/income
recognized directly in equity
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4.16
OTHER ASSETS Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK

PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Assets held for Sale = - = -
Other Non-Banking Assets = - = -
Bills Receivable = - = -
Accounts Receivable 179,272,831 447,196,649 142,301,477 408,124,037
Accrued Income = - = -
Prepayments and Deposits 52,016,127 39,194,799 50,914,482 38,204,707
Income Tax Deposit = - = -
Deferred Employee Expenditure 326,843,420 252,968,462 326,843,420 252,968,462
Other 165,866,985 162,289,594 165,037,366 161,774,706
Stationery Stock 10,965,732 6,226,032 10,965,732 6,226,032
Commission Receivable = - = -
Security Deposit 79,834,105 61,352,667 79,727,605 61,246,167
Prepayments for Promotor Share = - = -
Others 75,067,148 94,710,894 74,344,028 94,302,506
Grand Total 723,999,363 901,649,505 685,096,745 861,071,912

4.17

DUE TO BANK AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS T

GROUP BANK

PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Money Market Deposits = - = -
Interbank Borrowing 700,000,000 - 700,000,000 -
Other Deposits from BFls 1,865,987,630 1,783,291,131 1,865,987,630 1,783,291,131
Settlement and Clearing Accounts = - = -
Other Deposits from BFls = - = -
Total 2,565,987,630 1,783,291,131 2,565,987,630 1,783,291,131

The balances in accounts maintained with the Bank by other local financial institution have been presented under this head.

DUE TO NEPAL RASTRA BANK P
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81

Refinance from NRB = -
Standing Liquidity Facility = -
Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB = -
Securities sold under repurchase agreements = -
Other Payable to NRB = -

Total - -
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

4.19
Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS

GROUP

2081-82

2080-81

2081-82

2080-81

Held for Trading
Interest Rate Swap
Currency Swap
Forward Exchange Contracts
Others

Held for Risk Management
Interest Rate Swap
Currency Swap
Forward Exchange Contracts.
Others

Total

DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

4.20
Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS

GROUP

2081-82

2080-81

2081-82

2080-81

Institutions Customers:
Term deposits
Call deposits
Current deposits
Other

Individual Customers:
Term deposits
Saving deposits

21,541,667,009
11,498,988,139
8,374,776,030
1,194,299,862
473,602,978
68,571,136,400
28,380,062,185
39,624,348,137

18,661,552,004
11,212,050,273
6,258,544,526
856,675,543
334,281,662
65,589,598,458
40,074,699,578
25,058,413,593

21,544,493,458
11,498,988,139
8,377,602,479
1,194,299,862
473,602,978
68,571,136,400
28,380,062,185
39,624,348,137

18,663,157,672
11,212,050,273
6,260,150,194
856,675,543
334,281,662
65,589,598,458
40,074,699,578
25,058,413,593

Current deposits 563,304,299 455,207,723 563,304,299 455,207,723
Other 3,421,780 1,277,564 3,421,780 1,277,564
Total 90,112,803,410 84,251,150,462 90,115,629,859 84,252,756,130

Deposit from customer includes matured fixed deposits and good for payment payable as on reporting date.

CURRENCY WISE ANALYSIS OF DEPOSIT FROM CUSTOMERS

4.20.1
Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS

GROUP

BANK

2081-82

2080-81

2081-82

2080-81

Nepalese Rupee
Indian Rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japenese yen
Chinese Yuan
Other

90,112,803,410

84,251,150,462

90,115,629,859

84,252,756,130

Total

90,112,803,410

84,251,150,462

90,115,629,859

84,252,756,130
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BORROWINGS 421
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government = - = -
Other Institutions 98,587,819 55,201,283 = 6,250,000
Other = - = -
Sub total 98,587,819 55,201,283 - 6,250,000
Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions = - = -
Multilateral Development Banks = - = -
Other institutions = - = -
Sub total = - = -
Total 98,587,819 55,201,283 - 6,250,000
PROVISIONS 422
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Provisions for redundancy = - = -
Provision for restructuring = - = -
Pending legal issues and tax litigation = - = -
Onerous contracts = - = -
Other = - = -
Total - - - -
MOVEMENT IN PROVISIONS 4.22.1
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81

Balance at Shrawan 1

Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year
Provisions reversed during the year
Unwind of discount

Balance at Ashad end
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OTHER LIABILITIES 423
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Liabilities for emloyees defined benefit obligations 162,783,174 84,129,764 162,644,033 84,090,581
Liability for long-service leave 126,544,209 100,458,459 125,347,333 99,532,768
Short term employee benefits 2,265,241 2,299,198 192,851 192,851
Bills payable 56,698 137,314 56,698 137,314
Creditors and accruals 41,744,618 39,716,781 5,886,310 4,749,495
Interest payable on deposits 144,453,449 202,077,626 144,453,449 202,077,626
Interest payable on borrowing 43,869,862 43,995,890 43,869,862 43,995,890
Liabilities on defered grant income = - = -
Unpaid Dividend 33,586,792 12,594,826 33,399,614 12,407,648
Liabilities under Finance Lease 626,153,163 309,668,980 604,428,580 286,095,149
Employee bonus payable 206,546,888 71,488,630 200,718,308 71,488,530
Other Liabilities 201,842,389 205,174,391 201,127,803 204,438,545
Audit Fee Payable = 1,500,000 = 1,500,000
TDS Payable 58,221,652 53,109,425 57,966,557 52,780,677
Micro Finance Central Fund = - = -
Micro Finance Welfare Fund 58,427,276 60,799,928 58,427,276 60,799,928
Others 85,193,460 89,765,038 84,733,969 89,357,940
Total 1,589,846,482 1,071,741,757 1,522,124,839 1,009,206,396

Liabilities relating to employees benefits like liabilities for defined benefit obligation gratuity, leave liabilities, short-term employee
benefits etc. Creditors and accruals, unearned income, unpaid dividend etc. are presented under this account head of other
liabilities.

DEFINED BENEFITS OBLIGATION 4.23.1

Amount in NPR
The amounts recognised in the statements of financial position are as follows :

GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Present value of unfunded obligations 383,531,699 282,023,258 382,195,681 281,058,384
Present value of funded obligations = - = -
Total present value of obligations 383,531,699 282,023,258 382,195,681 281,058,384
Fair value of plan assets 94,204,316 97,435,035 94,204,316 97,435,035
Present value of net obligations 289,327,383 184,588,223 287,991,365 183,623,350
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 289,327,383 184,588,223 287,991,365 183,623,350
PLAN ASSETS 4.23.2

Amount in NPR

Plan assets comprise

GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81

Equity securities = - = -
Government bonds = - = -
Bank deposit = - = -
Other 94,204,316 97,435,035 94,204,316 97,435,035
Total 94,204,316 97,435,035 94,204,316 97,435,035
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MOVEMENT IN THE PRESENT VALUE OF DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 4.23.3

Amount in NPR

GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 282,023,258 248,642,582 281,058,384 247,334,958
Actuarial losses 41,072,534 (60,463) 41,072,534 (60,463)
Benefits paid by the plan (3,230,719) (10,004,973) (3,230,719) (10,004,973)
Benefits paid Directly (17,421,387) (23,804,535) (17,421,387) (23,461,784)
Current service costs; Past Service Cost and interest 81,088,014 67,250,646 80,716,869 67,250,646
Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end 383,531,699 282,023,258 382,195,681 281,058,384
MOVEMENT IN THE FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS 4.23.4
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 97,435,035 107,440,008 97,435,035 107,440,008
Contributions paid into the plan = - = -
Benefits paid during the year (3,230,719) (10,004,973) (3,230,719) (10,004,973)
Actuarial (losses) gains 9,681,968 10,243,752 9,581,968 10,243,752
Expected return on plan assets (9,581,968) (10,243,752) (9,581,968) (10,243,752)
Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end 94,204,316 97,435,035 94,204,316 97,435,035
AMOUNT RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS 4235
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Current service costs 52,287,790 51,912,824 51,916,645 51,912,824
Past service costs{non Vested) = - = -
Past service costs(Vested) = - = -
Acturial (gain)/loss 11,308,959 2,521,416 11,308,959 2,521,416
Interest on obligation 17,491,265 12,816,406 17,491,265 12,816,406
Expected return on plan assets = - = -
Total 81,088,014 67,250,646 80,716,869 67,250,646
AMOUNT RECOGNISED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 4.23.6
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Acturial (gain)/loss 41,072,534 (60,463) 41,072,534 (60,463)

Total 41,072,534 (60,463) 41,072,534 (60,463)
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ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS A 4.23.7
mount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Discount rate 9% 10% 9% 10%
Future salary increase 4% 4% 4% 4%
Withdrawal rate 5% 5% 5% 5%
DEBT SECUTITIES ISSUED .
mount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value
through profit or loss = - = -
Debt securities issued at amortised cost 997,062,992 996,034,134 997,062,992 996,034,134
Total 997,062,992 996,034,134 997,062,992 996,034,134
SUBORDINATE LIABILITIES .
mount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Redeemable preference shares = - = -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares = - = -
(liabilities component)
Other = - = -
Total - - - -
SHARE CAPITAL .
mount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81

Ordinary Shares

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity component)
Irredemable Preference Shares (Equity component)

Perpetual debt (Equity component only)

5,680,617,328

5,680,617,328

5,680,617,328

5,680,517,328

Total

5,680,517,328

5,680,517,328

5,680,517,328

5,680,517,328
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4.26.1
ORDINARY SHARES o 428
BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81

Authorised capital

57,000,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each

Issued Capital

56,805,173.28 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 80/81)
56,805,173.28 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 81/82)
Suscribed and paid up capital

56,805,173.28 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 80/81)
56,805,173.28 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 81/82)

5,700,000,000

5,680,517,328

5,680,517,328

5,700,000,000

5,680,617,328

5,680,617,328

Total

5,680,517,328

5,680,517,328

The reconcilation of the number of share outstanding and the amount of share capital as at 32nd Ashad 2082 and 31st Ashad 2081 is

as follows:

SHARE CAPITAL RECONCILATION

4.26.1
Amount in NPR

BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81
NUMBER AMOUNT NUMBER AMOUNT
Number/ Amount of shares outstanding at
the beginning of the period 56,805,173 5,680,517,328 51,876,871 5,187,687,057
Add: Bonus shares issued = = 4,928,303 492,830,270
Add: Right share issued = = - -
Add/(Less): Others adjustments = = - -
Number/ Amount of share at the end of the period 56,805,173 5,680,517,328 56,805,173 5,680,517,328
ORDINARY SHARE OWNERSHIP 4.26.2
Amount in NPR
BANK

PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81

% OF HOLDING AMOUNT % OF HOLDING AMOUNT
Domestic ownership 100% 5,680,517,328 100% 5,680,517,328
Nepal Government = = - -
"A' Class licenced institutions = = - -
Other Licenced institutions = = - -
Other institutions & individuals = = - -
Promoter 51% 2,897,063,837 51% 2,897,063,837
Other 49% 2,783,453,491 49% 2,783,453,491
Foreign Ownership - - - -
Total 100% 5,680,517,328 100% 5,680,517,328

LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 0.50% OF PAID-UP CAPITAL

Amountin NPR

S.N NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDER

Pradeep Kumar Rungata

Shyam Prasad Bashyal

Chhabi Lal Kunwar

Chandrakanta Baral

Prem Bahadur G.C

Dr. Anand Prasad Shrestha

Anish Mudhvari

Nmb Saral Bachat Fund-E

Om Chavobiro Feed Industries Pvt. Ltd.
Deependra Shrestha

Yajan Lal Shakya

Jamuna Kafle

Shiva Prasad Katuwal Chhetri(K.C)

O N o g1 AN

am=ae©

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

% AMOUNT % AMOUNT
2.56 145,630,962.99 2.38 135,038,262.99
1.63 92,864,640.20 1.63 92,864,640.20
1.33 75,822,121.60 1.33 75,822,121.60
1.31 74,601,074.83 1.77 100,787, 774.98
1.16 65,744,664.65 1.16 65,744,664.65
0.98 55,916,353.62 0.98 55,916,353.62
0.97 55,008,044.86 0.97 55,008,044.86
0.96 54,368,824.00 0.56 31,613,824.1
0.93 52,959,329.27 0.30 17,135,129.00
0.92 52,079,250.45 0.92 52,079,250.45
0.91 51,926,647.00 0.91 51,826,646.37
0.83 46,959,627.98 0.83 46,959,627.98
0.81 46,075,945.66 0.81 46,225,945.66
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LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 0.50% OF PAID-UP CAPITAL

Amountin NPR

S.N NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDER CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
% AMOUNT % AMOUNT
14 Rama Kanta Baral 0.79 44,838,266.49 0.79 44,691,266.49
15 Gauri Shrestha 0.74 42,048,154.00 0.74 42,046,201.30
16 Himanshu Khadka 0.73 41,734,053.51 0.73 41,734,053.51
17 Sher Bahadur Budhathoki 0.68 38,677,240.02 0.68 38,677,240.02
18 Yadhav Kumar Shrestha 0.68 38,489,863.74 0.65 38,489,863.74
19 Rabindra Raj Joshi 0.67 38,283,011.08 0.67 38,283,011.08
20 Karna Bahadur Shrestha 0.64 36,159,634.58 0.64 36,159,634.58
21 Hari Kumar Shrestha 0.64 36,109,486.65 0.64 36,109,386.65
22 Narayan Prasad Sharma 0.57 32,417,832.99 0.47 26,417,832.99
23 Bhagawati Devi Pathak 0.56 31,863,220.92 0.56 31,863,220.92
24 Ram Prasad Shrestha 0.52 29,662,091.03 0.562 29,662,091.03
RESERVES 4.27
Amountin NPR
GROUP
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81

Statutory general reserve

1,668,000,702 1,308,494,137

1,557,501,951

1,507,995,386

Exchange equilisation reserve 1,923,895 1,763,151 1,923,895 1,763,151
Corporate social responsibility reserve 16,388,110 12,877,210 16,021,436 12,879,185
Capital redemption reserve = - = -
Regulatory reserve 788,018,668 564,109,525 788,018,668 564,109,525
Investment adjustment reserve = - = -
Capital reserve 6,525,709 6,525,709 = -
Assets revaluation reserve = - = -
Fair value reserve 153,218,432 84,748,451 147,193,624 78,723,643
Dividend Equalisation Reserve - - - -
Debenture Redemption Reserve 500,000,000 333,333,333 500,000,000 333,333,333
Actuarial gain/(Loss) Reserve (53,928,272) (25,177,499) (53,928,272) (25,177,499)
Special reserve = - = -
Other reserve 26,791,200 17,516,765 26,791,200 17,516,765
Total 2,996,938, 444 2,304,190,783 2,983,522,502 2,291,143,490
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 4.28
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Contingent liabilities 316,150,100 340,101,164 316,150,100 340,101,164

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities
Capital commitment
Lease Commitment

3,883,766,028 1,141,156,266

3,883,766,028

1,141,156,266

Litigation = - = -
Total 4,199,916,128 1,481,257,430 4,199,916,128 1,481,257,430
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 4.28.1
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Acceptance and documentary credit 11,233,020 5,100,800 11,233,020 5,100,800
Bills for collection = - = -
Forward exchange contracts = - = -
Guarantees 43,452,900 30,737,500 43,452,900 30,737,500
Underwriting commitment = - = -
Other commitments 261,464,179 304,262,864 261,464,179 304,262,864
Total 316,150,100 340,101,164 316,150,100 340,101,164
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UNDRAWN AND UNDISBURSED FACILITIES 4.28.2
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Undisbursed amount of loans 654,254,000 - 654,254,000 -
Undrawn limits of overdrafts 3,229,512,028 1,141,156,266 3,229,512,028 1,141,156,266
Undrawn limits of credit cards = - = -
Undrawn limits of letter of credit = - = -
Undrawn limits of guarantee = - = -
Total 3,883,766,028 1,141,156,266 3,883,766,028 1,141,156,266
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 4.28.3

Amount in NPR
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but ovision has not been made in financial statements.

GROUP BANK

PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment = - = -
Approved and contracted for = - = -
Approved but not contracted for = - = -
Sub-total = - = -
Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets = - = -

Approved and contracted for = - = -
Approved but not contracted for = - = -
Sub-total = - = -
Total = - = -

LEASE COMMITMENTS 4.28.4

Amount in NPR

GROUP BANK

PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81

Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable = - = -
operating lease, where the bank is lessee
Not later than Tyear = - = -
Later than Tyear but not later than 5 years = - = -
Later than 5 years = - = -
Sub-total = - = -
Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable = - = -
operating lease, where the bank is lessee
Not later than Tyear = - = -
Later than Tyear but not later than 5 years = - = -
Later than 5 years = - = -
Sub-total = - = -
Grand total = - = -

LITIGATION 4.28.5

There is no any significant litigation that would affect the financial position of the Bank.
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INTEREST INCOME 4.29
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Cash and cash equivalent 20,926,348 32,262,486 20,926,348 32,262,486
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank = - = -
Placement with bank and financial institutions 13,656 45,434 = -
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 365,622,607 484,440,250 365,622,607 484,440,250
Loans and advances to customers 7,002,935,287 8,512,467,764 7,002,935,287 8,512,467,764
Investment securities 908,062,114 1,033,578,861 903,407,176 1,029,020,253
Loan and advances to staff 39,540,926 23,364,786 39,540,926 23,364,786
Other Interest Income 58,894,558 28,667,990 58,817,610 28,665,027

Total interest income

8,395,995,496

10,114,827,571

8,391,249,954 10,110,220,567

INTEREST EXPENSE 4.30
Amountin NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Due to bank and financial institutions 24,352,097 39,160,949 16,244,464 36,212,689
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank = 979,452 = 979,452
Deposits from customers 4,657,531,157 6,657,425,884 4,657,583,145 6,657,483,547
Borrowing 124,201 457,077 124,201 457,077
Debt securities issued 87,739,723 87,500,010 87,739,723 87,600,010
Subordinated liabilities = - = -
Other Charges 20,130,540 16,654,903 17,491,265 12,816,406
Total Interest expense 4,789,877, 717 6,801,178,275 4,779,182,798 6,795,449,181
FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME 4.31
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Loan administration fees = - = -
Service fees 330,138,909 275,247,969 275,078,497 253,773,062
Consortium fees = - = -
Commitment fees = - = -
DD/TT/Swift fees = - = -
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees 55,653,458 41,625,926 55,653,458 41,625,926
Prepayment and swap fees 23,580,642 22,100,955 23,580,642 22,100,955
Investment banking fees = - = -
Asset management fees = - = -
Brokerage fees = - = -
Remittance fees 4,173,301 5,696,995 4,173,301 5,696,995
Commission on letter of credit = - = -
Commission on guarantee contracts issued 10,172,097 9,439,115 10,172,097 9,439,115
Commission on share underwriting/issue = - = -
Locker rental 867,500 797,000 867,500 797,000
Other fees and commision income 146,848,953 143,456,960 146,848,953 143,456,960
Total Fees and Commission Income 571,434,860 498,364,921 516,374,447 476,890,013
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FEES AND COMMISSION EXPENSE 4.32
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
ATM management fees = - = -
VISA/Master card fees = - = -
Guarantee commission = - = -
Brokerage = - = -
DD/TT/Swift fees. = - = -
Remittance fees and commission = - = -
Other fees and commission expense 10,999,709 25,062,223 5,480,318 20,520,241
Total Fees and Commission Expense 10,999,709 25,062,223 5,480,318 20,520,241
NET TRADING INCOME 433
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Changes in fair value of trading assets 20,696,751 3,659,527 = -
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets 23,999,141 17,942,487 = -
Interest income on trading assets = - = -
Dividend income on trading assets = 421,330 = -
Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction 16,409,319 13,350,969 16,409,319 13,350,969
Other = - = -
Net Trading Income 61,105,210 35,374,312 16,409,319 13,350,969
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 4.34
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Foreign exchange revaluation gain/(Loss) 642,976 2,957,808 642,976 2,957,808
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities 38,380,764 2,170,751 38,380,764 2,170,751
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties = - = -
Dividend on equity instruments 21,960,766 21,7M,487 21,556,019 21,7,487
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment 59,395,826 3,712,130 59,395,826 3,712,130
Gain/loss on sale of investment property (1,279,971) 541,894 (1,279,971) 541,894
Operating lease income = - = -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver = - = -
Other Operating Income 1,784,334 - = -
Total 120,884,695 31,094,070 118,695,614 31,094,070
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IMPAIRMENT CHARGE/(REVERSAL) FOR LOAN AND OTHER LOSSES

4.35
Amount in NPR

GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to BFls - - - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customers 647,055,737 1,71,042,283 647,055,737 1,71,042,283
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment = - = -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with BFls = - = -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment = - = -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets = - = -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties = - = -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on Other Assets = - = -
Total 647,055,737 1,711,042,283 647,055,737 1,711,042,283
PERSONNEL EXPENSES 4.3
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Salary 468,714,186 426,754,000 451,848,030 410,247,058
Allowances 285,654,148 200,053,266 284,439,573 199,176,040
Gratuity Expense 34,193,863 34,670,834 34,093,905 34,670,834
Provident Fund 42,077,671 38,525,627 41,861,091 38,324,067
Uniform 8,610,000 8,412,000 8,610,000 8,412,000
Training & development expense 9,739,488 11,873,961 9,648,011 11,645,226
Leave encashment 62,258,910 45,902,345 61,987,723 45,902,345
Medical = - = -
Insurance 1,485,468 1,336,440 1,384,930 1,336,440
Employees incentive 266,667 529,334 266,667 529,334
Cash-settled share-based payments = - = -
Pension expense = - = -
Finance expense under NFRS (249,074) - (249,074) -
Other expenses related to staff 16,210,340 1,884,665 15,988,850 1,527,602
Sub-total 928,961,666 769,942,470 909,879,706 751,770,945
Employees bonus 206,546,888 72,180,179 200,718,308 71,488,530
Grand Total 1,135,508,554 842,122,649 1,110,598,014 823,259,474
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 4.37
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Directors'fee 2,054,000 1,996,000 1,624,000 1,622,000
Directors'expense 3,605,680 3,361,771 3,572,321 3,335,221
Auditors' remuneration 6,146,648 5,712,656 5,999,748 5,572,656
Other audit related expense = - = -
Professional and legal expense 2,666,198 1,783,979 2,643,598 1,544,709
Office administration expense (4.37 A) 309,139,443 273,932,962 302,966,709 268,013,599
Operating Lease expense (4.37 B) 2,395,487 98,570,164 1,931,273 98,205,633
Operating expense of investment properties = - = -
Corporate social responsibility expense 11,029,918 10,243,732 10,979,918 10,243,732
Onerous lease provisions = - = -
Other Expenses 134,124,194 93,089,595 134,124,194 93,089,595
Share Issue Expenses = 1,860,992 = 1,860,992
Debenture Related Expense 1,028,858 944,876 1,028,858 944,876
Finance Cost on Lease Liability 84,781,969 28,971,353 64,781,969 28,971,353
ATM,Operation & Digital Banking Expense 68,313,367 61,312,374 68,313,367 61,312,374
Total 471,161,568 488,690,859 463,841,760 481,527,145
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4.37A
Amount in NPR

GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Water and electricity 30,315,444 27,968,030 29,795,865 27,526,371
Repair and maintenance
(a) Building - - - -
(b) Vehicle 3,275,417 3,370,631 3,275,417 3,370,631
(c)Computer and accessories 455,131 566,159 455,131 537,768
(d) Office equipment and furniture 2,090,150 2,175,477 2,090,150 2,175,477
(e) Other 2,595,697 2,497,682 2,410,475 2,412,978
Insurance 8,594,562 9,210,355 8,551,926 9,159,813
Postage, telex, telephone, fax 4,421,017 5,516,914 4,178,512 5,041,720
Printing and stationery 20,657,907 23,897,714 20,399,098 23,506,330
News paper, books and journals 82,359 71,510 82,359 71,510
Advertisement 23,799,438 17,812,759 23,382,089 17,336,614
Donation = - = -
Security expense 100,161,854 80,347,895 99,837,554 80,023,595
Deposit and loan guarantee premium 36,800,641 33,105,653 36,800,641 33,105,653
Travel allowance and expense 5,064,276 3,853,105 4,911,494 3,853,105
Entertainment = - = -
Annual/special general meeting expense 3,941,575 3,389,650 3,256,250 2,884,534
Other
a)Annual Fee(Registration, Renewal 26,874,210 20,369,648 26,611,563 20,188,357
& Membership Charges)
b) Office Expenses 15,734,181 14,778,589 14,068,900 13,251,152
c)Miscellaneous Expenses 1,130,626 1,868,787 368,862 768,375
d)Fuel Expenses 12,700,129 12,040,850 12,700,129 12,040,850
e) Branch Connectivity Expense 10,444,930 11,091,654 9,790,294 10,758,764
Total 309,139,443 273,932,962 302,966,709 268,013,599
OPERATING LEASE EXPENSES 4.37B
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
House Rent Expenses 2,395,487 98,570,164 1,931,273 98,205,633
Total 2,395,487 98,570,164 1,931,273 98,205,633
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 4.38
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Depreciation on property and equipment 230,834,410 160,145,080 225,290,060 154,537,124
Depreciation on investment property = - = -
Amortisation of intangible assets 2,674,007 3,088,401 2,590,737 3,088,401
Total 233,508,417 163,233,481 227,880,797 157,625,525
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NON OPERATING INCOME 4.39
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Recovery of Loan written off = - = -
Other Income 540,000 1,290,509 540,000 1,265,000
Total 540,000 1,290,509 540,000 1,265,000
NON OPERATING EXPENSE 4.40
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Loan written off 2,765,132 - 2,765,132 -
Redundancy provision = - = -
Expense of restructuring = - = -
Other expense 161,438 - = -
Total 2,926,571 - 2,765,132 -
INCOME TAX EXPENSES a4l
Amount in NPR
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Current Tax Expenses 589,749,505 215,890,301 589,742,344 215,890,301
Current Year 554,090,640 215,890,301 554,083,479 215,890,301
Adjustment for Prior Years 35,658,865 - 35,658,865 -
Deferred tax Expenses (15,452,881) (5,208,060) (30,969,709) (6,445,392)
Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences (15,452,881) (5,208,060) (30,969,709) (6,445,392)
Change in tax Rate = - = -
Recognition of Previously unrecognized Tax Losses = - = -
Total Income tax expense 574,296,624 210,682,241 558,772,635 209,444,909
RECONCILIATION OF TAX EXPENSES AND ACCOUNTING PROFIT 4.41.1

Amount in NPR

GROUP BANK

PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Profit Before Tax 1,858,921,988 649,621,612 1,806,464,776 643,396,769
Tax Amount at the Rate of 30% 557,676,596 194,886,483 541,939,433 193,019,031
Add: Tax Effect of the expenses that are 123,339,838 118,240,030 123,339,838 118,240,030
not deductible for tax purpose

Less: Tax Effect on Exempt Income (173.584) (309,812) (173.584) (309,812)
Add/Less: Tax Effect on other Items (126,752,211) (95,058,948) (111,022,208) (95,058,948)
Total Income Tax Expenses 554,090,640 217,757,754 554,083,479 215,890,301
Effective Tax Rate 29.81% 33.52% 30.67% 33.55%
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5. Disclosures and Additional
Information

5.1 Risk Management

Risk Management structure of the Bank has set clear
separation between businesses function and risk
management function. Accordingly, the Bank has set up
a separate Risk Management & Compliance Department.
The department oversees the risk that arise out of daily
businessoperationaswellason periodic basisand are put
to the oversight of Top Management, Risk Management
Committee and the Board to discuss the reports thereon
and issue instructions as appropriate.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Board of Directors is the apex and supreme authority
of the Bank and is responsible to frame and implement
robust policies and framework for effective
compliance of regulation and direction issued by the
regulatoryauthority. Theboardunderstandsthe nature
of risk of the bank, and periodically reviews reports
onrisk management, including policies and standards,
stress testing, liquidity and capital adequacy through
the reporting by the Risk Management Committee and
the Asset- Liabilities Management Committee.

Pursuant to the NRB directive on corporate
governance,theBankhasestablishedRiskManagement
Committee with well-defined terms of referenceinline
the NRB directive. The committee supervises overall
risk management of the Bank broadly classified as
liquidity risk, market risk, operational risk and credit
risk.

. RISK GOVERNANCE

Bank has prepared and implemented policies and
procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level
arising to the bank and has inculcated risk culture
among the employees by establishing ownership
mentality, capacity building programs, well defined job
responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture.

Through its Risk Management Framework, the Bank
seeksto efficiently manage credit, marketandliquidity
risks which arise directly through the Bank's
commercial activities as well as operational,
regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a
normal consequence of any business undertaking.

The Assets and Liabilities Committee is responsible
for the management of capital and establishment of,

and compliance with, policiesrelating to balance sheet
management, including management of liquidity,
capital adequacy and structural foreign exchange and
interest rate exposure and tax exposure.

The bank's risk governance structure is such that
the responsibility for maintaining risk within the
banks risk blanket is cascaded down from the Board
to the appropriate functional, client business, senior
management and committees. Information regarding
material risk issues and compliance with policies
and standards is communicated through the business,
functional, senior management and committees.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for ensuring the Bank
has appropriate internal control framework in place
that supports the achievement of the strategies and
objectives. The various functions of the Bank should
be looked upon with a view to establish a proper
control mechanism is in place during expansion and
growth which enables it to maximize profitable
business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks
which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
enhance resilience to external events.

The effectiveness of the Company's internal control
system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its
Committees, Management and Internal Auditors.

The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/
standards and the effectiveness of internal control
structures across the Bank through regular audit,
specialaudit, information systemaudit, Off Site review.
The audit observations are reported to the
Management for initiating immediate corrective
measures. Internal Audit reports are periodically
forwarded to the Audit Committee for review and
the committee issues appropriate corrective actionin
accordance with the issue involved to the
management.

5.1.1Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability of loss of principle and
reward associated with it due to failure of
counterparty to meet its contractual obligations
to pay the Bank in accordance with agreed terms. The
Credit Risk Monitoring and Reporting Framework/
have been prepared in order to mitigate/ minimize the
creditrisk of the Bank through appropriate monitoring
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and reporting framework established within the Bank.

Bank has implemented various System/ Policies/

Procedures/ Guidelines for the effective management

of Credit Risk. For the purpose of assessment of credit

risk of the bank, following activities were carried out:

m Current system/policies/procedures/ guidelines
formulated were gone through;

m Actual Exposure of credit limit product wise,
segment wise were checked periodically;

m Review of various reports prepared by the
Departments such as Loan Utilization Report, Loan
Overdue Report, Loan Report, and NRB reports.

Credit RiskManagementisultimately theresponsibility
of the Board of Directors. Hence Overall strategy
as well as significant policies has to be reviewed by the
board reqularly. Further, Top Management is
responsible for implementing the bank's credit risk
management strategiesand policiesand ensuring that
procedures are put in place to manage and control
credit risk and the quality of credit portfolio in
accordance with these policies.

5.1.2 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
three types of risk: foreign exchange rates (currency
risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and
market prices (price risk).

i. Currency Risk:
Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Bank
to experience volatility in the value of its assets,
liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial
losses as a result of changes in value between the
currencies of its assets and liabilities and its
reporting currency.

ii. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

. Price Risk

Priceriskistherisk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in prices (other than those
arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors

specific to the individual financial instrument or
itsissuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market.

The Company's equity price risk exposure relates
to financial investment held at FVTOCI, whose
values fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices.

5.1.3 Liquidity Risk

Bank recognize Market Risk as the possibility for loss
of earnings or economic value to the Bank caused due
toadverse changesinthe market level of interest rates
or prices of securities (equity), foreign exchange
rates and commodity price fluctuation, as well as
the volatilities, of those prices. While Liquidity risk is
chances of failure of abank to meet obligations as they
become due. Effective liquidity risk management
helps ensure the Bank's ability to meet its obligations
as they fall due without adversely affecting the
Bank's financial condition and reduces the probability
of developing of an adverse situation.

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank will
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Bank might be
unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall
due as aresult of mismatches in the timing of the cash
flows under both normal and stress circumstances.
Such scenarios could occur when funding needed
for illiquid asset positions is not available to the Bank
on acceptable terms. To minimize this risk,
management has arranged for diversified funding
sources in addition to its core deposit base and
adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in
mind and monitoring future cash flows and liquidity
on a daily basis. The Bank has developed internal
control processes and contingency plans for
managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an
assessment of expected cash flows and the availability
of high-grade collateral which could be used to secure
additional funding as required.

5.2 Capital Management

5.2.1Qualitative disclosures
The Capital Adequacy calculation is mainly guided
by the Capital Adequacy Framework 2015 as
published by Nepal Rastra Bank. The Bank has
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formulated the "Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process which has been approved by the Board of Directors. The ICAAP
is a system of sound, effective, and complete strategies and processes that allows the Bank to assess and maintain, ongoing
basis, the amounts, types and distribution of internal capital that the Bank considers adequate to cover the nature and level of
risk to which the Bank is or might be exposed to.

5.2.2 Quantitative disclosures
a) Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

i. Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components NPR in “000”
S.NO. PARTICULARS 2081/82 2080/81
A Core Capital (Tier 1)

1 Paid up Equity Share Capital 5,680,517 5,680,517
2 Equity Share Premium = -
3 Proposed Bonus Equity Shares = -
4 Statutory General Reserves 1,657,502 1,307,995
5 Retained Earnings 2,377 3,305
6 Unaudited current year cumulative profit/(loss) 596,837 283,098
7 Capital Redemption Reserve = -
8 Capital Adjustment Reserve = -
9 Debenture Redemption Reserve 500,000 333,333
10 Dividend Equalization Reserves = -
n Bargain Purchase Gain = -
12 Other Free Reserve = -
13 Less: Goodwill 92,312 92,312
14 Less: Intangible Assets 11,229 5,454
15 Less: Fictitious Assets 38,835 24,888
16 Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions = -
17 Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests 123,900 123,900
18 Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits = -
19 Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments = -
20 Less: Reciprocal crossholdings = -
21 Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized 32,115 32,115
22 Less: Cash Flow Hedge = -
23 Less: Defined Benefits Pension Assets = -
24 Less: Unrecognized Defined Benefit Pension Liabilities = -
25 Less: Negative Balances of reserve accounts = 25,220
26 Less: Other Deductions 100,171 -

Core Capital (Tier 1) 7,938,671 7,304,360
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ii. Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components NPR in “000”

S.NO. PARTICULARS 2081/82 2080/81

B Supplementary Capital (Tier 2)

1 Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share = -

2 Subordinated Term Debt 497,063 662,701

3 Hybrid Capital Instruments = -

4 Stock Premium = -

5 General loan loss provision 796,553 732,387

6 Exchange Equalization Reserve 1,924 1,763

7 Investment Adjustment Reserve = -

8 Accrued Interest Receivable on pass loan included in Regulatory Reserve 102,161 -

9 Interest Capitalized Reserve included in Regulatory Reserve = -

10 Other Reserves = -
Eligible Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 1,397,700 1,396,851

iii. Subordinated Term Debt

Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments specially in case

of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments NPR in “000”

PARTICULARS

INFORMATION

Name
Interest Rate

Type

Priority to the debenture holders

Listing
Maturity Date

Number of Debentures

Face Value

Closing Balance of Debenture
Amount Eligible for Tier 2 Capital Fund

8.75% Garima Debenture, 2085

8.75% per annum (before tax) payable half yearly

Unsecured and Redeemable at Maturity, No Call/Convertible feature

after the depositors and secured creditors
Listed with Nepal Stock Exchange

Poush 2085

1,000,000 (0One Million Only)

NPR 1,000

NPR. 997,062

NPR. 497,063

(net of Redemption Reserve)

At the time of liquidation, priority of Debenture Holders payment will be

The Bank has not raised any funds through Hybrid Capital Instruments

iv. Deductions from Capital NPR in “000”

S.NO. PARTICULARS 2081/82 2080/81

1 Less: Goodwill 92,312 92,312

2 Less: Intangible Assets 11,229 5,454

3 Less: Fictitious Assets 38,835 24,888

4 Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests 123,800 123,900

5 Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized 32,115 32,115

6 Less: Negative Balances of reserve accounts = 25,220

7 Less: Other Deductions 100,171 -
Total deductions from capital 398,562 303,889

*Investment made in Bank's subsidiary, Garima Capital Limited
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v. Total Qualifying Capital NPR in “000"
S.NO. PARTICULARS 2081/82 2080/81
1 Core Capital (Tier 1) 7,938,671 7,304,360
2 Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 1,397,700 1,396,851
Total 9,336,371 8,701,211
vi. Capital Adequacy Ratio:
PARTICULARS 2081/82 2080/81
Tier 1Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar 1) 1.22% 11.16%
Tier 1and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures(After Bank's adjustments of Pillar I1) 13.20% 13.29%

vii. Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support current and future activities,

if applicable;

The bank also takes into consideration these risk factors during assessment of ICCAP. The bank's internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICCAP) involves assessment of actual capacity of the Bank, additional capital requirement in relation to the
existing risk profile of the bank and additional capital requirement in relation to the business growth of the bank.

a) Risk Exposures
i. Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk NPR in “000”
S.NO. PARTICULARS 2081/82
Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 63,724,214
. Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 4,827,373
c. Risk Weighted Exposure for M3arket Risk 102,620
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before adjustments of Pillar I1) 68,654,207
a) Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk:
A. BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES BOOK VALUE SPECIFIC ELIGIBLE NETVALUE RISK WEIGHT RISK
PROVISION CRM WEIGHTED
EXPOSURES
A B c D=A-B-C E F=D*E
Cash Balance 842,671 - - 842,671 0% -
Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank 3,778,538 - - 3,778,538 0% -
Gold - - - - 0% -
Investment in Nepalese Government Securities 13,145,090 - - 13,145,090 0% -
All Claims on Government of Nepal 43,436 - - 43,436 0% -
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities 5,819,150 - - 5,819,150 0% -
All claims on Nepal Rastra Bank - - - - 0% -
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA 0-1) - - - - 0% -
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA -2) - - - - 20% -
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA -3) - - - - 50% -
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA-4-6) - - - - 100% -
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA -7) - - - - 150% -
Claims On BIS, IMF, ECB, EC and MDB's recognized by the framework - - - 0% -
Claims on Other Multilateral Development Banks - - - - 100% -
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a) Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk:

A. BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES BOOK VALUE SPECIFIC ELIGIBLE NETVALUE RISK WEIGHT RISK
PROVISION CRM WEIGHTED
EXPOSURES
A B Cc D=A-B-C E F=D*E
Claims on Domestic Public Sector Entities - - - - 100% -
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1) - - - - 20% -
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2) - - - - 50% -
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6) - - - - 100% -
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7) - - - - 150% -
Claims on domestic banks that meet capital
adequacy requirements 6,940,698 - - 6,940,698 20% 1,388,140
Claims on domestic banks that do not meet capital - - - - 100% -
adequacy requirements
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1) - - - - 20% -
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2) - - - - 50% -
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6) - - - - 100% -
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7) - - - - 150% -
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in SAARC region and - - - - 20% -
China operating with a buffer of 1% above their respective
regulatory capital requirement
Claims on Domestic Corporates(Credit rating score equivalent to AAA) - - - - 50% -
Claims on Domestic Corporates - - - - 70% -
(Credit rating score equivalent to AA+ to AA-
Claims on Domestic Corporates - - - - 80% -
(Credit rating score equivalent to A+ to A-)
Claims on Domestic Corporates - - - - 100% -
(Credit rating score equivalent to BBB+ & below)
Claims on Domestic Corporates (Unrated) 9,420,021 - 12,987 9,407,035  100% 9,407,035
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0-1) - - - - 20% -
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 2) - - - - 50% -
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 3-6) - - - - 100% -
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 7) - - - - 150% -
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue) 31,266,494 - 1,604,010 29,662,485 75% 22,246,864
Claims fulfilling all criterion of regularity retail except granularity - - - - 100% -
Claims secured by residential properties 14,700,790 - - 14,700,790 60% 8,820,474
Claims not fully secured by residential properties - - - - 150% -
Claims secured by residential properties (Overdue) - - - - 100% -
Claims secured by Commercial real estate 4,251,720 - - 4,251,720 100% 4,251,720
Past due claims 5,465,111 3,042,892 - 2,422,218 150% 3,633,328
(except for claims secured by residential properties)
High Risk claims 2,878,055 - 46,432 2,831,623  150% 4,247,434
Real Estate loans for land acquisition and development - - - - 125% -
(Other than mentioned in Capital Adequacy framework
2015-point 3.3(jX1)k))
Lending against securities (bonds) - - - - 100% -
Lending against Shares 3,035,404 - - 3,035,404 100% 3,035,404
Trust Receipt Loans for Trading Firms - - - - 120% -
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a) Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk:
A. BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES BOOK VALUE SPECIFIC ELIGIBLE NETVALUE RISK WEIGHT RISK
PROVISION CRM WEIGHTED
EXPOSURES
A B Cc D=A-B-C E F=D*E
Real Estate loans for land acquisition and development - - - - 100% -
(For institutions/projects registred/licensed and approved
by Government of Nepal for land acquisition and
development purposes)
Personal Hirepurchase/Personal Auto Loans 1,075,636 - - 1,075,636 100% 1,075,636
Investments in equity and other capital instruments of 1,096,635 197,705 - 898,930 100% 898,930
institutions listed in stock exchange
Investments in equity and other capital instruments of 134,838 12,571 - 122,267 150% 183,400
institutions not listed in the stock exchange
Staff loan secured by residential property 585,278 - - 585,278 50% 292,639
Interest Receivable/claim on government securities - - - - 0% -
Cash in transit and other cash items in the process of collection - - - - 20% -
Other Assets(as per attachment) 4,241,682 928,880 - 3,312,802 100% 3,312,802
TOTAL(A) 108,721,247 4,182,049 1,663,428 102,875,770 62,793,805
B. OFF BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES BOOK VALUE SPECIFIC ELIGIBLE NETVALUE RISKWEIGHT RISK
PROVISION CRM WEIGHTED
EXPOSURES
Revocable Commitments - - - - 0% -
Bills Under Collection - - - - 0% -
Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities - - - - 10% -
LC Commitments With Original Maturity Upto 6 months - - - - 20% -
domestic counterparty
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) - - - - 20% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) - - - - 50% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) - - - - 100% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) - - - - 150% -
LC Commitments With Original Maturity Over 6 months 11,233 - - 11,233 50% 5,617
domestic counterparty
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) - - - - 20% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) - - - - 50% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) - - - - 100% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) - - - - 150% -
Bid Bond, Performance Bond and Counter guarantee
domestic counterparty 261,464 - - 261,464 40% 104,586
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) - - - - 20% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) - - - - 50% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) - - - - 100% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) - - - - 150% -
Underwriting commitments - - - - 50% -
Lending of Bank's Securities or Posting of Securities as collateral - - - - 100% -
Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale with recourse - - - - 100% -
Advance Payment Guarantee 5,653 - - 5,653 100% 5,653
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B. OFF BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES BOOK VALUE SPECIFIC ELIGIBLE NETVALUE RISK WEIGHT RISK
PROVISION CRM WEIGHTED
EXPOSURES
Financial Guarantee 37,800 - - 37,800 100% 37,800
Acceptances and Endorsements - - - - 100% -
Unpaid portion of Partly paid shares and Securities - - - - 100% -
Irrevocable Credit commitments (short term) 3,883,766 - - 3,883,766 20% 776,753
Irrevocable Credit commitments (long term) - - - - 50% -
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in SAARC region - - - - 20% -
operating with a buffer of 1% above their respective regulatory - - - - - -
capital requirement
Other Contingent Liabilities - - - - 100% -
Unpaid Guarantee Claims - - - - 200% -
TOTAL(B) 4,199,916 - - 4,199,916 930,408
Total RWE for credit Risk Before Adjustment (A)+(B) 112,921,163 4,182,049 1,663,428 107,075,686 63,724,214
Adjustments under Pillar Il
SRP 6.4a(3)- Add 10% of the loans & facilities in excess - - - - - -
of Single Obligor Limits to RWE
SRP 6.4a(4)- Add 1% of the contract (sale) value in case - - - - - -
of the sale of credit with recourse to RWE"
Total RWE for Credit Risk after Bank's adjustments under Pillar Il 112,921,163 4,182,049 1,663,428 107,075,686 63,724,214
Types of eligible risk mitigants used and the benefits under CRM NPR in “000”
S.NO. PARTICULARS 2081/82
1 Deposit with Banks 554,591
2 Deposit with other banks/financial institution =
3 Gold 1,108,837
4 Government and NRB Securities =
5 Guarantee of Government of Nepal =
6 Securities/Guarantee of other Sovereigns =
7 Guarantee of Domestic Banks =
8 Guarantee of Multilateral Development Banks =
9 Guarantee of Foreign Banks =
Total Credit Risk Mitigants 1,663,428
b) Risk weighted exposures for Operation Risk: NPR in “000”
S.NO. PARTICULARS 2078/079 2079/080 2080/081
1 Net Interest Income 2,593,863 3,263,988 3,314,771
2 Commission and Discount Income 359,307 405,599 476,890
3 Other Operating Income 113,804 33,300 31,094
4 Exchange Fluctuation Income 314 15,000 13,351
5 Addition/Deductionin Interest Suspense during the period - - =
6 Gross income (a) 3,067,288 3,717,888 3,836,106
7 Alfa(b) 15% 15% 15%
8 Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(axb)] 460,093 557,683 575,416
9 Capital Requirement for operational risk (d) (average of c) 531,064
10 Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times (e) 9.09
n Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [f=(dxe)] 4,827,373
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c) Risk weighted exposure for Market Risk

Y e

S.NO. CURRENCY OPEN POSITION(FCY)  EXCHANGERATE  OPENPOSITION(NPR)  RELEVANT OPEN POSITION
1 INR 146,579 1.60 234,526 234,526
2 usbD 1,143,945 137.45 157,235,218 157,235,218
3 GBP 1,760 186.13 327,580 327,580
4 EUR 40,635 159.684 6,486,768 6,486,768
5 THB 68,580 4.22 289,408 289,408
6 CHF 6,170 171.28 1,056,798 1,056,798
7 AUD 7,130 91.81 654,570 654,570
8 CAD 65,430 100.22 6,557,395 6,557,395
9 SGD 19,509 107.09 2,089,121 2,089,121
10 JPY 3,629,501 0.92 3,344,948 3,344,948
n HKD 104,710 17.49 1,830,854 1,830,854
12 DKK - 21.38 - -
13 SEK - 14.1 - -
14 SAR 360,089 36.53 13,154,051 13,154,051
15 0AR 173,507 37.65 6,531,671 6,531,671
16 AED 205,805 37.37 7,689,904 7,689,904
17 MYR 162,318 32.26 5,236,379 5,236,379
18 KRW 6,834,000 0.10 675,199 675,199
19 CNY 49,475 19.13 946,209 946,209
20 KWD 20,754 449.91 9,337,545 9,337,545
21 BHD 5,792 364.11 2,108,925 2,108,925
(a) Total Open Position 225,787,069 225,787,069
(b) Fixed Percentage 5%
(c) Capital Charge for Market Risk (=axb) 11,289,353
(d) Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times 9.09

(e) Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure (=cxd)

102,620,223

ii. Credit Risk weighted exposures under each 11 categories of Credit Risk NPR in “000”
S.NO. PARTICULARS 2081/82
1 Claims on government and central Bank =
2 Claims on other official entities =
3 Claims on Banks 1,388,140
4 Claims on corporate and securities firm 9,407,035
5 Claims on regulatory retail portfolio - not overdue 22,246,864
6 Claim secured by residential properties 8,820,474
7 Claims secured by commercial real state 4,251,720
8 Past due Claims 3,633,328
9 High risk claims 4,247,434
10 Other Assets 8,798,811
n Off Balance sheet Items 930,408
Total Credit Risk Weighted Exposures 63,724,214
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iii.Total Risk Weighted Exposure Calculation Table

RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE AMOUNT IN “000"
Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 63,724,214
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 4,827,373
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 102,620
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before adjustments of Pillar I1) 68,654,207

ALM policies & practices are not satisfactory, add 1% of net interest income to RWE -
Add .....% of the total deposit due to insufficient Liquid Assets -

Add RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 2% of gross income 697,404
If overall risk management policies and procedures are not satisfactory. Add 2% of RWE 1,373,084
If desired level of disclosure requirement has not been achieved, Add-1% of RWE -
Total Risk Weighted Exposures 70,724,695
Total Core Capital 7,938,671
Total Capital Fund (Tier 1and Tier 2) 9,336,371
Tier 1Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar II) 1.22%
Tier 1and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar Il) 13.20%
iv. Amount of Non Performing Assets (NPAs) [both Gross and Net]: NPR in “000”
S.N. PARTICULARS GROSS (LOAN) LOAN LOSS PROVISION NET NPL
a Restructure Loan/Reschedule Loan - - -
b Substandard Loan 453,851 113,463 340,389
c Doubtful Loan 424,400 212,200 212,200
d Loss Loan 2,717,229 2,717,229 -
Total 3,595,481 3,042,892 552,589

v. Non Performing Assets (NPAs) ratios

S.N. PARTICULARS NPA RATIOS

a Gross NPA to Gross Loan and Advances 4.69%

b Net NPA to Net Loan and Advances 0.76%

vi. Movement of Non Performing Assets NPR in “000"

S.N. PARTICULARS 2081/82 2080/81 MOVEMENTS(NPR)

a Restructure Loan/Reschedule Loan = - -

b Substandard Loan 453,851 516,336 (62,485)

c Doubtful Loan 424,400 1,350,886 (926,486)

d Loss Loan 2,717,229 1,683,629 1,133,601
Total 3,595,481 3,450,851 144,630

vii. Write off of Loan and Interest Suspense: NPR in “000”

S.N. PARTICULARS NPA

a Write off of Loan and Advance 2,209

b Write off of Interest Suspenses 556
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viii. MovementsinLoan LossProvisionsandInterest Suspense: NPR in “000”
CHANGE
PARTICULARS 2081/82 2080/81 AMOUNT %
Loan Loss Provision 4,001,495 3,354,439 647,056 19.29%
Interest Suspense 374,796 564,670 (189,874) (33.63%)
ix. Segregation of Investment Portfolio NPR in “000”

PARTICULARS AMOUNT IN NPR
Government Bond 13,145,090
Government treasury bills -
Nepal Rastra Bank deposit instruments 5,819,150
Investment Securities measured at amortized cost (i) 18,964,240
Quoted equity securities 1,096,635
Unquoted equity securities 134,838
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI (ii) 1,231,473
Total (i+ii) 20,195,713

5.2.3 Compliance with external requirement

The bank has complied with the externally imposed capital requirements during the reporting period.
5.3 Classification of Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities
PARTICULARS FINANCIAL YEAR 2081/082

GROUP INFORMATION

FINANCIAL ASSETS AMORTIZED COST FVTPL FVTOCI TOTAL
Financial Assets
Cashinhand 842,800,993 - - 842,800,993
Balances with B/Fis 2,323,228,255 - - 2,323,228,255
Money at call and short notice - - - -
Interbank placement - - - -
Balance at NRB 3,778,537,693 - - 3,778,537,693
Derivative financial instrument - - - -
Loans & Advances 73,704,911,034 - - 73,704,911,034
Government bonds 13,145,089,596 - - 13,145,089,596
Nepal Rastra Bank Deposit Instruments 5,819,150,000 - - 5,819,150,000
Investment Securities - 305,116,073 - 305,116,073
Government treasury bills - - - -
Equity investments - - 1,257,912,577 1,257,912,577
Other assets 723,999,363 - - 723,999,363
Total Financial Assets 100,337,716,934 305,116,073 1,257,912,577  101,900,745,584

Financial Liabilities

Due to Banks & Financial Institutions
Deposits from customers

Due to Nepal Rastra Banks

Debt Securities

Borrowings

Employee related liabilities

Bills payable

Creditors and accruals

2,565,987,630
90,112,803,410
997,062,992
98,587,819
498,139,612
56,698
41,744,618

2,565,987,630
90,112,803,410
997,062,992
98,587,819
498,139,512
56,698
41,744,618
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PARTICULARS FINANCIAL YEAR 2081/082

GROUP INFORMATION
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AMORTIZED COST FVTPL FVTOCI TOTAL
Interest payable on deposit 144,453,449 - - 144,453,449
Interest payable on borrowing 43,869,862 - - 43,869,862
Unpaid Dividend 33,586,792 - - 33,686,792
Liabilities under Finance Lease 626,153,163 - - 626,153,163
Other liabilities 201,842,388 - - 201,842,388
Total Financial Liabilities 95,364,288,333 - - 95,364,288,333
PARTICULARS FINANCIAL YEAR 2081/082

BANK INFORMATION
FINANCIAL ASSETS AMORTIZED COST FVTPL FVTOCI TOTAL

Balances with B/Fis

Cashin hand

Money at call and short notice
Interbank placement

Balance at NRB

Derivative financial instrument
Loans & Advances
Government bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank Deposit Instruments

Government treasury bills
Equity investments

2,322,799,833
842,670,643

3,778,5637,693
73,704,911,034
13,145,089,596
5,819,150,000

685,096,745

- 1,231,473,377

2,322,799,833
42,670,643

3,778,537,693
73,704,911,034
13,145,089,596
5,819,150,000

1,231,473,377

Other assets - - 685,096,745
Total Financial Assets 100,298,255,544 - 1,231,473,377  100,729,728,921
Financial Liabilities

Due to Banks & Financial Institutions 2,565,987,630 - - 2,565,987,630
Deposits from customers 90,115,629,859 - - 90,115,629,859
Due to Nepal Rastra Banks - - - -
Debt Securities 997,062,992 - - 997,062,992
Borrowings - - - -
Employee related liabilities 488,902,625 - - 488,902,525
Bills payable 56,698 - - 56,698
Creditors and accruals 5,886,310 - - 5,886,310
Interest payable on deposit 144,453,449 - - 144,453,449
Interest payable on borrowing 43,869,862 - - 43,869,862
Unpaid Dividend 33,399,614 - - 33,399,614
Liabilities under Finance Lease 604,428,580 - - 604,428,580
Other liabilities 201,127,801 - - 201,127,801
Total Financial Liabilities 95,200,805,320 - - 95,200,805,320
PARTICULARS FINANCIAL YEAR 2080/081

GROUP INFORMATION

FINANCIAL ASSETS AMORTIZED COST FVTPL FVTOCI TOTAL
Cashin hand 640,950,543 - - 640,950,543
Balances with B/Fis 4,075,326,762 - - 4,075,326,762

Money at call and short notice
Interbank placement

Balance at NRB

Derivative financial instrument

3,749,617,466

3,749,617,466
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PARTICULARS FINANCIAL YEAR 2080/081
GROUP INFORMATION

FINANCIAL ASSETS AMORTIZED COST FVTPL FvTOCI TOTAL
Loans & Advances 68,923,653,268 - - 68,923,653,268
Government bonds 13,447,638,938 - - 13,447,638,938
Government treasury bills 2,511,679,238 - - 2,511,679,238
Equity investments - - 691,653,709 691,653,709
Other assets 901,649,505 - - 901,649,505
Total Financial Assets 94,250,515,720 - 691,653,709 94,942,169,429

Financial Liabilities
Deposits from customers

Due to Banks & Financial Institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Banks

84,251,150,462
1,783,291,131

84,251,150,462
1,783,291,131

Debt Securities 996,034,134 - - 996,034,134
Borrowings - - - -
Employee related liabilities 258,375,951 - - 258,375,951
Bills payable 137,314 - - 137,314
Creditors and accruals 39,716,781 - - 39,716,781
Interest payable on deposit 202,077,626 - - 202,077,626
Interest payable on borrowing 43,995,890 - - 43,995,890
Unpaid Dividend 12,594,826 - - 12,594,826
Liabilities under Finance Lease 309,668,980 - - 309,668,980
Other liabilities 205,174,839 - - 205,174,839
Total Financial Liabilities 88,102,217,934 - - 88,102,217,934
PARTICULARS FINANCIAL YEAR 2080/081
BANK INFORMATION

FINANCIAL ASSETS AMORTIZED COST FVTPL FVTOCI TOTAL
Cashinhand 640,815,628 - - 640,815,628
Balances with B/Fis 4,073,783,710 - - 4,073,783,710
Money at call and short notice - - - -
Interbank placement - - - -
Balance at NRB 3,749,617,466 - - 3,749,617,466
Derivative financial instrument - - - -
Loans & Advances 68,923,653,268 - - 68,923,653,268
Government bonds 13,447,638,938 - - 13,447,638,938
Government treasury bills 2,511,679,238 - - 2,511,679,238
Equity investments - - 673,254,109 673,254,109
Other assets 861,071,912 - - 861,071,912
Total Financial Assets 94,208,260,160 - 673,254,109 94,881,514,269

Financial Liabilities
Deposits from customers

Due to Banks & Financial Institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Banks
Debt Securities

Borrowings

Employee related liabilities
Bills payable

Creditors and accruals
Interest payable on deposit
Interest payable on borrowing
Unpaid Dividend

Liabilities under Finance Lease
Other liabilities

84,252,756,130
1,783,291,131

996,034,134
255,304,730
137,314
4,749,495
202,077,626
43,995,890
12,407,648
286,095,149
204,438,545

84,252,756,130
1,783,291,131

996,034,134
255,304,730
137,314
4,749,495
202,077,626
43,995,890
12,407,648
286,095,149
204,438,545

Total Financial Liabilities

88,041,287,792

88,041,287,792
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5.4 Segmental Information

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Bank that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue and
incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Bank's other components,
whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources
allocated to each segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The bank has categorized its segment on the basis of presence in the geographical segment based on provinces of the
country. each segment provides banking services such as corporate and retail lending, deprived sector lending, various
deposit products and transaction banking services.

Notes having brief description for items in table are provided below:

a.

Revenues from external customers: Revenue from external customers have been segregated according to the nature
of segment.

b. Net Revenue: Net revenue is Revenue from external customers less Expenses to External customers.

. Interest revenue: Interest revenue has been presented separately for revenue from loans and advances and interest

income from investments.

d. Interest expense: Interest expense has been apportioned on the basis of fund used by the segment.

. Net Interest revenue: Net Interest Revenue is Interest revenue less interest expenses

Depreciation and amortization: Depreciation and amortization have been segmented according to the usage of the
assets by the segments.

. Segment profit: Net profit derived from segments other than allocated to specific segments
. Impairment of assets: Impairment has been allocated to specific segments.

Segment Assets: Allocated in accordance with usage of the of assets
Segment Liabilities: Allocated in accordance with incurrence of the liabilities of related segment
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B. MEASUREMENT OF OPERATING SEGMENT PROFIT OR
LOSS, ASSETS & LIABILITIES

Revenues from external customers comprise of gross
interest revenue, gross fee and commission revenue,
net trading revenue, other operating incomes and
intersegment revenue.

The transaction between the branches is charged at the
price decided by the bank's management on time to time
basis. The pricing mechanism is periodically reviewed
by the management. Below mentioned figures are in
thousands.

D. INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS
Total revenue from any single external customer does
not amount to 10 percent or more of the bank's revenue.

5.5 Share Options and share based
payment

The bank does not have any share option and share based
payments during the reporting period.

5.6 Contingent Liabilities &
Commitment

Contingent Liabilities
Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on

l. Revenue
behalf of its customers for guarantees issued for which
PARTICULARS AMOUNT N . N
an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the
Total revenues for reportable segments 9,043,269 . . . . .
reporting date, those are included in these financial
Other revenues - . o
Elimination of intersegment revenues _ statements as contingent liabilities.
Entity's Revenue 9,043,269
Commitment
Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide
Il. Profit or Loss funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the
PARTICULARS AMOUNT form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether
Total profit or loss for reportable segments 1,247,692 cancellable or not and the Bank has not made payments
Other profit or loss - at the reporting date, those instruments are included in
Elimination of intersegment profits - these financial statements as commitments. Details of
Unallocated amounts: - contingent liabilities and commitments are given in note
Profit before income tax 1,247,692
4.28.
IIl. Assets 5.7 Related Party Disclosures
PARTICULARS AMOUNT Following Parties have been |dent|f|?d as Related Parties
for Bank as per NAS 24 Related Parties:
Total assets for reportable segment 104,464,059
Other assets -
Unallocated amounts - 1. List of Related Parties
Entity's assets 104,464,059 NAME OF THE RELATED PARTY RELATED POSITION
Garima Capital Limited Subsidiary
. Mr. Dilip Pratap Khand Chairman
IV. Liabilities Mr. Shyam Prasad Basyal Director
PARTICULARS AMOUNT Mr. Deependra Shrestha Director
Total liabilities for reportable segments 95,200,805 Mr. Bimal Pandey Director
I Mr. Shovakanta Dhakal Director
Other liabilities - . .
. Mrs. lushma Koirala Women Director
Unallocated liabilities - Mr. Mukunda Rai Ach Ind dent Direct
Entity’s Liabilities 95,200,805 r- Mluunda Raj Acharya ndependent Birector

C. INFORMATION ABOUT PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
Revenue from each type of product and services is
described in point no. 1(b) above.

m | oans & Advances

m Fee & Commission income

Mr. Madhav Prasad Upadhaya
Mr. Anil Regmi

Key Managerial Person
Key Managerial Person
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2. Related Party Transactions
a. Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities

PARTICULARS NO. OF MEETINGS AMOUNT
Board Meeting 21 1,299,000
Audit Committee Meeting 6 102,000
AML Committee Meeting 7 119,000
Risk Management Committee Meeting 5 68,000
Employee Service and Benefits Committee 4 36,000
Total 43 1,624,000

In addition to above meeting allowance, the following amount
have been paid to directors:

5.8 Merger & Acquisition

The Bank has neither entered into merger nor acquired
any bank and financial institutions during the reporting
period.

5.9 Additional disclosures of non-
consolidated entities
Not applicable.

5.10 Operational Lease Expenses

A. DETAILS OF RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

PARTICULARS AMOUNT
Newspaper and Telephone expenses 336,000
Travelling Expenses reimbursed for Business visits 2,652,019
Interest on deposits paid to directors 1,269,054
Other related Expenses 599,106
Total 4,856,179

b. Deposits from Directors and Loan to Directors, if any

PARTICULARS AMOUNT
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2081 197,402,542
Less: Adjustment through PL (2,273,904)
Less: Deletion Adjustment through PL (66,742,769)
Add: Addition 539,206,764
Less: Depreciation (120,288,656)
Closing Balance of Right of Use Asset 547,303,977

PARTICULARS AMOUNT

Deposits from Directors 1,263,563
Loans and Advances to Directors -

Right of Use Assets has been presented in annex 4.13
property, plant and equipment.

B. DETAILS OF LEASE LIABILITY

c. Emoluments and Facilities of Key Managerial Personnel

PARTICULARS AMOUNT
Remuneration and Benefit Paid 20,605,386
Post-Retirement Benefits -
Other Long-term Benefits -
Borrowing during the year -
Interest on Borrowing 320,280
Interest on account balances 18,927
Other transactions benefits if any -
Total 20,944,593

d. Deposits from and Loans to Key Managerial Personnel

PARTICULARS AMOUNT
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2081 258,980,347
Less: Adjustment through PL (2,273,904)
Less: Deletion Adjustment through PL (99,599,333)
Add: Addition 539,206,764
Add: Finance Cost 64,781,969
Less: Liability Payment (156,667,263)
Closing Balance of Lease Liability 604,428,580
C. AGEING OF ACTUAL LEASE LIABILITY
PARTICULARS AMOUNT
Less than one year 97,386,836
Between one to five years 319,558,924
More than five years 187,482,820
Total 604,428,580

PARTICULARS AMOUNT
Deposits from Key Managerial Personnel 423,108
Loans to Key Managerial Personnel 30,517,630

e. Transaction with Subsidiary
Garima Capital Limited is the subsidiary company of the
Bank, and holds 51.20% paid up capital.

Reporting Date Balances

NATURE OF TRANSACTION AMOUNT

Deposits from Garima Capital Ltd. 2,826,449
Interest on Deposits 51,989

5.11 Events after Reporting date

Events after the reporting date are those events,
favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the
reportingdateandthe date whenthe financial statements
are authorized for issue. All material and important
events that occurred after the reporting date have been
considered and appropriate disclosures have been made
inline with NAS 10 - “Events after the Reporting Period".
Recovery of Interest after year end and up to 15th
Shrawan, 2082
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The Nepal Rastra Bank Directives requires the Bank and
Financial Institutions to transfer the equivalent amount
of interest on loans and advances accounted as an
interest income under the accrual basis of accounting
but not recovered up to the end of reporting period to
the Regulatory Reserve from the Retained Earnings.
However, the same directives have relaxed this provision
with which Bank may not appropriate such amount in
case it is recovered within one month after the year end.

In line with the aforesaid relaxation the gross amount of
NPR 54,623,584.99 which was otherwise required to be
appropriated to the Regulatory Reserves has not been so
appropriated. The details are as follows:

5.12 Details of Loans and Advances

PARTICULARS

2081/82 2080/81

Accrued Interest Receivable

Add: Interest Recievable of
restructured Loans

Less: Cessation of the Interest
on Loans (Refer Notes xx)

Less: Interest received up to
Shrawan End as per Directive no. 4

Amount required to be appropriated
to Requlatory Reserves
(Before Adjustment )

Net Amount required to be
appropriated to Regulatory
Reserves (After staff bonus, Income
tax, Statutory Reserve & CSR)

Amount already appropriated to
Regulatory Reserves (After staff
bonus and tax)

77,863,028

994,389,965 912,568,123

97,179,109

(619,593,793) (347,898,439)

(54,623,585) (91,659,966)

398,035,615 570,288,827

198,102,326 283,832,750

283,832,750 357,280,094

Net appropriations to the
Regulatory Reserves for
unrecovered interest

(85,730,424) (73,447,344)

PARTICULARS TO CUSTOMERS TO BFIS TOTAL
Loans and Advances 72,093,265,629 4,617,897,743 76,711,163,372
Interest Receivable on Loans and Advances 372,298,667 2,497,505 374,796,172
Staff Loans and Advances 620,446,642 620,446,642
Total Loans and Advances (a) 73,086,010,938 4,620,395,248 77,706,406,186

i. Total Impairment as per ECL NFRS 9 3,392,815,017 45,484,432 3,438,299,449
Individual Impairment (Specific Provision) 2,219,327,836 - 2,219,327,836
Collective Impairment (General Loan Loss Provision) 1,173,487,181 45,484,432 1,218,971,612
ii. Impairment as per norms of NRB in Loan Loss Provision 3,955,316,174 46,178,977 4,001,495,152
Individual Impairment 3,042,892,433 46,178,977 3,089,071,411
Collective Impairment 912,423,741 912,423,741
Impairment Charge for the Year, higher of | and Il but on total basis 3,955,316,174 46,178,977 4,001,495,152
Net Loans and Advances (a-b) 69,130,694,763 4,574,216,271 73,704,911,034
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5.13 Summary of Loans and Advances based on the regulatory classification for provisioning

2081/82 2080/81
PARTICULARS TOTAL LOAN PROVISIONS TOTAL LOAN PROVISIONS
AND ADVANCES AND ADVANCES
1. Performing Loan and Advances 73,115,682,306 958,602,718 67,718,747,461 966,283,454
1.1Pass Loan 68,161,936,711 710,915,439 63,892,981,183 768,981,493
1.1.1 Pass Loan (other than Restructured/
Rescheduled Covid Related)
1.1.2 Pass Loan (Restructured/Rescheduled Covid Related)
1.2 Watch List 4,953,745,595 247,687,280 3,825,766,279 197,301,961
2. Non-Performing Loan and Advances 3,595,481,066 3,042,892,433 3,450,851,185 2,388,155,960
2.1Restructured / Rescheduled
2.2 Sub-standard 453,851,367 113,462,842 516,336,066 129,084,016
2.3 Doubtful 424,400,215 212,200,108 1,350,886,351 675,443,175
2.4 Loss 2,717,229,484 2,717,229,484 1,683,628,768 1,683,628,768
3. Total Loan and Advances (1+2) 76,711,163,372  4,001,495,152 71,169,598,646 3,354,439,414
4, Staff Loans 620,446,642 - 543,824,352 -
5. Accrued Interest 374,796,172 - 564,669,684 -
6. Grand Total (3 + 4 +5) 77,706,406,186  4,001,495,152 72,278,092,682 3,354,439,414

i. Proportion of Gross Amount Loans and Advances as per regulatory classification

2082 ASHAR 2081 ASHAR CHANGE
PARTICULARS LOAN AMOUNT % LOAN AMOUNT % LOAN AMOUNT %
Pass 68,161,936,711 88.86% 63,892,981,183 89.78% 4,268,955,529 6.68%
Watch list 4,953,745,595 6.46% 3,825,766,279 5.38% 1,127,979,316  29.48%
Performing Loan 73,115,682,306 95.31% 67,718,747,461 95.15%  5,396,934,845 7.97%
Rescheduled/ Restructured - - - - - -
Sub Standard 453,851,367 0.59% 516,336,066 0.73% (62,484,699) (12.10%)
Doubtful 424,400,215 0.55% 1,350,886,351 1.90% (926,486,135) (68.58%)
Loss 2,717,229,484 3.54% 1,583,628,768 2.23% 1,133,600,716  71.58%
Non-Performing Loan 3,595,481,066 4.69% 3,450,851,185 4.85% 144,629,881 4.19%
Total Loan 76,711,163,372 100.00% 71,169,598,646 100.00% 5,541,564,726 7.79%
ii. Proportion of Loan Loss Provision (LLP) as per regulatory classification
2082 ASHAR 2081 ASHAR CHANGE
PARTICULARS LLP AMOUNT % LLP AMOUNT % LLP AMOUNT %
Good 710,915,439 17.77% 768,981,493 22.92% (58,066,054)  (7.55%)
Watch list 247,687,280 6.19% 197,301,961 5.88% 50,385,318  25.54%
LLP on Performing Loan 958,602,718 23.96% 966,283,454 28.81% (7,680,736) (0.79%)
Rescheduled/ Restructured - - - - - -
Sub Standard 113,462,842 2.84% 129,084,016 3.85% (15,621,175)  (12.10%)
Doubtful 212,200,108 5.30% 675,443,175 20.14% (463,243,068) (68.58%)
Bad 2,717,229,484 67.91% 1,583,628,768 47.21% 1,133,600,716  71.58%
LLP on Non-Performing Loan 3,042,892,433 76.04% 2,388,155,960 71.19% 654,736,473 27.42%
Total Loan Loss Provision 4,001,495,152 100.00% 3,354,439,414 100.00% 647,055,737 19.29%
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IMPAIRMENT CALCULATION AS PERNFRS 9
(EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS CALCULATION)

NFRS 9 also replaces the existing incurred loss
impairment approach with an expected credit loss
approach, resulting in earlier recognition of credit
losses. The NFRS 9 impairment model has three stages,
Stage 1,2 and 3. Collective impairment is done for stage 1
and 2 and individual impairment is done for stage 3. More
details about the same is discussed under 2.6.

MORE DISCLOSURES RELATED

TO EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS:

Credit Risk Management Practice

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arise
from a customer or counterparty’s failure to meet its
obligations when due. Credit risk can also arise from
operational failures that result in an unauthorized or
inappropriate loans and advances, commitment or
investment. The bank's major credit risks arise from
loans and advances, treasury operations and off-balance
sheet related credit risk exposures.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS - ADOPTION OF
NFRS 9- FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Bank has adopted NFRS 9: Financial Instruments,
which introduces a forward-looking Expected Credit
Loss (ECL) model for the recognition of impairment on
financial assets. NFRS 9 replaces the previous incurred
loss model under NAS 39, and requires recognition of
credit losses based on a three-stage model, reflecting
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

NFRS 9 mandates an impairment model that requires
the recognition of Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on all
financial debt instruments held at Amortised cost, Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI),
undrawn loan commitments and financial guarantees.

Although NFRS 9 was originally announced by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) to
be effective from 16 July 2021 (Shrawan 1, 2078), full
implementation—particularly of the ECL framework—was
deferred for banks and financial institutions until fiscal
year 2080/81, due to various operational and technical
challenges including the impact of COVID-19, limited
model readiness, and resource constraints.

Accordingly, the provisions of NFRS 9, including the
ECL impairment model, have been made fully applicable
from fiscal year 2081/82 for licensed banks and financial
institutions.

To facilitate a consistent and robust implementation
of the ECL framework, the Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB)
has issued detailed ECL Implementation Guidelines,
developed in alignment with international practices
and regulatory frameworks of comparable jurisdictions.
These guidelines are intended to support institutions in
applying NFRS 9 requirements prudently and uniformly
across the banking sector.

SIGNIFICANT INCREASE IN CREDIT RISK

When determining whether the risk of default on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Bank considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Bank's historical experience and expert
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information. The objective of the assessment is to
identify whether a significant increase in credit risk
has occurred for an exposure. The bank has defined the
criteria for Significant increase in credit risk in its own
ECL Policy which are in consistent with the NFRS 9 -
Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024 issued by
Nepal Rastra Bank. The criteria are as follow:

m More than 30 days past dues

m Absolute lifetime PD is 5% or more

m Relative lifetime PD is increased by 100% or more.

m Risk rating downgraded by 2 notches since initial
recognition.

m Risk rating downgraded to non-investment grade by
external credit rating agency.

m Deterioration of relevant determinant of credit risk

m Expectation of forbearance or restructuring due to
financial difficulties

m Deterioration of prospects for sector or industries
within which a borrower operates

m Borrower affected by macroeconomic conditions
based on reasonable and supportable forecasts.

m Modification of terms resulting in restructuring/
rescheduling.

m Credit Quality Indicators determined as per internal
credit assessment of performing loans which are
subject to individual monitoring and review, are weaker
than that in the initial recognition.

The bank is determined to develop mechanisms for
implementation of all SICR criteria in near future,
however for this period, the bank has used following
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criteria for determining whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk:

1. Qualitative Factor
Thebankusesthe Asset Classificationas perthe Directive
issued by Nepal Rastra Bank for determining the increase
in Credit Risk. Eg: Loan which was in Pass Category in
previous quarter has been moved to Watchlist Category
then such loan is deemed to have significant increase in
credit risk as a result the loan is categorized under stage
2 fromstage 1.

2.Quantitative Factor

The bank uses the backstop measure for determining the
quantitative factor for determining the increase in credit
risk. The bank uses NFRS 9- Expected Credit Loss Related
Guidelines, 2024 for determining the SICR criteria which
is more than one month past due. Eg: Loans which are
one month past due are categorized under stage 2 from
stage 1.

DEFAULT DEFINITON:

The bank considersloan to be in default whenitis unlikely
that the borrower will repay its credit obligations in full
without recourse to actions such as realizing security,
or when the borrower is past due on any material credit
obligation by more than 3 months.

The bank may consider other qualitative factors,
such as management’s assessment of the borrower’s
creditworthiness, which could indicate a significant
deterioration in the ability to meet obligations. The
bank may use their own definitions of default if they are
consistent with this principle and applied in a manner
aligned with their credit risk management practices.
Default definitions play a critical role in determining

expected credit losses (ECL) and the bank has applied it
consistently across the ECL measurement process.

PORTFOLIO SEGREGATION OF CREDIT RISK
EXPOSURES:

For measurement of ECL, portfolio segmentation
is based on similar credit risk characteristics. In
performing the portfolio segmentation of credit assets,
the bank considers product types, customer types,
industry and customer size. The bank retests and revises
the rationality of portfolio segmentation of credit risk
exposures every year.

STAGING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

NFRS 9: Financial Instruments, the bank classifies
financial assets into three stages based on the change
in credit risk since the initial recognition. This staging
framework forms the basis for calculating Expected
Credit Losses (ECL) and reflects the level of credit
deterioration.

Financial instruments that are not already credit-
impaired are originated into stage 1 and a 12 month
expected credit losses provisions is recognized.

Instrument will remain in stage 1 until they experience
significant credit deterioration (Stage 2) or they become
credit impaired (stage 3).

Instruments will transfer to stage 2 and a lifetime
expected credit loss provision is recognized when there
has been a significant change in Credit risk compared to
what was expected at origination.

The framework used to determine a significant increase
in credit risk is set out below:

PARTICULARS FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT ECL
Stage 1 Performing 12 months
Stage 2 Performing but has exhibited Significant Lifetime
increase in credit risk
Stage 3 - Non-Performing Lifetime
- Credit Impaired
Purchased or Originated Credit Lifetime

Impaired (POCI) financial assets
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PARAMETER OF ESTIMATING EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS:
Expected credit losses are a probability weighted
estimate of credit losses (i.e. Present Value of all
cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the financial
instruments. A cash shortfall is the difference between
the cash flows that are due toan entity inaccordance with
the contract and the cash flows that an entity expects to
receive. Because expected credit losses consider the
amount and timing of payments, a credit loss arises even

if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than when
contractually due.

The relevant parameters of ECL measurement include
Probability of Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD) and
Exposure at Default (EAD). The bank establishes its PD
models, LGD models and EAD models on the basis of the
historical information available with the bank along with

the incorporation of forward-looking information.

S.N.

COMPONENT

DEFINITION

Probability of Default (PD)

The Probability of Default (PD) represents the likelihood that the counterparty will not be
able to meet its contractual obligation.

For Stage 1assets, PD is calculated over the next 12 months; for Stage 2, PD reflects the
lifetime of the asset. Stage 3 exposures are assumed to have a PD of 100% (Since already
in default).

PD estimates incorporate forward-looking macroeconomic assumptions (e.g., GDP
growth, inflation) and are updated periodically based on statistical models calibrated to
historical defaults and adjusted for the current and expected economic environment.

Loss Given Default (LGD)

Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the proportion of exposure not expected to be
recovered in the event of default, after considering the present value of expected cash
flows from recoveries and collateral realizations, net of costs.

The LGD is determined based on the historical recovery rates and takes into
accounts the recovery of any collateral (applying haircuts) that is integral to the financial
assets.

Exposure at Default (EAD)

The Exposure at Default (EAD) represents the potential exposure to the lender in

the event of a default by the borrower. It reflects the total amount the lender is at risk of
losing if the borrower defaults, considering both the outstanding balance and any
potential increases in exposure due to undrawn commitments or principal repayments.

For revolving loans, the EAD is calculated as the outstanding balance of the loan, plus any
additional undrawn amounts that may be utilized, adjusted for the Credit Conversion
Factor (CCF). The CCF reflects the likelihood that the undrawn portions of the loan will be
utilized before the default occurs. This adjustment is important as it accounts for the
potential increase in exposure if the borrower draws on the available credit.

The bank has utilized the CCF ratio and Utilization ratio provided by Nepal Rastra Bank in
its Expected Credit Losses (ECL) Guideline, 2024

For term loans, the EAD is based on the outstanding balance of the loan, adjusted for any
principal repayments made by the borrower. Since term loans are typically repaid over
time according to a fixed amortization schedule, the EAD decreases as principal is repaid,
reducing the exposure in the event of default. Therefore, the EAD for term loans reflects
the amount remaining after accounting for any principal recoveries, as per the
amortization plan.
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Todetermine the expected creditloss, these components
are multiplied together. PD for the reference period (up
to 12 months or lifetime) * LGD * EAD and discounted to
the balance sheet dates using the Coupon Rate of the
reporting date as the discount rate.

For stage 3 loans, the Probability of Default is already
100% (since already defaulted) so the Expected Credit
Loss is calculated as LGD * EAD.

CREDIT IMPAIRED FINANCIAL ASSETS:

A financial instrument is credit-impaired when one

or more events that have a detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of that financial instrument

have occurred. Evidence that a financial instrument

is credit-impaired include observable data about the

following events:

i. Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

ii. A breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event

iii. The lenders of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession
that the lenders would not otherwise consider.

iv. Itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial re-organization.

v.The disappearance of an active market for that
financial instrument because of financial difficulties

vi. Thepurchase ororigination of a financial instrument
at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.

vii. The borrower is overdue for more than 90 days in any
principal, advances, interest or investment in bonds
due to the bank.

The creditimpairment of a financial asset may be caused
by the combined effect of multiple events rather than any
single discrete event.

ESTIMATION OF EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS FOR CREDIT
IMPAIRED FINANCIAL ASSETS:

For credit-impaired exposures, the Probability of Default
(PD) is assumed to be 100%, as these loans have already
met the default criteria under the Bank's credit risk

policy.

The recovery horizon for such exposures is determined
based on Plateau Analysis, which assesses historical
recovery trends over time. The Loss Given Default (LGD)
is derived from the Bank's recovery model for exposures

where the recovery period has not yet expired. For
exposures where the recovery period has lapsed, an LGD
of 100% is applied to reflect full loss recognition.

The Exposure at Default (EAD) for credit-impaired
exposures is measured as the total outstanding balance
of the loan, including accrued interest and fees, as at the
reporting date.

Purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets
are those financial assets that are credit-impaired on
initial recognition.

The following loans were Purchased or originated
credit Impaired (POCI) determined by the bank.

PARTICULARS AMOUNT

Nil

INVESTMENT

The bank applies the NFRS 9 Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
model on investments in debt instruments measured
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The Vasicek single-
factor credit risk model is used to estimate probability
of default (PD), incorporating both systematic and
idiosyncratic risk. The model is calibrated using S&P
Global historical default and transition data, adjusted for
the Bank's portfolio and forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios. Loss Given Default (LGD) is estimated based
on recovery experience and external benchmarks, while
Exposure at Default (EAD) represents the amortised cost
carrying amount including accrued interest.

STAFF LOANS

Staffloans are classified at amortised costinaccordance
with NFRS 9. In the absence of historical default events,
the Bank has adopted the regulatory floor Probability
of Default (PD) of 2.5% as prescribed by NFRS 9, ECL
Guideline issued by Nepal Rastra Bank, together with an
average Loss Given Default (LGD) derived from Bank's
recovery experience. The Exposure at Default (EAD) is
represented by the outstanding loan balance, including
accrued interest. Although staff loans are generally
considered low risk due to repayment through salary
deductions and end-of-service benefits, an Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) is recognized to ensure compliance
with NFRS 9 and regulatory requirements. The staff loans
are assessed under stage 1unless objective evidence of
impairment exists. This conservative approach ensures
prudence infinancial reporting and alignment with sound
risk management practices.
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OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Off-balance sheet items such as letters of credit,
guarantees, and unutilised
not recognized as financial assets or liabilities in
the statement of financial position. However, these
exposures are subject to Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
under NFRS 9. For estimating ECL, the Bank applies the
Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given Default (LGD)
derived fromits business portfolio, and utilises the credit
conversion factors(CCF)/ utilization ratios as prescribed
inthe NFRS 9 ECL Guideline issued by Nepal Rastra Bank
(NRB). This approach ensures that ECL reflects both the
likelihood of default and the expected drawdown of off-
balance sheet exposures. All off-balance sheet exposures
are recognised under Stage 1 (12-month ECL) unless
there is objective evidence of impairment. This approach
ensures that ECL reflects both the likelihood of default
and the expected drawdown, maintaining prudence and
compliance with NFRS 9 and NRB requirements.

loan commitments are

WRITE OFF:

Financial assets are written off (either partially or fully)
when recovery is no longer considered realistic. A write-
off is treated as a derecognition event, where the asset's
carrying amount is reduced by the amount written off.
This occurs when the bank determines that further
collection efforts are unlikely to result in significant
recoveries. Any recoveries on written-off amounts are
recognized as income in the period in which they are
received.

The following loans were written off during the period.

ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY AFTER WRITE OFF:
The bank conducts the following enforcement activity
after the write off of a financial instrument:

TRANSFER BETWEEN STAGES

Financial assets can be transferred between the different
categories (other than POCI) depending on their relative
change in credit risk since initial recognition. Financial
instruments are transferred out of stage 2 if their credit
risk is no longer considered to be significantly increased
since initial recognition based on bank’s assessments.
Financial instruments are transferred out of Stage
3 when they no longer exhibit any evidence of credit
impairment as described above as per the ECL Policy.

TRANSFER FROM STAGE 2 TO STAGE 1:
If all due contractual payments associated with such
credit facility as at the date of upgrading are fully settled.

TRANSFER OUT OF STAGE 3:

Though the conditions for an exposure to be classified in
Stage 3 nolonger exist, the Bank continues to monitor for
a minimum probationary period of 3 months to upgrade
from Stage 3.

FOR RESTRUCTURED/RESCHEDULED EXPOSURES:

Restructured and rescheduled facilities are gradually
upgraded upon satisfactory repayment for a stipulated
period according to the policy while exercising prudence
principles. The Bank monitor restructured/rescheduled

S.N. PARTICULARS GCA WRITE OFF AMOUNT WRITTEN OFF DATE RECOVERY
(AFTER WRITTEN

OFF)

1 Pradeep Kumar Shrestha 203,292 203,292 30/10/2024 -
2 Bheerkot Krishi Tatha Pashupalan Firm 141,821 141,821 30/10/2024 -
3 Jk Aquaculture Pvt Ltd 339,639 339,639 30/10/2024 -
4 Bindu Gurung 344,380 344,380 20/02/2025 -
5 Rina Katuwal 648,371 648,371 20/02/2025 -
6 Sadikshya Bhusal 322,821 322,821 26/05/2025 -
7 Jyoti Shuttering Udhyog 79,743 79,743 26/05/2025 -
8 Sunil Karki 208,524 208,524 26/05/2025 -
9 Punaram Chaudhary 476,441 476,441 26/05/2025 -
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exposures classified under Stage 3 for a minimum
probationary period of 24 months before upgradation.

The transfer of the loans among different stages are
shown in disclosure if any.

KEY INPUTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATION
TECHNIQUES:

a.General Approach

The bank applies the general approach for recognition
of Expected Credit Losses loans and advances to
customers, loans to banks and financial institutions,
investment securities measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI, and loan commitments and financial guarantees
and staff loans. Under this approach, exposures are
classified into Stage 1, Stage 2, or Stage 3 based on
changes in credit risk since initial recognition, with a
12-month ECL recognized for Stage 1and lifetime ECL for
Stages 2 and 3. Interestincome is calculated on the gross
carrying amount for Stages 1 and 2, and on the actual
receipt basis for Stage 3.

b.Simplified Approach

The Bank's policy is to apply the simplified approach
to trade receivables without a significant financing
component, lease receivables, contract assets under
NFRS 15, and certain short-term staff or retail loans.
Under this approach, lifetime ECL is recognized from
initial recognition without staging assessment, typically
using a provision matrix or simplified statistical model
adjusted for forward-looking information. However,
no ECL has been calculated for these items during the
reporting period.

METHODOLOGY AND DATA SOURCE:

The Bank's Expected Credit Loss (ECL) estimates
are based on a combination of internal historical
data, requlatory guidance and forward-looking
macroeconomic information. Historical default rates are
derived from the bank’s internal portfolio performance
records, covering default rates actually observed by the
bank in past. Historical loss rates are derived from the
banks internal portfolio covering default, recoveries and
write offs over the past years. This includes portfolio
level default histories, Days Past Due (DPD) migration
trends, collateral recovery rates and cure rates.

Where internal history is insufficient to produce
statistically reliable estimates- particularly for certain

loan products or off-balance sheet exposures - the bank

supplements its analysis with:

m Parameters and indicative ratios provided in the Nepal
Rastra Bank's ECL Implementation Guidelines (eg,
Credit Conversion Factor [CCF], utilization ratios.

m Floor rates prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for
Probability of Default (PD)

Forward looking adjustments are applied to historical
rates to reflect expected changes in the economic
environment. These adjustments are informed by
macroeconomic forecastssourced fromtheInternational
Monetary Fund (IMF). The Bank uses scenario-weighted
projections (baseline, upturn, downturn) to modify
Probability of Default (PD) estimates, ensuring that the
ECL reflects both past performance and anticipated
future conditions.

INCORPORATION OF FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION:
Itisafundamental principal of NFRS 9 that the provisions
bank hold against the potential future Credit Risk losses
should depend, not just on the health of the economy
today, but should also take into account potential
changes to the economic environment.

To capture the effect of changes to the economic
environment, the Probability of Default (PD) used
to calculate ECL incorporate the forward- looking
information in the form of forecasts of the values of
economic variable.

VARIABLE SELECTION:

The bank initially considered a broad range of
macroeconomic variables sourced from the International
Monetary Fund (IMF). Through statistical testing -
including correlation analysis, regression significant
testing and model fit evaluation- only those variables
witha consistent and statistically significant relationship
with default rates for the Bank's portfolios were retained
in the final model.

Different portfolios may use different subsets of these
variables, depending on their relevance to the credit
behavior.

MACROECONOMIC SCENERIO:

Para 5.5.17 (a) requires the estimate of expected credit
losses to reflect an unbiased and probability weighted
amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes. The three possible scenarios are
taken into account i.e. Baseline, Upturn and downturn.



The base line forecasts are used to create the upturn and
downturn scenarios. The bank determines the upturn
and downturn of the macroeconomic variable using +/-
Standard Deviation of the baseline. The bank uses the
following probability weights:

These weights reflect management’s assessment of the
relative likelihood of each scenario over the forecast
horizon.

MACROECONOMIC VARIABLES USED IN THE MODEL:
The table below presents the variables incorporated in
the ECL model for the next 12 months. These variables

PARTICULARS PROBABILITY WEIGHTS
Base Line 40% are applied ata portfoliolevel, with relevance determined
Upturn 30% by the statistical significance and predictive power for
Downturn 30% each product segment.
Baseline
VARIABLES UNITS 01 02 03 04
General government total expenditure Percent of GDP 24.640 24.815 24.967 25.060
Inflation, average consumer prices Percent change 6.007 5.810 5.689 5.613
General government revenue Percent of GDP 0.290 0.257 0.230 0.209
General government revenue Percent of GDP 0.290 0.257 0.230 0.209
General government gross debt General government
gross debt 0.325 0.186 0.143 0.175
Upturn
VARIABLES UNITS 01 02 03 04
General government total expenditure Percent of GDP 23.445 23.620 23.772 23.865
Inflation, average consumer prices Percent change 4.698 4.500 4.379 4.304
General government revenue Percent of GDP 0.767 0.733 0.706 0.686
General government revenue Percent of GDP (0.186) (0.220) (0.247) (0.267)
General government gross debt General government
gross debt (0.679) (0.818) (0.861) (0.829)
Downturn
VARIABLES UNITS 01 02 03 04
General government total expenditure Percent of GDP 25.83424 26.00916 26.16153 26.2542
Inflation, average consumer prices Percent change 7.316162 7.118819 6.997934 6.922235
General government revenue Percent of GDP (0.185924) (0.219682) (0.246657) (0.267301)
General government revenue Percent of GDP 0.766899 0.733141 0.706166 0.685522
General government gross debt General government
gross debt 1.329802 1.190842 1.14757 1.179678
Probability Weighted:
VARIABLES UNITS 01 02 03 04
General government total expenditure Percent of GDP 26.506 26.541 26.566 26.586
Inflation, average consumer prices Percent change 6.715 6.709 6.707 6.706
General government revenue Percent of GDP (0.317) (0.319) (0.323) (0.328)
General government revenue Percent of GDP 0.636 0.634 0.630 0.625
General government gross debt General government
gross debt 1.011 0.981 0.953 0.926
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The above quarterly macroeconomic forecasts are
applied in the bank's ECL models to adjust Probability
of Default (PD) estimates for each quarter within the
forecast horizon. For lifetime ECL calculations, these
quarterly forecasts are extended beyond 12 months using
econometric models.

COLLATERAL VALUATION

The Bank seeks to use collateral, where possible, to
mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral
comes in various forms such as cash, gold, Government
Securities, Letters of Credit/Guarantees, real estate,
receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets etc.,

While determining loss rate or recovery rate for the
purpose of calculation of loss allowance, expected cash

flows from collateral realization have been considered
based on latest reliable internal/external valuations.
The bank has used collateral value from the valuation
conducted more than two months prior.

Collateral values are excluded from the loss allowance
calculation for loans that have defaulted and where the
collateral has not been realized within 5 years of default.

The Bankdeterminesthe Net Realizable value of collateral
as the current fair value reduced by estimated realization
costs and the applicable haircut, in accordance with
the Nepal Rastra Bank's NFRS 9 - Expected Credit Loss
Related Guidelines, 2024. The realization cost and
haircut used are:

S.N. COLLATERAL DETAILS REALIZATION COST HAIRCUT
1. Land & Building 5% 25%
2. Vehicle 0% 50%
3. Guarantees 0% 0%
4. Fixed Assets 5% 25%
5. Gold & Silver 5% 10%
6. Non-Governmental Securities 5% 10%
7. Others 0% 25%
8. Insurance Policy 5% 25%
9. Governmental Securities 2% 0%
10. Share Securities 5% 10%
1. Gold 10% 0%
12. Other Fixed Assets 5% 25%

The bank has not recognized an ECL Provision for the following, as the collateral held is considered sufficient to fully mitigate

the credit risk.

S.N. LOANTYPE GROSS CARRYING NRB ECL REASON
AMOUNT PROVISION PROVISION FORNOECL
1. Loan Against Fixed Deposit 137,626,258 - - Guaranteed by Fixed Deposit

2.

Investments

1,145,096,771

Government Backed Securities
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QUANTITATIVE INFORMATION:
A. Impairment Charges

PARTICULARS PREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR
2080/81 2081/82

Loans and Advances to Customers (A) 1,031,407,743 3,387,523,618
Loans and Advances to BFlIs(B) 27,476,475 45,484,432
Loans to Staffs(C) 2,066,959 4,070,089
Off- Balance sheet Items (D) 1,271,385 1,221,309
Investments (E) - -
Total Impairment (A+B+C+D+E) 1,062,222,563 3,438,299,449

The following table shows the total impairment Allowance of the bank for the year ending:

B. Impairment Charges as per staging

Impairment charges as per staging is shown in the table:

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS (ECL)
FOR THE YEAR ENDING ON 2082

PARTICULARS STAGE 1 STAGE 2 STAGE 3 TOTAL
Loans & Advances to Customers(A) 837,872,315 330,323,466 2,219,327,836 3,387,523,618
Loans and Advances to BFIs(B) 45,484,432 - - 45,484,432
Total 883,356,747 330,323,466 2,219,327,836 3,433,008,049
Loans to Staffs(C) 4,070,089 - - 4,070,089
Off Balance Sheet Items (D) 1,221,309 - - 1,221,309
Investment (E) - - - -
Total (A+B+C+D+E) 1,772,004,893 660,646,933 4,438,655,673 3,438,299,449

C Recognition of impairment charges on loans and advances:

The Bank, following regulatory backstop as mentioned in Clause 16 of “NFRS 9- Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024"
has recognized impairment on credit exposures as the HIGHER of total ECL calculated as per NFRS 9 and existing regulatory

provisions as mentioned in Unified NRB Directives no 02.

Following is the details of impairment under both methods:

PARTICULARS

AMOUNT

Total Impairment as per NRB

Total Impairment as per ECL

4,001,495,152
3,438,299,449

The higher of two above, i.e. 4,001,495,152 as been taken in account for impairment loss on loan and advances for the reporting

period.
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GCA is Gross Carrying Amount of the Loan.
ECL is Expected Credit Losses.

Also, following table shows the movement of the impairment during the year for staff loans:

PARTICULARS GROSS CARRYING ECL
AMOUNT (GCA)
Opening Balance 796,829,086 2,066,959
New assets originated 93,076,966 437,239
Assets derecognized (36,696,930) (127,338)
Unwinding of Discount - (69,631)
Change in Model - 1,762,861
GCA Adjustment 94,145,298 -
Closing Balance 947,354,420 4,070,090

The following table shows the movement of the impairment during the year of off Balance sheet items:

PARTICULARS GROSS CARRYING ECL
AMOUNT (GCA)
Opening Balance 340,101,164 1,271,385
New assets originated 139,852,708 498,633
Assets derecognized (149,234,500) (537,402)
Unwinding of Discount - (144,481)
Change in Model - 133,174
GCA Adjustment (14,569,272) -
Closing Balance 316,150,100 1,221,310

IMPAIRMENT AS PER NORMS OF NRB IN LOAN LOSS PROVISION
The Bank has provided for impairment provision as per norms of NRB in loan loss provision as given in NRB Directive no. 2 on
the basis of overdue period of principal and interest.

The Bank, following regulatory backstop as mentioned in Clause 16 of “NFRS 9- Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024"
has recognized impairment on credit exposures as the HIGHER of total ECL calculated as per NFRS 9 and existing regulatory
provisions as mentioned in Unified NRB Directives no 02.

PARTICULARS AMOUNT
Total Impairment as per NRB 4,001,495,152
Total Impairment as per ECL 3,438,299,449

The higher of two above, i.e. 4,001,495,152 as been taken in account for impairment loss on loan and advances for the reporting
period.
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5.14 Staff Loans and Advances and Employee Benefits Included in Loans and Advances to
Customers of the bank

Presented in financial statements under Loans and Advances to Customers are staff loans and advances extended in line with
the Employee Byelaws of the Bank. Eligibility criteria for availing staff loans are directly linked to the period of service under
permanent payroll of the Bank as per the Employee Byelaws of the Bank.

The carrying amount as at the balance sheet date was as under:

PARTICULARS 2081/082 2080/081
Staff Home Loans 585,278,000 536,373,000
Staff Vehicle Loans 16,501,120 17,065,963
Personal Borrowing by Staffs - 7,050,000
Staff Household Loans Overdraft 345,510,943 236,303,851
Less: Unwinding (326,843,420) (252,968,462)
Total 620,446,642 543,824,352

5.15 Investment Property and Non-Banking Asset

A.INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Investment Properties Measured at Cost and The details of Investment Property of the Bank are as follows:

PARTICULARS 2081/082 2080/081
Opening Balance 214,252,077 187,268,784
Add: Addition During the Year 510,074,137 89,022,399
Less: Disposal During the Year (48,829,971) 62,039,106
Total 675,496,243 214,252,077

B. NON-BANKING ASSETS
Non-Banking Assets (NBA) are the assets obtained as security for loans & advances and subsequently taken over by the Bank.
The following are the list of properties taken over by the Bank as the non-banking assets during the course of debt recovery:

AMOUNT OF NBA
RESPECTIVE BRANCH DATE OF BOOKING NBA 2081/82 080/81
Manigram 29/03/2081 - 6,750,000
Yogikuti 18/08/2080 - 30,400,000
Birat Chowk 15/08/2080 - 6,184,969
Farsatikar 29/03/2081 - 13,026,805
Kushma 07/03/2081 - 22,070,000
Syangja 14/03/2081 - 10,590,625
Dhungedhara 2081/05/14 5,600,000 -
Gongabu 2081/06/11 8,439,971 -
Sunawal 2081/06/16 2,540,000 -
Tankisinwari 2081/09/17 6,008,094 -
Khaireni 2081/09/21 15,840,000 -
Damak 2081/09/21 7,871,434 -
Biratnagar 2081/09/28 3,688,673 -

Pharsatikar 2081/09/28 12,000,000 -




20% @ e faeme S fafaes

AMOUNT OF NBA
RESPECTIVE BRANCH DATE OF BOOKING NBA 2081/82 080/81
Lakeside 2081/09/29 11,315,000 -
Simara 2081/11/18 6,841,000 -
Baglung 2081/12/20 7,800,000 -
Butwal 2081/12/20 43,516,762 -
Butwal 2081/12/20 5,351,541 -
Chandrauta 2081/12/29 15,502,500 -
Dhadingbeshi 2082/01/19 10,965,920 -
Dhadingbeshi 2082/01/19 328,671 -
Hetauda 2082/02/13 2,607,956 -
Sunwal 2082/03/16 4,266,849 -
Chandragadhi 2082/03/16 4,491,767 -
Daldale 2082/03/18 1,930,000 -
Kawasoti 2082/03/20 4,226,287 -
Surkhet 2082/03/23 5,100,000 -
Hetauda 2082/03/23 12,445,000 -
Simara 2082/03/23 9,742,728 -
Damak 2082/03/26 257,340,000 -
Damak 2082/03/26 41,184,046 -
Birgunj 2082/03/32 3,330,038 -
Total 510,074,137 89,022,399

5.16 Liability for Long Service Leave

The detail of liability for long service leave recognized in Other Liabilities in Statement of Financial Position is as follows:

GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Present Value of Unfunded Obligations 383,631,699 282,023,258 382,195,681 281,058,384
Present Value of Funded Obligations - - - -
Total Present Value of Obligations 383,631,699 282,023,258 382,195,681 281,058,384
Fair Value of Plan Assets 94,204,316 97,435,035 94,204,316 97,435,035
Present Value of Net Obligations 289,327,383 184,588,223 287,991,365 183,623,350
Recognized Liability for Defined Benefit Obligations 289,327,383 184,588,223 287,991,365 183,623,350

Detail of Plan Assets

GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Equity Securities - - - -
Government Bonds - - - -
Bank Deposit - - - -
Other 94,204,316 97,435,035 94,204,316 97,435,035
Total 94,204,316 97,435,035 94,204,316 97,435,035
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Movement in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1, 2081 282,023,258 248,642,582 281,058,384 247,334,958
Actuarial Losses 41,072,534 (60,463) 41,072,534 (60,463)
Benefits Paid by the Plan (3,230,719)  (10,004,973)  (3,230,719) (10,004,973)
Benefits paid Directly (17,421,387)  (23,804,535)  (17.421,387)  (23,461,784)
Current Service Costs, Past Service Costs and Interest 81,088,014 67,250,646 80,716,869 67,250,646
Defined Benefit Obligations at Ashad End, 2082 383,531,699 282,023,258 382,195,681 281,058,384
Movement in the Fair Value of Plan Assets
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Shrawan 1, 2081 97,435,035 107,440,008 97,435,035 107,440,008
Contributions Paid Into The Plan - - - -
Benefits Paid During The Year (3,230,719)  (10,004,973)  (3,230,719) (10,004,973)
Interest Income 9,581,968 10,243,752 9,581,968 10,243,752
Expected return on plan assets (9,581,968)  (10,243,752) (9,581,968) (10,243,752)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Ashad End, 2082 94,204,316 97,435,035 94,204,316 97,435,035
Amount recognized in Profit or Loss
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Current service costs 52,287,790 51,912,824 51,916,645 51,912,824
Past service costs-(Non-Vested) - - - -
Past service costs (Vested) - - - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss 11,308,959 2,521,416 11,308,959 2,521,416
Interest on obligation 17,491,265 12,816,406 17,491,265 12,816,406
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Total 81,088,014 67,250,646 80,716,869 67,250,646
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
GROUP BANK
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81 2081-82 2080-81
Actuarial (gain)/loss 41,072,534 (60,463) 41,072,534 (60,463)
Total 41,072,534 (60,463) 41,072,534 (60,463)
Actuarial Assumptions
PARTICULARS 2081-82 2080-81
Discount rate 9% 10%

Future salary increase

Withdrawal rate

4%
5%

4%
5%
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5.17 Taxation

CURRENT YEAR TAX

Current year tax liability has been recognized on net
profit at the rate of 30% after required adjustment to
arrive at taxable profit. Reconciliation between current
year tax liability and current tax based on net profit of the
book has been given in Note 4.41.1.

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax is computed at 30% of the temporary
differences between accounting base and tax base.
Deferred tax assets/ liabilities and the calculation of
deferred taxes are given in Note 4.15 of Statement of
Financial Position.

5.18 Loans and Advances extended to
promoters

No any type of Loan facility has been extended to
promoters.

5.19 Unpaid Dividend
The following unpaid dividend amount has remained
outstanding as at the reporting date:

PARTICULARS 2081/082
Above 5 Years 1,430,335
Below 5 Years 31,969,279
Total Unpaid Dividend 33,399,614

5.20 Reserves and Fund

The Bank has created different types of reserves as per
regulatory requirement. Such reserves are discussed
and disclosed in detail as mentioned below:

A. REGULATORY RESERVE

The regulatory reserve has been created of NPR
788,018,668/~ up to the current year as per NRB Directive
4(3) (Ka). The detail of requlatory reserve created in the
current year is given in the Statement of Distributable
Profit or Loss. The detail of movement of Regulatory
Reserves of the Bank is summarized as below:

FISCAL YEAR INTEREST SHORT DEFERRED ACTURIAL GOODWILL STAFF TOTAL

RECEIVABLE LOANLOSS TAX ASSET LOSS BONUS

PROVISION RECOGNIZED RECEIVABLE

ON NBA

Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2078 102,313,489 4,892,435 - 13,810,346 - - 121,016,272
Changesin FY 2078/079 86,585,641 (2,120,435) - (806,733) 92,311,741 - 175,970,114
Transfer From Sahara Bikas Bank Ltd 13,758,247 - 14,201,580 74174 - - 28,034,001
Balance as on 32nd Ashad 2079 202,657,277 2,772,000 14,201,580 13,077,788 92,311,741 - 325,020,386
Changesin FY 2079/080 154,622,816 94,975,010 18,250,647 12,142,035 - 48,959,673 328,950,181
Balance as on 31st Ashad 2080 357,280,093 97,747,010 32,452,227 25,219,823 92,311,741 48,959,673 653,970,567
Changesin FY 2080/081 (73,447,344) (7,097,287)  (7,564,075) (42,324) - (1710012)  (89,861,041)
Balance as on 31st Ashad 2081 283,832,749 90,649,723 24,888,152 25,177,499 92,311,741 47,249,661 564,109,525
Changesin FY 2081/082 (85,730,424) 229,561,221 53,918,056 28,750,774 - (2,590,485) 223,909,143
Balance as on 32nd Ashad 2082 198,102,326 320,210,944 78,806,209 53,928,272 92,311,741 44,659,176 788,018,668
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B. SHARE PREMIUM
The Bank has distributed share premium of NPR Nil as at
the reporting date. Detail is as below:

PARTICULAR AMOUNT

Opening Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2081 -
Add: from shares issued -
Less: Bonus Share Issued out of Share Premium -

Closing Balance -

C.DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE (DRR)

PARTICULAR AMOUNT
Opening Balance as at 1st Shrawan 2081 333,333,333
Add: Amount allocated to Debenture Redemption 166,666,667
Reserve from current year Net Profit

Less: Amount utilized from Debenture Nil
Redemption Reserve during the year

Closing Balance of the Reserve as at 500,000,000

32nd Ashar 2082

D. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY FUND

Clause 13 of the NRB Directive No.6. Requires the Bank
to allocate 1% of its net profit to the corporate social
responsibility fund and spent the same for the social
causes. The details of the movement of the Corporate
Social Responsibility Fund is presented below:

PARTICULAR 2081/082 2080/081

12,879,186 18,783,399
(10,979,918) (10,243,732)

Opening Balance of CSR Fund

Less: Expenses incurred from CSR
Fund during the year

Add: Amount allocated to 12,476,921 4,339,519
CSR Fund from current year net profit
Add(Less): Adjustment by NRB 1,645,248 -

CSR Fund available for next 16,021,436 12,879,185

financial year

E.MICROFINANCE WELFARE FUND

The bank has maintained the microfinance welfare fund
to cover the risk associated with the group guarantee
microfinance lending. The bank has formulated the policy
for the collect and utilization of the welfare fund. Bank
collects the certain welfare amount from the customers
availing group guarantee microfinance and the amount
will be separately accounted as liability of the bank. The
movement of microfinance welfare fund during the year
is presented below:

PARTICULAR AMOUNT
Opening Balance of Microfinance Welfare Fund 60,799,928
Add: Addition during the year -
Less: Payment during the year (2,372,652)
Closing Balance of Microfinance Welfare Fund 58,427,276

F.EMPLOYEE TRAINING FUND

The Bank and Financial Institution are required to
allocate and spent at least 3% of the previous year
salary and allowances for the staff skill development as
per Directive 6 of the Nepal Rastra Bank Directives. In
case the allocated amount isn't spent, the same has to
be carried forward to the next financial year in a Staff
Employee Training Fund. In line of this requirement, the
movement on the Employee Training Fund is as follows:

PARTICULAR AMOUNT

Opening Balance as at 1st Shrawan 2081 17,516,765
Add: 3% of the previous year salary and allowances 18,922,445

Less: Total expenses for the skill development (9,648,011)
of staffs during the year

Excess/(Deficit)amount incurred for employee -
training and skill development program

Fund Balance carried forward to next year 26,791,200

Sector Wise Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
spendingin FY 2081/82 is as follows:

SECTORS AMOUNT %
Health 2,071,585 18.87%
Education 1,506,822 13.72%
Humanatarian Aid and Relief 110,000 1.00%
Environment 572,401 5.21%
Financial Literacy 1,588,428 14.47%
Sustainable Development 209,959 1.91%
Others 4,920,723 44.82%
Total 10,979,918 100%

5.21 Proposed Bonus Share & Cash
Dividend

The 334th Board meeting of the Bank dated 13 October
2025 has unanimously decided to propose 6% Bonus
Shares amounting to Rs. 340,831,039.65 and 4.53% cash
dividend amounting to Rs. 257,327,434.94 (including
for tax purpose) i.e. in total 10.53% dividend amounting
to Rs. 598,158,474.59 on current paid-up capital of Rs
5,680,517,327.57 from Reatined Earnings to the eligible
shareholders of the bank. The distribution shall be
made after approval from Nepal Rastra Bank as well as
Annual General Meeting of the bank and after deducting
applicable taxes on dividend.
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5.22 Provision for Bonus to Employees
Provision for staff bonus has been made as per Bonus
Act 2030, calculated at 10% of net profit before bonus.
For the FY 2081/82, the Bank has made provision of NPR.
200,718,308 towards Staff Bonus.

5.23 Earnings per Share

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share, also called net income per share, is a
market prospect ratio that measures the amount of net
income/ loss earned per share of stock outstanding. In
other words, this is the amount of money each share of
stock would receive if all of the profits were distributed
to the outstanding shares at the end of the year. It
is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to
ordinary equity holders by the average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

The earnings attributable to the ordinary equity holders
consists of the earnings of the Bank after deduction of
all expenses, tax expense and preference dividends,
differences arising on the settlement of preference
shares, and other similar effects of preference shares
classified as equity.

The calculation of basic earnings per share of the
Bank has been based on the profit/ loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and weighted average number of
shares outstanding as tabulated below:

PARTICULAR 2081/082 2080/081
Profit Attributable to ordinary 1,247,692,141 433,951,860
shareholders

Weighted Average number of

56,805,173 56,805,173

Ordinary Shares
Basic Earnings Per Share 21.96 7.64
Diluted Earnings Per Share 21.96 7.64

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Diluted shares are the shares that would be outstanding
if all possible sources of conversion, such as convertible
bonds and stock options, were exercised. Specific
financial figures in terms of fully diluted shares
outstanding are reported to allow investors to properly
assess the Bank's financial situation. There are no dilutive
shares during the year of the Bank and the Subsidiary.

5.24 Interim Financial Statements

The Interim Financial Statements of the Group have been
prepared and published on quarterly basis as per NFRS
and NRB Directive no 4 in compliance of statutory and
legal requirement within the time frame prescribed.

5.25 NFRS Carve-Outs Adjustments

During the current fiscal year, the Group has not applied
the numbers of standards as prescribed in NFRS and used
the NFRS carve- out adjustments. As a consequence, the
net profit and retained earnings have been impacted.
The impacts of each carve- out adjustment done
and the affected financial statement line items have
been summarized as follows wherever quantifiable or
described otherwise:

NFRS 9: Recognition and Measurement (Expected Credit
Loss Model measure the Impairment Loss on Loans and
Advances)

NFRS 9 requires an entity to assess at the end of each
reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets
measured at amortized cost is impaired. If any such
evidence exists, the entity shall determine the amount
of any impairment loss. However, as per carve out on
NFRS 9 Para 5.5, the Bank has assessed and measured
impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of
amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra
Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as
per Expected Credit Loss of NFRS 9. The Exact wordings
provided by ICAN carve out are:

An entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets measured at amortised
cost is impaired. If any such evidence exists, the entity
shall apply paragraph 5 to determine the amount of any
impairment loss unless the entity is a bank or financial
institutionregisteredasperBankand Financialinstitution
Act 2073. Such entities shall measure impairment loss on
loan and advances as the higher or amount derived as
Per the norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan
loss provision and amount determined as per paragraph
5 and shall apply paragraph 5 to measure the impairment
loss on financial assets other than loan and advances.
The entity shall disclose the impairment loss as per this
carveout and amount of impairment loss determined as
per paragraph 5.”
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The impacts of the application of carve- out in the 5.27 Details of Concessional and Priority
current year financials is as under: Sector Loans
The Bank has provided the Subsidized Loan, Deprived
Gross Loans and Advances Sector Loans. Summary of such loan as on Ashad end
(To Customers and BFls) 77,706,406,186 .
2082 is as follows:
Impairment Loss as per NFRS 9 3,438,299,449
Impairment Loss as per Norms of NRB 4,001,495,152
PARTICULARS LOAN AMOUNT % OF TOTAL
IN NPR ‘000 LOAN*
The hlgher’of two above |'.e.,' NPR 4,001,495,152 has Subsidized Loan 1,045,938 140%
been taken into account for impairment loss on loan and
. . . . . Deprived Sector Loan 4,455,959 5.98%
advances in the preparation of consolidated financial
reports. Priority Sector Loan 15,264,738 20.49%
Total 20,766,6345 27.87%
5.26 Details of Refinance Loan and
Business Continuity Loan *Total Loan as of Poush end 2081 has been considered for
The Bank has not availed any refinance facility as on the calculation of coverage of specified loans mentioned
reporting date. above.

5.28 Statement of Principal Indicators for last five years

INDICATORS UNIT 77178 78/79 79/80 80/81 81/82
Core Capital NPRin"000" 5,014,862 6,170,955 6,927,804 7,304,360 7,938,671
Supplementary Capital NPRin"000" 616,458 1,954,529 2,074,159 1,396,851 1,397,700
Total Capital Fund NPRin"000" 5,631,320 8,125,484 9,001,964 8,701.21 9,336,371
Risk Weighted Exposure NPRin"000" 49,295,219 60,271,443 65,754,943 65,467,961 70,724,695
Core Capital Percent 10.18 10.24 10.54 11.16 1.22
Supplementary Capital Percent 1.25 3.24 3.15 2.13 1.98
Total Capital Fund Percent 1.43 13.48 13.69 13.29 13.20
Earning Per Share (Average share outstanding) NPR 22.75 22.49 24.38 7.64 21.96
Market Value Per Share NPR 544.00 387.00 405.00 385.1 428.36
Book Net Worth Per Share NPR 145.49 144.03 150.42 145.38 163.07
Number of Promotor Equity Shares Nos. 18,747,154 23,357,451 26,457,204 28,970,638 28,970,639
Number of Public Equity Shares Nos. 18,011,971 22,441,473 25,419,666 27,834,535 27,834,534
Number of Permanent Staffs Nos. 746 857 884 889 870
Total Number of Staffs Nos. 933 1,027 1,038 1,049 1,034
Price Earning Ratio Times 23.91 17.21 16.61 50.54 18.50
Dividend (including bonus) on Share Capital Percent 16.00 14.50 10.00 5 10.53
Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent - 1.50 0.50 5 4.53
Net Profit / Gross Income Percent 31.23 33.568 34.02 11.31 29.26
Net Profit / Loans and Advances Percent 1.54 1.69 1.93 0.63 1.69
Return on Total Assets Percent 1.36 1.35 1.49 0.47 1.24
Return on Equity Percent 17.25 17.25 17.57 5.40 14.24
Interest Income / Loans and Advances Percent 10.14 13.05 14.93 14.68 11.38
Exchange Gain / Total Income Percent - - 0.13 0.15 0.19
Interest Expenses / Total Deposits and Borrowings Percent 5.27 7.49 9.26 7.81 5.10
Total Operating Expenses / Total Assets Percent 0.62 1.73 1.71 1.52 1.73
Staff Expenses / Total Operating Expenses Percent 52.37 59.83 59.64 56.29 61.62
Staff Bonus / Total Staff Expenses Percent 26.98 20.26 21.86 8.68 18.07
Total Credit / Deposits Percent 82.04 85.31 82.89 82.72 83.40
Non-Performing Loans / Total Loans Percent 0.72 0.85 1.70 4.85 4.69
Net NPL Percent 0.45 0.42 0.79 1.57 0.76
Base Rate Percent 8.17 .41 11.78 8.67 7.24

Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread Percent 4.50 4.66 4.60 4.59 4.37
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS FY 2081-82 FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 56.05% 83.48% 81.50% 92.50% 100.00%
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 175.38% 174.04% 137.47% 92.78% 100.00%
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions = - - 100.00% -
Derivative financial instruments = - - - -
Other trading assets = - - - -
Loan and Advances to B/Fls 231.66% 219.45% 150.61% 144.02% 100.00%
Loans and advances to customers 133.75% 124.96% 119.87% 12.30% 100.00%
Investment securities 192.83% 158.81% 142.45% 94.62% 100.00%
Current Tax Assets 117.81% 578.27% (100.00%) (100.00%) 100.00%
Investment in subsidiaries 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% -
Investment in Associates (100.00%) (100.00%) (100.00%) 131.12% 100.00%
Investment property 1693.80% 537.23% 469.57% 91.56% 100.00%
Property and equipment 459.89% 132.85% 154.46% 180.42% 100.00%
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 1296.85% 1228.01% 1264.95% 127112 % 100.00%
Deferred tax assets 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - -
Other assets 142.19% 178.71% 137.64% 101.55% 100.00%
Total Assets 143.18% 132.00% 122.21% 109.69% 100.00%
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 11.10% 77.21% 91.12% 88.13% 100.00%
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank (100.00%) (100.00%) (100.00%) 127.93% 100.00%
Derivative Financial instruments = - - - -
Deposit from customers 141.02% 131.85% 120.44% 107.05% 100.00%
Borrowings = 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% -
Current Tax Liabilities = - 100.00% 100.00% -
Provisions = - - - -
Deferred tax liabilities (100.00%) (100.00%) (100.00%) 1.61% 100.00%
Other liabilities 217.25% 144.04% 174.72% 162.24% 100.00%
Debt securities issued 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% -
Subordinated Liabilities = - - - -
Total liabilities 140.81% 130.23% 120.34% 108.61% 100.00%
Equity

Share Capital 154.53% 154.53% 141.13% 124.59% 100.00%
Share Premium (100.00%) (100.00%) 4548.69% 95099.90% 100.00%
Retained Earnings 95.99% 45.88% 82.92% 93.62% 100.00%
Reserves 284.74% 218.66% 199.79% 127.88% 100.00%
Total equity attributable to equity holders 143.18% 132.00% 122.21% 109.69% 100.00%

Horizontal Analysis (Balance Sheet)

Horizontal Analysis on Balance Sheet refers to the analysis of growth of each component of balance sheet items from the base
period. Here base period is considered the year 2077-78 giving a value of 100% and after that period value above 100% means positive
growth and below 100% means negative growth compared to base year. Here, total assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity are
showing consistent growth over the last five years which symbolize sustainable balance sheet growth of the bank as a whole.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

S o

Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS FY 2081-82 FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Interest Income 153% 185% 195% 145% 100%
Interest Expense 137% 195% 213% 153% 100%
Net interest income 182% 167% 165% 131% 100%
Fees and Commission Income 126% 117% 99% 88% 100%
Fees and Commission Expense 18% 68% 63% 51% 100%
Net fee and Commission income 135% 121% 102% 91% 100%
Net interest fee and commission income 175% 160% 155% 124% 100%
Net Trading Income 31M21% 30202% 33932% TMN% 100%
Other Operating Income 4% N% 12% 39% 100%
Total operating income 161% 144% 140% 15% 100%
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 159% 421% 102% 42% 100%
Net Operating income 161% 94% 147% 128% 100%
Operating expenses

Personnel Expense 181% 134% 148% 135% 100%
Other Operating Expenses 132% 137% 130% N7% 100%
Depreciation and amortisation 256% 177% 180% 167% 100%
Operating Profit 152% 54% 148% 125% 100%
Non operating income 6% 13% 243% 228% 100%
Non operating expense 100% - - - -
Profit before share of results of Associates 151% 54% 149% 126% 100%
& Joint Ventures

Share of Results of Associates & Joint Venture (100%) (100%) (100%) 138% 100%
Profit before income tax 151% 54% 149% 126% 100%
Income tax expense 154 % 58% 144% 134% 100%
Current tax Expenses 162 % 59% 152% 130% 100%
Deferred tax Expense/(Income) 2008% 418% 2045% (719%) 100%
Profit for the period 149% 52% 151% 123% 100%
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the bank 149% 52% 151% 123% 100%
Non-controlling interest = - - - -
Profit for the period 149% 52% 151% 123% 100%
Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share 97% 34% 107% 99% 100%
Diluted earnings per Share 97% 34% 107% 99% 100%

Horizontal Analysis (Profit and Loss Statement)

Horizontal Analysis on Income Statement refers to the analysis of growth of each component of income statement items from the
base period. Here base period is considered the year 2077-78 giving a value of 100% and after that period value above 100% means
positive growth and below 100% means negative growth compared to base year. Here, income of the bank is growing consistently
over the period of past five years which symbolize sustainable income growth of the bank.
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS FY 2081-82 FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 3.03% 4.90% 5.16% 6.53% 7.74%
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 3.62% 3.89% 3.32% 2.50% 2.95%
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions = - - 0.62% -
Derivative financial instruments = - - - -
Other trading assets = - - - -
Loan and Advances to B/Fls 4.38% 4.50% 3.34% 3.56% 2.NM%
Loans and advances to customers 66.18% 67.07% 69.49% 72.53% 70.85%
Investment securities 19.33% 17.27% 16.73% 12.38% 14.36%
Current Tax Assets 0.08% 0.43% - - 0.10%
Investment in subsidiaries 0.12% 0.13% 0.14% 0.15% -
Investment in Associates = - - 0.01% 0.01%
Investment property 0.65% 0.22% 0.21% 0.05% 0.05%
Property and equipment 1.83% 0.57% 0.72% 0.94% 0.57%
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 0.10% 0.10% 0.11% 0.13% 0.01%
Deferred tax assets 0.04% 0.03% 0.04% - -
Other assets 0.66% 0.89% 0.74% 0.61% 0.66%
Total Assets 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 2.46% 1.85% 2.36% 2.54% 3.07%
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank = - - 1.01% 0.87%
Derivative Financial instruments = - - - -
Deposit from customers 86.26% 87.48% 86.32% 85.48% 87.59%
Borrowings = 0.01% 0.02% 0.03% -
Current Tax Liabilities = - 0.06% 0.03% -
Provisions = - - - -
Deferred tax liabilities = - - - 0.09%
Other liabilities 1.46% 1.05% 1.37% 1.42% 0.96%
Debt securities issued 0.95% 1.03% 1.12% 1.24% -
Subordinated Liabilities = - - - -
Total liabilities 91.13% 91.43% 91.25% 91.76% 92.67%
Equity

Share Capital 5.44% 5.90% 5.82% 5.72% 5.04%
Share Premium = - - 0.12% -
Retained Earnings 0.57% 0.30% 0.58% 0.73% 0.86%
Reserves 2.86% 2.38% 2.35% 1.67% 1.44%
Total equity attributable to equity holders 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Vertical Analysis (Balance Sheet)

Vertical Analysis on Balance Sheet refers to the components of balance sheet items as a percentage of total Assets over the periods
which would be termed as common sizing of balance sheet.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

)

Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS FY 2081-82 FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80 FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Interest Income 92.79% 95.09% 95.72% 94.15% 88.59%
Interest Expense 52.85% 63.91% 66.48% 63.42% 56.48%
Net interest income 39.94% 31.17% 29.25% 30.72% 32.11%
Fees and Commission Income 5.71% 4.49% 3.63% 4.26% 6.61%
Fees and Commission Expense 0.06% 0.19% 0.17% 0.18% 0.49%
Net fee and Commission income 5.65% 4.29% 3.46% 4.07% 6.12%
Net interest fee and commission income 45.59% 35.47% 32.M% 34.80% 38.23%
Net Trading Income 0.18% 0.13% 0.13% 0.00% 0.00%
Other Operating Income 1.31% 0.29% 0.30% 1.33% 4.64%
Total operating income 47.09% 35.88% 33.14% 36.13% 42.87%
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 7.16% 16.09% 3.70% 2.05% 6.59%
Net Operating income 39.93% 19.79% 29.44% 34.08% 36.28%
Operating expenses

Personnel Expense 12.28% 7.74% 8.14% 9.83% 9.95%
Other Operating Expenses 5.13% 4.53% 4.07% 4.85% 5.67%
Depreciation and amortisation 2.52% 1.48% 1.44% 1.76% 1.44%
Operating Profit 20.00% 6.04% 15.80% 17.65% 19.22%
Non operating income 0.01% 0.01% 0.21% 0.26% 0.16%
Non operating expense 0.03% - - - -
Profit before share of results of Associates 19.98% 6.05% 16.01% 17.91% 19.38%
& Joint Ventures

Share of Results of Associates & Joint Venture = - - 0.02% 0.02%
Profit before income tax 19.98% 6.05% 16.01% 17.93% 19.40%
Income tax expense 6.18% 1.97% 4.68% 5.73% 5.86%
Current tax Expenses 8.52% 2.03% 4.96% 5.61% 5.88%
Deferred tax Expense/(Income) (0.34%) (0.06%) (0.28%) 0.11% (0.02%)
Profit for the period 13.80% 4.08% 1.33% 12.20% 13.54%

Vertical Analysis (Profit and Loss Statement)

Vertical Analysis on Income Statement refers to the components of income statement items as a percentage amount of total
income over the periods which would be termed as common sizing of income statement.






GARIMA CAPITAL LIMITED
(A SUBSIDIARY OF GARIMA BIKAS BANK LIMITED)

STATUTORY REPORTS &
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



: ]OSH’ & BHANDARY = Chartered Accountants & G.P.O. Bdx: 3423

Kosi Compound, Dillibazar
Kathmandu, Nepal

Tel: 977-1-4519364

Tel: 977-1-4523550

Fax: 977-1-4513038

Web: www jb com.np

-—
-

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GARIMA CAPITAL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion )

We have audited the financial statements of Garima Capital Limited, which comprise the statement of -
financial position as at Ashad 32, 2082 (corresponding to July 16, 2025), the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flow for the

year then ended, and a notes to the financial statements prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards.

In our opinion and, the financial statements referred to above, read together with the notes attached present
fairly, in all material respect, the financial position of the Company as at Ashad 32, 2082 (corresponding to
July 16, 2025) and its financial performance, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flow statement for the year then ended in accordance with the
- Nepal Financial Reporting Standards..

Basis for Opinion

We have conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Institute of Chartered
Accountant of Nepal's code of ethics for professional accountants (ICAN Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal and we have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

&

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. -

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: P SN
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Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cause significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our, auditor's
report to the related disclosure in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

~ matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards :

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our examination of the financial statements as per company’s Act, we report that: :

We have obtained information and explanations asked for which, to best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of our audit,

The accounts and records of the company have been maintained as per required by law and practice
in a manner to reflect real affairs of Company,

Statements of financial position, statement of profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows, have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, and are in agreement with the books of
account maintained by the Company including relevant records relating to preparation of the
aforesaid financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and records of the Company,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanation given to us, the board
of Directors, the representative or employee of company has not acted contrary to the provision of
law relating to accounts nor caused direct loss or damage to the company deliberately or acted in
manner that would jeopardized the interest and security of the Company and business of the
Company appears to have been conducted satisfactorily.

Gyanendra Subedi, FCA Q{xamrr-: n
Partner I\ )
Date:05 Bhadra, 2082

UDIN: 250902CA00482TdA42 S’
Kathmandu
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GARIMA CAPITAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

For the year ended 32 Ashad 2082

Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS NOTES 32ND ASHADH, 2082 31ST ASHADH, 2081
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalent 4.1 3,385,221 3,283,635
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.2 = =
Loans and Advances 4.3 = =
Investment 4.4 331,555,273 219,079,844
Current Tax Assets 4.5 16,901,977 10,951,061
Property, Plant and Equipment 4.6 7,778,744 10,218,535
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.7 1,876,045 1,037,815
Deferred Tax Assets 4.8 = 13,508,908
Other Assets 4.9 55,563,869 60,136,453
Total Assets 417,061,129 318,216,250
Liabilities
Borrowings 4.10 98,587,819 48,951,283
Current Tax Liabilities 4.5 = =
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.8 3,533,000 =
Other Liabilities 4.11 67,721,643 62,535,361
Total Liabilities 169,842,462 1,486,644
Equity
Share Capita 4.12 242,000,000 242,000,000
Retained Earning 413 (26,399,915) (47,032,359)
Other Reserves 4.3 31,618,582 11,761,965
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders 247,218,667 206,729,606
Total Liabilities and Equity 417,061,129 318,216,250
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 4.14 = =
Net Assets Value per Share 102.16 85.43
The accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements
DEEPAK PANDEY ANIL REGMI SANJU PRASAD JAISWAL NAINA NEPAL DHAKAL As per our report of even date
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR attached

GYANENDRA SUBEDI FCA

PARTNER

FOR,
NIRMAL BHATTARAI ASHOK SUBEDI MAHESH PRASAD KAPHLE JOSHI & BHANDARY,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

DATE : 4THBHADRA, 2082 (20TH AUGUST, 2025)
PLACE : KATHMANDU, NEPAL
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GARIMA CAPITAL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the Period from 1st Shrawan, 2081 to 32nd Ashadh, 2082 Amount in NPR
PARTICULARS NOTES CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Income

Fees and Commission Income 4.5 55,060,412 21,474,908
Fees and Commission Expenses 4.16 (5,519,390) (4,541,981)
Net Fees and Commission Income (A) 49,541,022 16,932,926
Trading Income 4.7 23,999,141 17,942,487
Other Trading Income 4.18 404,748 421,330
Total Trading Income (B) 24,403,888 18,363,816
Interest Income 4.19 4,797,530 4,664,667
Interest Expenses 4.20 (10,746,908) (5,786,758)
Net Interest Income (C) (5,949,378) (1,122,090)
Non-Operating Income 4.19A 1,784,334 25,509
Non-Operating Expenses = =
Net Non-Operating Income (D) 1,784,334 25,509
Impairment Charges/(Reversal) 4.21 - -
Total income (E)=(A+B+C+D) 69,779,867 34,200,161
Expenses

Personnel Expenses 4.22 24,910,540 18,863,174
Other Operating Expenses 4.23 7,481,246 7,163,714
Depreciation and Amortisation 4.24 5,627,619 5,607,956
Total Expenses (F) 38,019,405 31,634,845
"Profit Before Fair Value Gain/(Loss) and Income Tax (G) =(E) - (F)" 31,760,462 2,565,316
Gain/(Loss) due to Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assetsat FVTPL (H) 4.17 20,696,751 3,659,527
Profit Before Income Tax  (1)=(G) +(H) 52,457,212 6,224,843
Income Tax Expenses (J) 4.25 15,523,989 1,237,332
Current Tax Expenses 7,161 =
Deferred Tax(Income)/Expenses 15,516,828 1,237,332
Profit for the Period (K)=(1)-(J) 36,933,224 4,987,511
Profit Attributable to:

Equity Holders 36,933,224 4,987,511
Non-controlling Interest = =
Profit for the Period 36,933,224 4,987,511
Earnings per Share (Weighted Average):

Basic Earnings per Share 15.26 2.06
Diluted Earnings per Share 15.26 2.06

The accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements

DEEPAK PANDEY ANIL REGMI SANJU PRASAD JAISWAL NAINA NEPAL DHAKAL As per our report of even date
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR attached
GYANENDRA SUBEDI FCA
PARTNER
FOR,
NIRMAL BHATTARAI ASHOK SUBEDI MAHESH PRASAD KAPHLE JOSHI & BHANDARY,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

DATE : 4THBHADRA, 2082 (20TH AUGUST, 2025)
PLACE : KATHMANDU, NEPAL
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GARIMA CAPITAL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Period from 1st Shrawan, 2081 to 32nd Ashadh, 2082

Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Profit for the Period 36,933,224 4,987,511
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Income Tax
a) Items That Will Not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
- Gain/(Loss) from Investment in Equity Instruments Measured at Fair Value 5,083,600 3,199,600
- Gain/(Loss) on Revaluation = =
« Acturial Gain/(Loss) on Defined Benefit Plans - -
- Income Tax Relating to Above Items (1,525,080) (959,880)
Net Other Comprehensive Income That Will Not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss 3,558,520 2,239,720
b) Items That are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
- Gain/(Loss)on Cash Flow Hedge - -
- Exchange Gain/(Loss)Arising from Translating Financial Assets of Foreign Operation) =
« Income Tax Relating to Above Items = =
« Reclassification to Profit or Loss = =
Net Other Comprehensive Income that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss - =
Other Comprehensive Income for the Period, Net of Income Tax (a+b) 3,558,520 2,239,720
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 40,491,744 7,227,231
Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to Equity Holders 40,491,744 7,227,231
The accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements
DEEPAK PANDEY ANIL REGMI SANJU PRASAD JAISWAL NAINA NEPAL DHAKAL As per our report of even date
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR attached

GYANENDRA SUBEDI FCA

PARTNER

FOR,
NIRMAL BHATTARAI ASHOK SUBEDI MAHESH PRASAD KAPHLE JOSHI & BHANDARY,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

DATE : 4THBHADRA, 2082 (20TH AUGUST, 2025)
PLACE : KATHMANDU, NEPAL
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GARIMA CAPITAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Period from 1st Shrawan, 2081 to 32nd Ashadh, 2082

iR gfdera R0e/ ¢ @ R0?

Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit/(Loss) After Tax - SOPL 36,933,224 4,987,511
Net Profit/(Loss) After Tax - SOCI 3,558,520 2,239,720
Add: Depreciation and Amortisation 5,627,619 5,607,956
Add: Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets = =
Less: Utilized CSR - (51,850)
Add: Current Year Deferred Tax Expenses 17,041,908 2,197,212
Add/(Less): Prior Year Adjustments to Equity (2,682) -
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets 1,674,975 (21,064,673)
Increase/(Decrease)in Other Liabilities 5,186,282 26,948,902
(Increase)/Decrease in Investment (112,475,430) (79,127,720)
Income Tax Paid (5,950,917) (5,196,004)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (48,406,501) (63,458,947)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Fixed Assets Purchase (1,128,449) (1,034,368)
Sale of Fixed Assets =
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (1,128,449) (1,034,368)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Payment of Dividend = =
Increase/(Decrease)in Secured Loans 49,636,536 48,951,283
(Increase)/Decrease in Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - 15,000,000
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 49,636,536 63,951,283
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 101,586 (542,033)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning 3,283,635 3,825,668
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 3,385,221 3,283,635

The accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements

DEEPAK PANDEY ANIL REGMI SANJU PRASAD JAISWAL
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

NIRMAL BHATTARAI ASHOK SUBEDI

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

DATE : 4THBHADRA, 2082 (20TH AUGUST, 2025)
PLACE : KATHMANDU, NEPAL

NAINA NEPAL DHAKAL

MAHESH PRASAD KAPHLE
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

As per our report of even date

GYANENDRA SUBEDI FCA
PARTNER

JOSHI & BHANDARY,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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